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In 2022, facing the challenging environment including
many unfavorable factors in the global financial market
and the extremely sluggish Hong Kong stock market,
Guotai Junan International demonstrated strong
resilience and operational strength and still achieved a
profit, steadily maintaining profitable every year since
its listing 13 years ago while it decisively executed
efficient risk control measures, effectively managed
and responded to credit risk and market risk, strongly
developed client-demand driven business and
continuously optimized its balance sheet and financial
leverage ratio.

In the future, we will continue to put priority to stability
and act steadily to achieve long-term goals, strengthen
the concept of “Serving the Country with Finance”
and the sentiment of “Financing for Good” . Based
on the strategy of “Rooting in Hong Kong, Relying on
the motherland, and Serving the world”, we will build
into a “Well Respected, Comprehensively Leading and
Internationally Competitive” financial service provider.
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long with its continuous growth in
A different business areas in recent years,
Guotai Junan International has successfully
transformed from a brokerage-oriented
securities firm to a large “Integrated Financial

Service Provider with Diversified Businesses”.
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Corporate Profile

Based in Hong Kong, serving the world

As one of the world’s leading international financial centers, Hong Kong is not only the preferred location for financial
services, but also the location of many large financial institutions. Hong Kong is located in the heart of Asia, closely
integrated with the Mainland China and connected to all parts of the world. A sound legal system, a simple and low
tax system, free access to funds, a comprehensive range of financial products and services, and a large number of
financial talents are the long-term competitiveness of Hong Kong as a financial center.

Guotai Junan International Holdings Limited (“Guotai Junan International” or the “Company”) (stock code: 1788.HK)
(together with its subsidiaries, collectively referred to as the “Group”) has set foot in Hong Kong for almost 30 years. In
2010, it became the first Chinese securities company approved by the China Securities Regulatory Commission to list
its shares on the Main Board of the Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”) through an initial
public offering (“IPO(s)”). The Company is based in Hong Kong and promotes business development in Southeast Asia
through Singapore and Vietnam subsidiaries, becoming a bridge connecting quality Chinese and global enterprises
with the capital market. By providing a series of innovative and pragmatic financial products and services, the
Company meets the investment and financing needs of high-net-worth individual clients, corporate issuers and financial
institutions from the Mainland China, Hong Kong and overseas, assisting them with various market opportunities in
different market stages, to realize the preservation and appreciation of their assets.

An integrated financial service provider with diversified businesses

In recent years, as the Company’s diversified development strategy has been fully implemented, it has successfully
transformed from a “brokerage oriented” securities company to a large “integrated financial service provider” with
diversified businesses. The Company’s core business now includes brokerage, corporate finance, asset management,
loans and financing and financial products, which covers three dimensions including individual finance (wealth
management), institutional finance (institutional investor services and corporate finance services) and investment
management.

Risk management being the edge

The Company firmly believes that risk management is the primary core competitive edge of securities companies.
Through an effective risk management system, the Company has penetrated its risk management culture and rules into
various business lines and daily operation, thereby striving for ideal risk-adjusted investment returns to shareholders
of the Company (“Shareholder(s)”) and investors. As of the end of 2022, the Company has been rated “Baa2/Prime-2”
and “BBB+/A-2" by Moody’s and Standard & Poor’s respectively, with “stable” outlook.

Strong controlling shareholder

Guotai Junan Securities Co., Ltd. (the “parent company” or “Guotai Junan Securities”) (stock code: 601211.SH/2611.HK),
the controlling shareholder of the Company, is a long-term, continuous and comprehensive leading integrated
financial service provider in the Chinese securities industry. With the strong brand advantage of the parent company,
extensive customer base and abundant capital support, the Company plays an important role in the parent company’s
international development strategy and open the way for its international development.

The Company’s professional team boasts a deep knowledge and understanding of the capital market, and has
established a good reputation. With its effective risk management system and a wide range of financial services and
innovative products, the Company will stick to the promise of “integrity, responsibility, amicability, professionalism and
innovation” and strive to provide clients with quality services.
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Awards

CVAWARDS

China Venture Institute
e Best Private Equity Investment Institution in the
Greater Bay Area
- January 2022

SENE

Zhitong Caijing

The 6th Golden Hong Kong Stocks Awards
e Best Financial Stock Company

e Best ESG

medsof

The Asset

Triple A Country Awards 2021

e Best Sustainability Bond (China Offshore)

Triple A Sustainable Capital Markets Awards 2021
e Best Green Bond

- January 2022

- February 2022

2021 FEBEPHBRAR
Offshore China
Fund Awards 2021

Bloomberg, China Asset Management Association
of Hong Kong
Offshore China Fund Awards 2021
e Private Funds: Greater China Fixed Income (3 years) —
Guotai Junan Asian High Yield Bond Fund
e Best Investment Mandates —
Guotai Junan Assets (Asia) Limited
- March 2022

PROFESSIONAL
INVESTMENT

AWARDS 2022
Insights & Mandate
Investment Performance Awards
e Asian High Yield — 3 years
e Asian High Yield — 5 years
Market Performance Awards
e (CIO of the Year for Fixed Income

- April 2022

HKEX Structured

Product
Awards Top Breakthrough
2021 Issuer

HKEX
e 2021 Top Breakthrough Broker
e 2021 Outstanding Chinese Futures Broker
- April 2022

nstltutional
nvestor

2022 ASIA (EX-JAPAN) EXECUTIVE TEAM
MOST HONORED COMPANY
GUOTAI JUNAN INTERNATIONAL

Institutional Investor

All-Asia: Banks and Non-Banks Sector
(Small and Mid-Cap)

e Most Honored Company (1st)

e Best ESG (Overall) (1st)

e Best IR Company (Overall) (1st)

e Best CEO (Overall) (1st)

e Best CFO (Overall) (2nd)

All-Asia: Banks and Non-Banks Sector
e Best CEO (Sell-side) (3rd)

Mainland China: Banks and Non-Banks Sector
e Most Honored Company (3rd)

e Best ESG (Sell-side) (3rd)

e Best CEO (Sell-side) (2nd)

e Best CFO (Sell-side) (2nd)

- June 2022
iFAST
iFAST
e 2022 iFAST Wealth Advisers Awards
- June 2022

Bloomberg L

Busmessweek A
S A T PSR

2022

Bloomberg Businessweek
Financial Institution Awards 2022
e Excellence Performance of "Risk Management"
e Excellence Performance of

"Wealth Management Platform (Greater Bay Area)"
e Excellence Performance of

"ESG Sustainability of the Year"

- July 2022



INTERNATIONAL
XXXVI

2022 International ARC Awards

e 2021 Annual Report Printing & Production:
Banking, Investment & Wealth Management —
Bronze Winner

e 2021 Annual Report Cover Photo/Design:
Financial Services — Bronze Winner

e 2021 Annual Report Interior Design:
Banking, Investment & Wealth Management —
Honours Award

- September 2022

» LACP

League of American Communications Professionals
2021 Vision Awards

e Platinum Award for 2021 Annual Report

e Top 100 Reports Worldwide

e Top 80 Reports (Asia-Pacific Region)

e Top 50 Chinese Reports

e Best Report Financials — Bronze

e Technical Achievement Award

med§gef

The Asset
e Top Investment Houses in Asian G3 Bonds

- October 2022
0.,

Navigation “9+2" Award
e Best Financial Services Award in the Greater Bay
Area

- September 2022

- November 2022

09 =Emz

Zhitong Caijing
The 4th Golden Central Awards
e Best Customer Service Award
The 7th Zhitang Caijing Listed Companies
e Best ESG
- November 2022
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Awards

)
<

HRAsia ~®
BEST COMPANIES
TO WORK FOR
IN ASIA 2022
HR ASIA
e Best Companies to Work for in Asia 2022 —

Hong Kong Region

- November 2022

il
LA SRR

LISTED COMPANY
2022 AWARDS OF EXCELLENCE

AR nasn
Hong Kong Economic Journal
e Listed Company Awards of Excellence 2022

- December 2022
Lorporatelbavemancelsi

Corporate Governance Asia

12th Asian Excellence Awards

e Best Investor Relations Company
e Asia’s Best CEO

e Asia’s Best CFO

GisEC

- December 2022

Gelonghui
GuruClub Greater China Best Listed Company
Awards 2022
e Annual Corporate Governance Award
- December 2022




CHAIRMAN'S
STATEMENT

Dear Shareholders,

2022 witnessed a tremendous impact casted on economic activities and capital markets, caused by the factors such
as COVID-19 prevention and control in the Mainland China, prolonged debt crisis of mainland real estate corporates,
the United States (“US”) Federal Reserve System'’s tightening monetary policies, and global geopolitical tensions. The
Hong Kong capital market was greatly affected, with the Hang Seng Index once hitting the lowest level in nearly 13
years, recording a decline of approximately 15% for the year, and the Chinese-issued high-yield US dollar-denominated
bonds index fell by 33%.

Facing multiple unexpected impacts and a severe environment of capital markets adjustment, Guotai Junan
International focused on innovations, stable management, actively strengthened risk control, reduced risk exposure
with a prospective view, solidified the basis of corporate governance and compliance foundations, and promoted the
smooth and healthy development of the Company. Again, we withstood the test of the global capital market storm,
maintained our profitability, and achieved an attributable profit of HK$80.38 million.

During the year, the market capitalization of the Company kept the leading place among overseas subsidiaries of
Chinese securities brokers listed in Hong Kong, and received the award of “Most Honored Company” from Institutional
Investor magazine for the second consecutive year, demonstrating high recognition for the Company by global
investors and the public.

Guotai Junan International always regard risk management capability as one of our core competences, which was
well recognized and supported by the capital markets. Facing the violent fluctuations of the global markets in 2022,
we assessed the situation, resolutely and decisively adopted risk management measures such as reducing positions
and hedging, strategically increased the proportion of client demand-driven business, and significantly improved the
Group’s revenue composition, balance sheet structure and overall risk-adjusted return. Although the Company’s
performance for the year was inevitably affected by material changes in the market conditions, the Company delivered
quality outcomes in terms of risk management, corporate governance, environmental, social and governance (“ESG”),
legal and compliance, etc., maintaining sound financial position. As of the end of 2022, the Company was assigned
a long-term issuer rating of “BBB+” by S&P and “Baa2” by Moody'’s, the international credit rating agencies, with the
outlook being “stable”.

In early 2022, with the outbreak of the fifth wave of the COVID-19 pandemic in Hong Kong, Guotai Junan International
attached great importance to the safety and health of the employees, continuously monitored the development of the
pandemic, and implemented the arrangements for group rotation and the “minimum-scale office model” in a timely
manner. We vigorously encouraged the employees to take vaccinations, and timely distributed materials to fight the
pandemic such as masks and antigen test kits to the employees to effectively control and reduce the infection rate. In
addition, we spared no efforts in strengthening our online customer service capabilities to ensure efficient operation of
financial products and services during the pandemic, and actively performed our social responsibilities as a financial
stated-owned enterprise.
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Chairman’s Statement

In last year, Guotai Junan International continued to respond to the national “Dual Carbon” goals, and strive to
be a leader in green finance and ESG activities. In the course of corporate operations, we continued to optimize
environmental protection and energy saving measures, reduce operational carbon emission, strive to take the lead in
practicing environmental protection activities, maintain our leadership in corporate governance and compliance, solidify
our service capability on green finance, and demonstrate a responsible brand image. With our excellent management
and performance in terms of ESG, we continued to be included in the FTSE ESG Index, while our rating was upgraded
by the MSCI ESG rating agency. MSCI reported that the Guotai Junan International led global peers in terms of
corporate governance and business ethics policies. In the future, we will continue to strengthen the Group’s overall
ESG management and the implementation of sustainable development strategies, increase our investment in corporate
governance, employee care and social community, actively grasp the opportunities and manage the risks related to
climate changes through the development of green finance, and promote the low-carbon development of customers
and the whole society through diversified products and services such as green bonds.

Under the leadership of the parent company, in 2022 Guotai Junan International continued to accelerate the
construction of the Guangdong-Hong Kong-Macao Greater Bay Area (the “Greater Bay Area”) as well as “One Belt,
One Road” in accordance with the development strategy of “Three three-years in Three Steps”. At the end of June,
the Company received a formal no-objection reply letter from the China Securities Regulatory Commission on the
establishment of a subsidiary in Macao, marking a key step to improve the layout in the Greater Bay Area. Taking
the opportunity of the establishment of the Macao subsidiary, the Company will make new contributions to achieve a
higher level of opening-up and higher-quality economic development of the Greater Bay Area. Meanwhile, the Group
accelerated its deployment in the Southeast Asian market during the year, and the revenue of the Group’s subsidiaries
in Vietnam and Singapore remained relatively stable.

In 2023, the market conditions will still be full of challenges. Guotai Junan International will seize the strategic
development opportunities such as “One Belt, One Road” and the construction of the Greater Bay Area by following
the strategic deployment of the parent company to enhance our core competitiveness through integrated services
platform, fintech innovation and excellent risk management capabilities, strengthen the application of fintech, accelerate
digital transformation, and realise the high-quality and sustainable development of the Company.

Dear Shareholders, we have seen a trend of stronger and increasing concentration within the securities industry in
future, and the competition pattern will be reshaped in a faster pace. Based on sound development over many years,
we are moving towards the stage of a large comprehensive securities firm relying on digital technology, adopting
platform-based operation model and giving full play to the synergies of the Group, ultimately gaining advantages in
a new round of industrial competition, achieving better operating results to reward the investors for their long-term
support to the Group.

Dr. YIM Fung, JP
Chairman of the Board

Hong Kong, 27 March 2023
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acing the highly volatile financial market
F environment in 2022, Guotai Junan
International maintained its strong strategic
determination and resolutely implemented
effective risk management measures. Meanwhile,
the Group strategically increased the proportion of
client-driven business and improved the Group’s
balance sheet structure and overall risk-adjusted
return rate. During the year, the Group maintained
a long-term issuer rating of “BBB+” by S&P and
“Baa2” by Moody’s, the international credit rating

agencies, with the outlook being “stable”.
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Financial Highlights

Results
Revenue (HK$'000)
— Commission and fee income
— Interest income
— Net trading and investment (loss)/income
Profit attributable to ordinary equity holders (HK$’000)
Dividend (HK$'000) "'
Dividend payment ratio "*°?
Return on equity
Per Share
Basic earnings per Share (HK cents)
Diluted earnings per Share (HK cents)
Dividend per Share (HK cents)
Financial position
Total assets (HK$'000)
Shareholders’ equity (HK$'000)
Number of issued Shares
Equity per ordinary Share (HK$)

Note 1

2022

2,314,917
866,142
1,896,682
(447,907)
80,381
477,700
594%
0.5%

0.8
0.8
5.0

94,455,086
14,806,699
9,553,994,707
1.55

2021

3,966,415
1,626,079
2,280,539
59,797
1,094,743
576,259
53%

7.2%

11.4
11.4
6.0

106,288,093
15,307,361
9,618,994,707
1.59

Change

(42%
(47%
(17%

N/A

(93%
(17%
541p.p
(6.7p.p.

)
)

)

Notes: 1. Based on 9,553,994,707 ordinary shares of the Company (“Share(s)”) in issue as at 31 December 2022 (2021: 9,618,994,707 Shares).
2. Based on calculation of dividing the dividend amount, which includes special dividend, by the profit attributable to ordinary equity holders.

Dividends: 13 consecutive years of “all-cash” dividend

HK$'000

53% 5 53%

L
51% < 51% 51% < 5%  51% 52%
L 3 L ] L ] L 3

0,
46. % All-cash dividend
for each financial year

for 13 years since listing

Cumulative cash dividend of
approximately

815,270 -
HK$5,580 million

624,278
513,562 516,972 513,271

404,723

576,259

721 477,700

273,542

114,800 || 147,316 16285

2010 2011 2012 2013 2014 2015 2016 2017 2018 2019 2020 2021 2022

- Profit attributable to ordinary

equity holders of the Company . Dividend amount Dividend payment ratio
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Financial Highlights

Income diversification to enhance financial resilience

Interest income from financial products Interest income from banks and others
held on behalf of clients
For the year ended 31 December HK$°000 For the year ended 31 December HK$°000 )
410,421 391,854
320,917 /
%
ﬂ
125,269

2021 2022 2021 2022

Effective cost control during interest rate hike cycle

Impairment provision Finance costs
é For the year ended 31 December HK$’000 For the year ended 31 December HK$’000
774,863
220,597
Do
W
153,972
N

2021 2022 2021 2022

Optimizing balance sheet
Reducing market risks and increasing cash reserves during market volatility

Financial assets held for trading and investments Cash and cash equivalents
As at 31 December HK$’000 As at 31 December HK$°000 h
23,253,517 7,756,580

5,277,874
411,517,623

2021 2022 2021 2022
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Results Review

In 2022, the global financial market was in a downturn. In the context of geopolitical tension, tightening of
monetary policy by the US Federal Reserve System and high inflation overseas, risk events in the global capital
market occurred frequently and the Hong Kong stock market was inevitably impacted. In 2022, the Hang Seng
Index dropped by 15%, and even hit its lowest level in over 13 years in October, whereas the average daily
trading volume of the Hong Kong stock market decreased by 25% as compared to the same period of last year
(“YOY”) to HK$124.9 billion, and the total funds raised from IPOs in the Hong Kong stock market significantly
decreased by 68% YOY to HK$104.6 billion. The US stock market had its worst year since the subprime
mortgage crisis, with the Dow Jones index declined by 9%, the S&P 500 index retracted by 19% and the Nasdaq
Composite lowered by 33%. In the bond market, the relevant price index of high-yield and investment-grade
US dollar-denominated bonds issued by the Chinese corporates fell by 33% and 10% respectively in 2022.
Meanwhile, the total amount of bonds issued in Asian (ex-Japan) G3 currencies (US dollar, Euro and Yen)
decreased by 54% YOY to US$160.1 billion, according to Bloomberg data.

In 2022, facing the challenging environment including many unfavourable factors in the global financial market
and the extremely sluggish Hong Kong stock market, the Group demonstrated strong resilience and operational
strength and still achieved a profit, steadily maintaining profitable every year since its listing 13 years ago by
decisively executing efficient risk control measures, effectively managing and responding to credit risk and
market risk, strongly developing client-demand driven business and continuously optimizing its balance sheet and
financial leverage ratio.

Hong Kong has suffered from five outbreaks of the pandemic since 2020, which caused adverse impacts to
most industries. During this special time, the Company continued to recommend a final special dividend following
the interim of 2022 to uphold the spirit of “overcoming difficulties together”. The Group also distributed all-cash
dividends every year since its listing 13 years ago so as to respond to the long-term recognition and support of
investors and the capital markets.

The results for 2022 are summarized as follows (during the year or as at 31 December 2022):

° Under the extremely challenging market and business environment, the Group’s revenue for the year
amounted to HK$2,315 million (2021: HK$3,966 million) and the profit attributable to ordinary equity holders
decreased by 93% YQOY to HK$80.38 million (2021: HK$1,095 million)

° Recommended a final special dividend for the year ended 31 December 2022 of HK$0.010 per Share,
together with an interim dividend of HK$0.010 per Share and a special dividend of HK$0.030 per Share
which were paid on 26 September 2022, the total dividends for the year will amount to HK$0.050 per Share
(dividend payment ratio of 594%)

° Total assets decreased by 11% to HK$94.46 billion. The balance of the Group’s financial assets held for
trading and investments decreased by 51% to HK$11.44 billion due to the significant reduction of risk
exposures, effectively reduced the impact of market price fluctuations on the statement of profit or loss.
Meanwhile, client demand for financial products increased against the market as the Group continued to
improve the quality of its products and services, and the balance of financial product assets held on behalf
of clients (driven by client demand) increased by 45% YOY to HK$45.94 billion
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If excluding the financial assets from the financial products held on behalf of clients, the leverage ratio was
lowered to 2.37 times (as at the end of 2021: 3.74 times)

Benefiting from higher global interest rates and stable client demand for financial products, the Group’s
interest income from financial products increased by 28% YOY to HK$410 million

Benefiting from higher global interest rates and the Group’s strong capability in funds management, the
Group’s interest income from banks and others significantly increased by 213% YOY to HK$392 million

Finance costs decreased by 13% to HK$677 million despite the significant increase in global interest rates,
mainly due to effectively controlled funding costs as well as the significant reduction of high-risk asset
exposures which resulted in a corresponding decrease in financing scale

Facing severe fluctuation of global assets, based on the principle of prudence, the Group recorded a
net impairment charge of HK$154 million, representing a YOY decrease of 30%, reflecting its sound risk
management capability

Business Operation Review

(1)

(1)

Risk management made contributions in high-intensity market challenges
The Group firmly believes that risk management is the core competitive edge of a financial institution and
pursues a robust risk and compliance culture to accurately identify and effectively manage risks through a
sound, scientific risk management model and system and advanced risk management tools.

During the year, the Group maintained its strong strategic determination in the highly volatile financial market
environment and resolutely implemented effective risk management measures. In response to high-risk
events such as rising interest rates of US treasury bonds and default of mainland real estate corporate
bonds, the Group adopted precise dynamic risk hedging measures to avoid significant financial loss and
also continued to reduce high-risk exposure, the impact of market risk and financial asset price fluctuations
on the balance sheet was mitigated, and the value-at-risk and various risk sensitivity indicators were
improved significantly. On the other hand, the Group strategically increased the proportion of client-driven
business and improved the Group’s balance sheet structure and overall risk-adjusted return rate. During
the year, the Group maintained a long-term issuer rating of “BBB+” by S&P and “Baa2” by Moody’s, the
international credit rating agencies, with the outlook being “stable”, staying in a leading position among its
peers in Hong Kong.

The Company’s ESG rating was upgraded for the first time in the past four
years, with its corporate governance being regarded as ahead of its global
peers

During the year, Morgan Stanley Capital International (“MSCI”), an international authoritative index institution,
upgraded the Company’s ESG rating to “BBB” for the first time in the past four years, and was at the leading
level of securities companies in Hong Kong. According to MSCI, the Company is ahead of its global peers in
terms of corporate governance and business ethics policies. On the other hand, the scale of the Group’s green
and sustainable bond underwriting has been constantly increasing. As ESG-themed investment has become
an important investment strategy in the global financial market, ESG rating has become an important basis for
the international market to measure the investment value of listed companies. This rating upgrade is a high
recognition and full affirmation of the Group’s ESG management achievements by international authoritative
institutions and the international capital market.
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(Ill) The market capitalization was leading among listed Hong Kong stock

brokers while the “Guotai Junan” brand was highly recognized

Although most of the major stock markets around the world were under pressure in 2022, the Company’s
market capitalization maintained a leading position among Hong Kong securities firms listed in Hong
Kong. During the year, the Company received a record number of 45 awards from media and professional
institutions such as “Institutional Investor”, “Zhitongcaijing.com”, “The Asset”, “Bloomberg Businessweek”,
“Insights and Mandate”, Chinese Asset Management Association of Hong Kong and the Stock Exchange,
representing a YOY increase of 32%, including the “Most Honored Company” award from Institutional
Investor magazine for the second consecutive year, demonstrating the recognition of the Company by the
world’s top financial media and magazines.

(IV) Actively implementing major national strategies, the Group received a

no-objection letter from the China Securities Regulatory Commission for the
establishment of Macao subsidiary

During the year, the Group implemented the national development strategy of the Greater Bay Area and the
“One Belt, One Road” Initiative. At the end of June, the China Securities Regulatory Commission officially
issued a no-objection reply on the establishment of the Company’s subsidiary in Macao, marking a key step
for the Group to improve its footprint in the Greater Bay Area.

Ill. Analysis of Operating Results

() Revenue analysis

1. By nature:
Commission and fee income decreased by 47% YOY to HK$866 million (2021: HK$1,626 million).
During the year, the fundraising amount in the Hong Kong IPO market decreased by 68% YOY and
the trading volume of stocks decreased by 25% YOY, resulting in a YOY decrease in the Group’s
commission and fee income from brokerage, corporate finance and asset management.

Interest income decreased by 17% YOY to HK$1,897 million (2021: HK$2,281 million), mainly due to
the fact that the Group continued to adjust its bond holdings for market making purpose in response
to the deepening default risk of bonds issued by mainland real estate corporates, resulting in a YOY
decrease in coupon income from bonds. On the other hand, the market condition in Hong Kong was
weak, which led to less investor demand for financing YOY.

Net trading and investment loss amounted to HK$448 million (2021: income of HK$59.80 million).
The Group conducted trading and investment business with a purpose mainly for supporting the
development of wealth management, corporate finance and asset management, etc. During the year,
as the global stock market and the Chinese-issued US dollar-denominated bond market continued to
undergo in-depth adjustments, the Group recorded a loss on mark-to-market adjustments in trading
and investment income during the year.
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By segment:

Institutional investor services segment income decreased by 18% YOY to HK$1,330 million (2021:
HK$1,619 million), mainly due to the decrease in handling fees of financial products and the decrease
of related investment income from fixed income securities.

Wealth management segment income decreased by 31% YOY to HK$1,271 million (2021: HK$1,829
million), mainly due to the YOY decrease in brokerage commission and income from margin financing
provided to wealth management clients and the issuance of derivative instruments.

Corporate finance services segment income decreased by 53% YOY to HK$287 million (2021: HK$617
million), mainly due to the extremely sluggish Hong Kong stock market and the significant decrease
in corporate clients’ willingness to issue shares, which affected the income from equity and debt
underwriting and issuance.

Investment management segment income recorded a loss of HK$573 million (2021: loss of HK$99.31
million), mainly due to the significant decrease in related interest income as a result of the significant
reduction of the Group’s position in high-risk Chinese-issued US dollar-denominated bonds, and the
mark-to-market losses recorded from the outstanding investment positions.

(Il) Cost analysis

During the year, total costs decreased by 15% YOY to HK$2,293 million, mainly due to the YOY decrease
in finance costs and impairment charge. Under the business principle of prudence in the face of the severe
volatility in the global financial market, the Group recorded a net impairment charge of HK$154 million for
the year, representing a YOY decrease of 30%. At the same time, the Group’s finance costs decreased
by 13% YOY to HK$677 million despite the significant increase in global interest rates. The Group believes
the costs and expenses during the year were generally within expectation and conducive to the medium to
long-term sustainable development.

IV. Financial Position Analysis

() Balance sheet summary

1.

General

As at 31 December 2022, total assets of the Group were HK$94.46 billion, representing a decrease
of 11% as compared to that as at the end of 2021, while total liabilities of the Group were HK$79.52
billion, representing a decrease of 12% as compared to that as at the end of 2021. The total equity
amounted to HK$14.94 billion, representing a decrease of 3% as compared to that as at the end of
2021.

The Group has been devoting every effort in optimizing the loans and financing business structure,
adjusting the proportion of margin financing with collateral of small and mid-cap stocks and making
adequate impairment provision for high-risk assets. As a result, the Group’s assets are optimized to
high quality, sound liquidity, and reasonable structure.
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2. Assets

As at 31 December 2022, the Group’s total assets decreased by 11% as compared to that as at the
end of 2021 to HK$94.46 billion (as at the end of 2021: HK$106.29 billion), mainly due to 1) the Group
managed the risks prudently by reducing its risk exposures in financial assets held for trading and
investments, the balance of financial assets held for trading and investments decreased by 51% as
compared to that as at the end of 2021 to HK$11.44 billion (accounted for 12% of the total assets);
2) loans and advances to customers decreased by 60% as compared to that as at the end of 2021
to HK$6,391 million (accounted for 7% of the total assets); and 3) the trust bank balances held on
behalf of the clients decreased by 25% as compared to that as at the end of 2021 to HK$13.35 billion
(accounted for 14% of the total assets).

3. Liabilities
As at 31 December 2022, the Group’s total liabilities decreased by 12% as compared to that as at the
end of 2021 to HK$79.52 billion (as at the end of 2021: HK$90.85 billion), mainly due to the decrease
in debt securities in issue. As at 31 December 2022, debt securities in issue of the Group decreased
by 9% to HK$41.49 billion (as at the end of 2021: HK$45.49 billion). In spite of the increase in
structured notes issued to the clients as a result of the growth of client-driven business, it was offset
by the decrease in debt securities in issue at amortised cost.

4.  Financial ratios
As at 31 December 2022, the nominal leverage ratio (defined as total assets less accounts payable
to clients divided by total equity) was 5.44 times (as at the end of 2021: 5.78 times). If excluding the
financial assets from the financial products held on behalf of the clients, the leverage ratio was 2.37
times (as at the end of 2021: 3.74 times). The gearing ratio (defined as the sum of bank borrowings
and debt securities in issue at amortised cost divided by total equity) was 1.09 times (as at the end of
2021: 1.73 times). The Group’s current ratio was 1.17 times (as at the end of 2021: 1.11 times).

(II) Charges on the Group’s assets
No asset of the Group was subject to any charge as at 31 December 2022 and 31 December 2021,
respectively.

(lll) Capital commitments, other commitments and contingent liabilities
Details of capital commitments and other commitments of the Group are set out in Note 34 to the financial
statements of this report. The Group did not have any contingent liabilities as at 31 December 2022.

(IV) Liquidity and financial resources
As at 31 December 2022, the current assets of the Group were HK$77.67 billion, decreased by 12% as
compared to that as at the end of 2021. The balance of cash and cash equivalents of the Group was
HK$7,757 million (as at the end of 2021: HK$5,278 million). Net cash inflow of the Group was HK$2,479
million (as at the end of 2021: outflow of HK$231 million).
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The Company maintained a Medium Term Note Programme of up to HK$35.0 billion for financing purposes,
under which listed and unlisted notes denominated in any currency may be issued from time to time. On 18
July 2022, the Company successfully renewed the Medium Term Note Programme of up to HK$35.0 billion
with a period of 12 months. The Company, through its subsidiary, also maintained a Guaranteed Structured
Note Programme of up to US$15.0 billion, under which unlisted notes denominated in any currency may be
issued from time to time. As at 31 December 2022, the medium term notes and structured notes issued and
outstanding amounted to HK$4,800 million (as at the end of 2021: HK$19.1 billion) and US$4,900 million (as
at the end of 2021: US$4,000 million), respectively.

Save as disclosed above, there were no other debt instruments issued by the Group during the year.

Taking into account the position of liquidity and financial resources of the Group, the Group believes that its
operating cash flows are adequate and sufficient to finance the recurring working capital requirements and
meet any investment opportunities that may arise in the future.

Material acquisitions and disposals
For the year ended 31 December 2022, the Group had no material acquisition and disposal of subsidiaries,
associated companies and joint ventures.

(VI) Significant investment held

As at 31 December 2022, the Company held a significant investment in Wealth Dominion Limited (“WDL").
The principal business of WDL is investment holding. As at 31 December 2022, the Company, through its
wholly-owned subsidiary, held 390,000,000 shares of WDL, representing 97.5% of WDL'’s issued share
capital (the “Investment”). The cost of investment in WDL amounted to US$390 million (approximately
HK$3,049 million equivalent). WDL invests solely in Hill House GL Fund (the “Fund”). The principal activity of
the Fund is investment in private equity.

As at 31 December 2022, the fair value of the Investment amounted to HK$5,421 million, which accounted
for approximately 5.7% of the Group’s total assets.

The holding of the Investment is used as a hedging instrument for structured notes issued to a customer
under the Guaranteed Structured Note Programme maintained by a subsidiary of the Company. Through the
holding of the structured notes, the customer bears the risks, loss, and economic return on the Investment.
As a result, the return and the loss (if any) on the Investment has no net impact to the Group’s profit or
loss (including realized/unrealized gain or loss or any dividend received). The Group received handling fees
through the issuance of the structured notes to the customer.

The Investment is of a revenue nature in the ordinary and usual course of business of the Group and
classified as “financial assets at fair value through profit or loss — financial products” in the financial
statement. The acquisition of financial products and the issuance of structured notes by the Group (as one
of the core businesses of the Group) are primarily for the purpose of meeting customers’ investing needs.
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(VIl) Capital structure and regulatory capital
For the year ended 31 December 2022, the Company bought back a total of 65,000,000 Shares on
the Stock Exchange, all of which were cancelled during the year. Please refer to the paragraph headed
“Purchase, Sale or Redemption of the Company’s Listed Securities” under the section of “Report of the
Directors” of this report for details. As at 31 December 2022, there were 9,553,994,707 Shares in issue.

The Group monitors its capital structure from time to time to ensure the compliance of the capital
requirements set by the Securities and Futures Commission of Hong Kong, the Monetary Authority of
Singapore and the State Securities Commission under the Ministry of Finance of Vietnam for the licensed
subsidiaries of the Company in respective jurisdictions and to support the development needs of new
businesses. All licensed subsidiaries within the Group have complied with respective applicable capital
requirements during the year.

(Vlll) Foreign exchange risk
Foreign exchange risk refers to the risk that movements in foreign currency exchange rates may affect the
Group’s financial results and its cash flows.

The Group’s foreign exchange risk principally arises from its leveraged foreign exchange dealing and broking
business as well as the Group’s transactions which are denominated in currencies other than Hong Kong
dollars. For the leveraged foreign exchange brokerage business, the Group hedges the majority of the client
positions through back-to-back transactions with external counterparties. The Group adopts a stringent
control over its positions to minimize its exposure to foreign exchange risk.

The Group’s principal businesses are transacted and recorded in Hong Kong dollar, US dollar and
Renminbi. The Group is not exposed to material foreign exchange risk arising from the fluctuation of US
dollar because Hong Kong dollar is pegged with US dollar. The Group takes appropriate hedging measures
when it is exposed to material exchange rate fluctuations in Renminbi. Other than that, the impact of the
remaining foreign currency exposure is relatively minimal to the Group’s total assets and liabilities.

V. Human Capital Diversity and Remuneration Policies

Competitive remuneration packages are offered to employees with reference to prevailing market level and
individual merits. As at 31 December 2022, the Group had 625 employees in total (excluding self-employed
account executives). Salaries are reviewed on an annual basis and discretionary bonus is paid with reference to
the Group’s performance and individual performance. Other benefits offered by the Group include mandatory
provident fund scheme and medical and dental insurance, etc.

Currently, the Company’s female employees accounted for 44% of total workforce (including senior management),
which is almost half of all employees. Therefore, there is no specific target for the proportion of male and female
employees for the time being, but the Company will endeavour to maintain the proportion of female employees at
the current level with the ultimate goal of achieving gender equality. In the future, the Company will continue to
strive to create an inclusive environment for all employees, encourage and advocate equal opportunity and gender
diversity, and expand the inclusivity of the Company. When recruiting new employees, the Human Resources
Department will also remind the business units to take into account of diversity factors (including but not limited
to gender) in addition to the competency and work experience of the candidates. The Company will achieve the
diversity more effectively under the goal of building an inclusive corporate culture and applying the principle of
meritocracy.
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The Group is firmly committed to promoting and implementing diversity and equal opportunity in employment,
and has emphasized diversity and inclusivity in the Staff Handbook. The Company’s diversity initiatives cover,
including but are not limited to, recruitment and allocation, remuneration and benefits, professional development
and training. The Company has attached great importance to diversified talent recruitment, formulated a fair
remuneration system and paid attention to the career development of employees. Subject to equal opportunity,
the Company continuously strives to create a good working environment, promote understanding and respect
for diversity, strengthen the communication and team cooperation between employees with mutual respect and
encourage employees to express their opinions. Any employee is found to have committed any misconduct or
malpractice against others may be subject to disciplinary action.

Prospects

Although overseas inflation is expected to decline in the short term in the future, there is still an upward trend for
the inflation in the middle term. Facing the tense situation between Russia and Ukraine, international geopolitical
risks will still attract market attention and the global financial market will be inevitably exposed to more
uncertainties and challenges. In such context, China’s economy is however expected to show a different outlook
than overseas. Despite the possible negative impact on economic growth brought by factors such as the weak
real estate market and the impact of the pandemic, the long-term positive fundamentals of China’s economy
remain unchanged due to its large economic volume and strong resilience in the internal circulation market.

Under the complicated external environment, guided by “Three Three-years in Three Steps”, the development
strategy of its parent company, the Group will enhance its core competitiveness, accelerate digital transformation
and actively deploy financial technology applications with excellent risk management capabilities, enhance
the capabilities of various businesses, give full play to the Company’s overseas strengths, including offshore
asset allocation and cross-border wealth management services, and seize the opportunities arising from
the development of “One Belt, One Road” and the Greater Bay Area to achieve high-quality and sustainable
development of the Group.

The Group has been implementing a solid and steady operational strategy. As always, the Group will continue
to improve its risk management measures and strengthen the execution, as well as to consolidate and enhance
its outstanding risk management capabilities, so as to lay a solid foundation for further business development.
The Group will continue to promote a client-demand driven business model, vigorously improve the capabilities
of wealth management, corporate finance and financial products and other businesses, and comprehensively
improve its integrated financial service capabilities. Meanwhile, the Group will continue to reduce its own market
risks on a large scale, consolidate its balance sheet and improve the risk-adjusted return on investment for
Shareholders. The Group will always aim to increase the risk-adjusted return on net assets as one of its core
objectives with steady and solid compound growth to reward the investors for their continuous supports.
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The directors of the Company (the “Director(s)”) firmly believe that good corporate governance is crucial to maintaining
effective corporate operations, establishing a comprehensive corporate culture, realizing sound business development
and protecting long-term Shareholders’ value. Therefore, the Company has been practicing high standards of corporate
governance. The Company adopted all principles and code provisions of the Corporate Governance Code set out in
Appendix 14 (the “CG Code”) to the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on the Stock Exchange (the “Listing
Rules”) as its own code of corporate governance. The Company has complied with all principles and code provisions
of the CG Code throughout the year 2022.

The board of the Company (the “Board”) will keep corporate governance practices of the Group under continual review
to ensure consistent application, make updates and improvements following the developments of the CG Code.

Corporate Culture

The Company continues to cultivate the cultural philosophy of “Compliance, Integrity, Professionalism, and Stability”
by accelerating its development and business strategies, compliance and risk control measures, talent acquisitions
and professional integrity, etc. practically. It plays a pivotal role by instilling its culture across the development of the
Company, meanwhile enhancing its media platform and strengthening the corporate culture education.

Taking into account the corporate culture in a range of contexts, the Board considers that the culture and the purpose,
value and strategy of the Group are aligned. More information about the Company’s corporate culture is available on
the website of the Company.

Board of Directors

Board Composition

The Board currently comprises eight Directors, of whom two are executive directors (the “Executive Director(s)”),
three are non-executive directors (the “Non-executive Director(s)”) and three are independent non-executive directors
(the “Independent Non-executive Director(s)”). There is a strong independent element on the Board to ensure the
independence and objectivity of the Board’s decision making process as well as the thoroughness and impartiality of
the Board’s oversight of the management. The Board diversity matrix as at 31 December 2022 is set out below. For
detailed information about the change of the Board composition during the year, please refer to the section headed
“Corporate Information” of this report.
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As at 31 December 2022

Designation

Executive Director

Non-executive Director

Independent Non-executive Director

Age Group

41 -50

51 -60

61-70

Gender

Male 6
Female

Education Background*

Doctorate degree

Master’s degree

Bachelor’s degree and others 1
Ethnicity

Chinese 8
Year of service

Below 5 4
5-10 1
Above 10 3

Including Economics, Engineering, Business and Administration, Finance, Law, Accounting and Aeronautics Engineering
Brief biographical particulars of the Directors are set out from pages 100 to 103 of this report.

Responsibilities and Delegation

Under the leadership of chairman of the Board (the “Chairman”), the Board is accountable to Shareholders and the
Company as a whole, and primarily responsible for formulating overall strategic plans and key policies of the Group,
supervising business and financial performance, and ensuring effective corporate governance practices with appropriate
risks (including ESG risks) management system and control measures in place so as to enhance Shareholders’ value.
The Board has delegated certain of the functions to its committees, while the duties of managing daily operations of
the Group are vested in Executive Directors and senior management. Matters such as approval of financial statements,
declaration of dividends, capital restructure and issuance of securities, mergers and acquisitions, major investments,
connected transactions, appointment and removal of auditors, remuneration policies, etc. are specifically reserved to
the Board.

The Company has arranged Directors’ and Officers’ Liability Insurance for its directors and officers in respect of
possible legal proceedings and other claims against them arising from their office and execution of their powers, duties
and responsibilities. The directors and officers shall not be indemnified where there is any negligence, fraud, breach of
duty or breach of trust proven against them.
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Board Independence

The Company recognizes that Board independence is key to good corporate governance and it has in place effective
mechanisms that underpin a strong independent Board and that independent views and input from Directors are
conveyed to the Board.

The current composition of the Board (comprising more than one third Independent Non-executive Directors) and
the Audit Committee (comprising all Independent Non-executive Directors) exceed the minimum independence
requirements under the Listing Rules, while all other Board committees (including the Remuneration Committee, the
Nomination Committee, the Risk Committee and the ESG Committee) are chaired by Independent Non-executive
Director. The Company has a rigorous nomination process for directors (including independent non-executive
directors), details are set out in the paragraph headed “Nomination Policy” of this section.

Moreover, the Independent Non-executive Directors have historically and consistently demonstrated strong
commitment, and the ability to devote sufficient time to discharge their responsibilities at the Board. Their commitment
is also subject to self-confirmation each year. No Independent Non-executive Director held the seventh or more listed
company directorship during the year.

All Directors (including Independent Non-executive Directors) are entitled to seek independent professional advice on
performing their duties at all times whenever deemed necessary at the Company’s expense. In addition, the Chairman
had also met with the Independent Non-executive Directors in the absence of other Directors and senior management
of the Company during the year. Such meeting(s) provide an effective forum for the Chairman to listen to the views of
the Independent Non-executive Directors about the Company they may wish to raise.

The Company has received from each Independent Non-executive Director a confirmation of his independence.
The Board has affirmed that all Independent Non-executive Directors continued to be independent based on the
assessment made in accordance with the criterion set out in Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules.

Dr. FU Tingmei and Mr. TSANG Yiu Keung, the Independent Non-executive Directors, have served the Board for more
than nine years. The Board considers that they have continued to exercise independent judgment on the matters
of the Company and there is no evidence that the length of tenure is having adverse impact on their independence.
The Board therefore considers that Dr. FU Tingmei and Mr. TSANG Yiu Keung remain independent, notwithstanding
the length of their tenure. Nevertheless, as part of the board refreshment process, Professor CHAN Ka Keung Ceajer
has been appointed in 2018 as an additional Independent Non-executive Director and Dr. SONG Ming (acted as
an Independent Non-executive Director for more than nine years) has retired at the annual general meeting of the
Company (the “AGM”) held in 2022.

None of the Directors has any financial, business, family or other material/relevant relationship with each other.
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Appointment and Re-election of Directors

Any appointment of director shall be approved by Shareholders in accordance with the Articles of Association of the
Company (the “Articles of Association”). Each of the Directors has entered into a service agreement or a letter of
appointment (as the case may be) with the Company, among which, all Directors have a specific term of appointment
of not more than three years (save for the appointment or the renewal of appointment of Non-executive Directors is
made on or after 1 January 2022 that specific term is no longer required under the amendments to the CG Code).
Nevertheless, the appointment of all Directors (including Non-executive Directors) is subject to retirement by rotation
for re-election at the AGM at least once every three years in accordance with the Articles of Association. Moreover,
one-third of the Directors (if the number is not three or a multiple of three, then the number nearest to one-third) shall
retire from office at each AGM and be eligible for re-election by Shareholders. The retiring Directors should be those
who have been the longest in the office since their last re-election. In addition, any director appointed to fill a casual
vacancy shall hold the office only until the next following AGM and shall then be eligible for re-election by Shareholders.

Chairman and Chief Executive Officer

The role of the Chairman is performed by Dr. YIM Fung, the role of the chief executive officer of the Company (the
“Chief Executive Officer”) is performed by Ms. QI Haiying. They are separate with a clear division of responsibilities. The
Chairman is responsible for the leadership and effective running of the Board and for ensuring that decisions of the
Board are taken on a sound and informed basis and in the best interest of the Company, whereas the Chief Executive
Officer is responsible for overseeing overall day-to-day business and operations of the Company.

Board Process

The Board meets at least four times a year and at about quarterly interval. Notice of at least 14 days is given for a
regular Board meeting so as to give all Directors an opportunity to attend. Agenda accompanying board papers are
circulated to all Directors normally a week before the meeting and in any event not less than three days before the
meeting. Except for the circumstances permitted by the Articles of Association and the Listing Rules, a Director should
abstain from voting on resolutions approving any contract, transaction, arrangement or any other kind of proposal put
forward to the Board in which he/she or any of his/her close associates is materially interested. Draft and final version
of minutes of each Board meeting are circulated to Directors for their comment and record respectively.

All Directors have separate and independent access to management, and are provided with full and timely information
about the Group for them to perform their duties and responsibilities. Besides, they are provided with monthly
management updates and accounts which contain periodic financial information with summaries of key events, outlook
and business related matters of the Group.
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Attendance Record at Board Meetings, Board Committee Meetings and General
Meetings

The number of meetings of the Board, the Board committees and the general meetings held in 2022 and the
attendance record of each Director at the meetings are set out below:

Audit ~ Nomination Remuneration Risk ESG Extraordinary
Board  Committee ~ Committee ~ Committee ~ Committee ~ Committee General
Meeting Meeting Meeting Meeting Meeting Meeting AGM Meeting
No. of meetings held 5 3 1 1 2 1 1 1
Executive Directors
Dr. YIM Fung 5/5 - 1 - 2/2 - 1 I
Ms. QI Haiying 5/5 - - - - - il N
Non-executive Directors
Mr. YU Jian" 5/5 - 11 - - - 11 -
Dr. HU Xupeng'” 5/5 - - - 212 - 17 -
Ms. YU Xuping"” 5/5 - - 1A - - 1/ -
Independent Non-executive Directors
Dr. FU Tingmei® 5/5 3/3 N/A 11 212 11 17 17
Dr. SONG Ming® 1/2 1A 1A 1A N/A - 0/1 17
Mr. TSANG Yiu Keung 5/5 33 11 11 22 - i I
Professor CHAN Ka Keung Ceajer” 5/5 3/3 0/1 17 2/ - 0/1 17
Other ESG Committee Members
Mr. WANG Junhong” - - - - - 1/1 - -
Ms. ZHAO Tong"” - - - - - 11 - -
Ms. FENG Zheng Yao Helen - - - - - i - -
Mr. WONG George Ka Kui - - - - - 1 - -
Ms. DAI'Yu Hong Daisy - - - - - il - -
Ms. CHAN Man Lin Juenn® - - - - - N/A - -
Mr. NG Chi To Graham"” - - - - - N/A - -
Notes:
(1) Appointed as a Director and as a member of the relevant Committee(s) on 16 February 2022.
2) Appointed as a member of the Nomination Committee on 31 May 2022.
(3)  Retired as a Director and ceased to be a chairman/member of relevant Committee(s) on 31 May 2022.
(4)  Redesignated as a chairman from a member of the Nomination Committee on 31 May 2022.

(5) Appointed as a member of the ESG Committee on 8 December 2022.

(6) Ceased to be a member of the ESG Committee on 5 March 2022.

(7) Ceased to be a member of the ESG Committee on 8 September 2022.
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Directors’ Training and Professional Development

Each newly appointed Director shall be provided with a comprehensive and tailored induction training which covers,
among others, information about the Group’s operations and business, the roles and responsibilities of the Board
and its key committees, the Company’s governance structure and practices, and relevant rules and regulations. On
an ongoing basis, all Directors are encouraged to participate in continuous professional development to develop and
refresh their knowledge and skills. The Company also updates the Directors from time to time on the development
of the Listing Rules and other applicable laws, rules and regulations, news on corporate governance issues and
development trend of corporate governance, in order to enhance their awareness of good corporate governance
practices. During the year, the Company has arranged two sessions of in-house training for the Directors on Listing
Rules update and anti-corruption, respectively.

A summary of the training record received from each Director for the year ended 31 December 2022 is set out below:

Type of training
Attending seminars/

workshops/forums/

Name of Directors Reading materials" conferences®
Executive Directors
Dr. YIM Fung v v
Ms. QI Haiying 4 v
Non-executive Directors
Mr. YU Jian® v v
Dr. HU Xupeng® v v
Ms. YU Xuping® v v/
Independent Non-executive Directors
Dr. FU Tingmei v v
Dr. SONG Ming® v v
Mr. TSANG Yiu Keung 4 v
Professor CHAN Ka Keung Ceajer v v

Notes:

(1) Reading materials relevant to the industry, regulatory updates and monthly management reports, etc.

(2) Attending seminars/workshops/forums/conferences relevant to the industry, business and directors’ duties.

(3) Appointed as a Director on 16 February 2022.

4) Retired as a Director on 31 May 2022.
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Corporate Governance Functions
The Board, directly and indirectly through its committees, is responsible for, and has reviewed and performed during
the year, the corporate governance duties, including:

(@) to develop and review the Company’s policies and practice on corporate governance;

(b)  to review and monitor internal control and risk management framework and system;

(c) to review and monitor the training and continuous professional development of directors and senior management;
(d)  to review and monitor the Company’s policies and practice on compliance with legal and regulatory requirements;

(e) to develop, review and monitor the code of conduct and the Compliance Manual which applicable to employees
and directors; and

(f)  to review the Company’s compliance with the CG Code and disclosure in this report.

Board Committees

Under the Board, there are Board committees, namely Audit Committee, Remuneration Committee, Nomination
Committee and Risk Committee as well as a functional committee, namely ESG Committee. All these committees
perform their distinct roles in accordance with their respective terms of reference.

Nomination Committee

The Nomination Committee currently comprises five Directors, including one Executive Director, being Dr. YIM Fung
and three Independent Non-executive Directors, being Professor CHAN Ka Keung Ceajer (chairman), Mr. TSANG Yiu
Keung and Dr. FU Tingmei, and one Non-executive Director, being Mr. YU Jian. For the change of its composition
during the year, please refer to the section headed under the “Corporate Information” of this report.

Under its terms of reference, which has been amended on 28 March 2022, the duties of the Nomination Committee
include, but not limited to, setting out the nomination procedures and the process and criteria to select and
recommend candidates for directorship, reviewing the structure and size and composition of the Board, assessing
the independence of independent non-executive directors, making recommendations to the Board on the selection
of individuals nominated for directorships, and reviewing the implementation and effectiveness of the mechanism
of ensuring independent views and input are available to the Board. The full terms of reference of the Nomination
Committee are available on the websites of both the Company and the Stock Exchange.

The meeting attendance of each member of the Nomination Committee is set out in the paragraph headed “Attendance
Record at Board Meetings, Board Committee Meetings and General Meetings” of this section.

During the year, the Nomination Committee reviewed the structure, size and composition of the Board and opined
that it has the skills, experience and diversity perspective appropriate to the requirements of the Company’s business,
reviewed and recommended to the Board in relation to the re-election of the retiring Directors at the AGM held in 2022
as well as assessed the independence of the Independent Non-executive Directors. The Nomination Committee also
reviewed the implementation and effectiveness of the mechanism of ensuring independent views and input are available
to the Board, details are set out in the paragraph headed “Board Independence” in this section.
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Nomination Policy

The Board has adopted the Nomination Policy, with a view to give an adequate consideration on a balanced
composition of the Board, the policy sets out the ways to identify potential candidates, selection criteria, selection
process and appointment or re-appointment procedures with regard to the nomination and appointment of
directors. The selection criteria in assessing the suitability of potential candidates includes, but not limited to, their
professionalism and personal ethics, board experience, expertise, time commitment and measurable objectives set out
in the Board Diversity Policy. The Nomination Committee may use any process it considers appropriate for evaluating
and shortlisting candidates, which may include, personal interviews, background checks, written submission by the
candidates and third party references.

The selection process for each of their appointments shall be evaluated using a substantially similar process and shall
be fair and transparent. The Nomination Committee is responsible for reviewing this policy to ensure the effectiveness
of this policy.

Board Diversity

The Board has adopted the Board Diversity Policy, which is available on the Company’s website. The Company
recognizes the benefits of having a diverse Board to enhance the standards of corporate governance and to realize
a sustainable and balanced development. The Company seeks to achieve board diversity with a number of aspects
includes, but not limited to, gender, age, cultural and educational background, ethnicity, professional experience,
skills, knowledge and length of service. All Board appointments shall be based on meritocracy, and candidates shall
be considered against objective criteria, having due regard for the benefits of diversity of the Board. The Nomination
Committee is responsible for reviewing this policy to ensure the effectiveness of this policy. During the year, the
Nomination Committee has reviewed the Board diversity based on these aspects and considered that it has a balanced
diversity. The Board diversity matrix as at 31 December 2022 is set out in the paragraph headed “Board Composition”
of this section.

During 2022, one new female Director joined the Board, bringing the female Directors to two (representing 25% of
the Board), the proportion is higher than the average of companies listed on the Stock Exchange in financial sector
(according to the data from the website of the Stock Exchange). In considering the Board’s succession, the Nomination
Committee will deploy multiple channels for identifying suitable director candidates, including referral from Directors,
Shareholders, management, advisors of the Company and external executive search firms, etc. The Board targets to
maintain at least the current proportion level of female Directors, and will continue to take opportunities to increase
the proportion of female board members over time when suitable candidates are identified with an ultimate goal of
achieving gender parity.

For details of human capital diversity, please refer to the paragraph headed “Human Capital Diversity and Remuneration
Policies” under the section of “Management Discussion and Analysis” of this report.
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Remuneration Committee

The Remuneration Committee currently comprises four Directors, including three Independent Non-executive Directors,
being Dr. FU Tingmei (chairman), Mr. TSANG Yiu Keung and Professor CHAN Ka Keung Ceajer and one Non-executive
Director, being Ms. YU Xuping. For the change of its composition during the year, please refer to the section headed
under the “Corporate Information” of this report.

The Company adopted the model whereby the Remuneration Committee is responsible for determining, with delegated
responsibility, the remuneration package of individual executive director and senior management according to its
terms of reference. Under its terms of reference, which has been amended on 12 December 2022, the duties of the
Remuneration Committee also include, but not limited to, making recommendation to the Board on the remuneration
matters for non-executive directors, setting up of formal and transparent procedure for developing remuneration policy,
and considering the matters relating to any share schemes. The full terms of reference of the Remuneration Committee
are available on the websites of both the Company and the Stock Exchange.

No director or any of his/her associates is allowed to determine his/her own remuneration. In determining the
remuneration of executive director and senior management, the Remuneration Committee shall consider factors
such as salaries paid by comparable companies, time commitment and their responsibilities, employment conditions,
desirability of performance-based remuneration and the performance of the Company as well as the individual
executive director or senior management according to relevant remuneration policy of the Company.

The meeting attendance of each member of the Remuneration Committee is set out in the paragraph headed
“Attendance Record at Board Meetings, Board Committee Meetings and General Meetings” of this section.

During the year, the Remuneration Committee assessed the performance of Executive Directors, reviewed and
approved the proposal for the remuneration of Executive Directors and senior management, and approved the renewal

of contract with Executive Directors.

The remuneration by band for the year of the senior management as at 31 December 2022 is set out below:

Number of
Remuneration bands individuals
HK$9,000,000 or below 2
HK$9,000,001 to HK$12,000,000 2

The particulars regarding Directors’ and chief executive’s emoluments are set out in note 35 to the financial statements
of this report.
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Audit Committee

The Audit Committee currently comprises three Independent Non-executive Directors, being Mr. TSANG Yiu Keung
(chairman), Dr. FU Tingmei, and Professor CHAN Ka Keung Ceajer, all of them are equipped with commercial and
financial skills and experiences required for understanding of accounting information. The chairman of the Audit
Committee has professional accounting qualification. For the change of its composition during the year, please refer to
the section headed under the “Corporate Information” of this report.

Under its terms of reference, the duties of the Audit Committee include, but not limited to, making recommendations on
the appointment of external auditor and monitoring the independence and objectivity of external audit, overseeing the
integrity of financial information and financial reporting system, supervising the internal control system and internal audit
functions and ensuring such functions are adequately resourced. The full terms of reference of the Audit Committee are
available on the websites of both the Company and the Stock Exchange.

The meeting attendance of each member of the Audit Committee is set out in the paragraph headed “Attendance
Record at Board Meetings, Board Committee Meetings and General Meetings” of this section.

The major work performed by the Audit Committee during the year included:

(@) reviewed the 2021 annual results (including annual financial statements, annual report and final results
announcement) and 2022 interim results (including interim financial statements, interim report and interim results
announcement) and recommended the same to the Board for approval;

(b) reviewed reports submitted by external auditor on its statutory audit of the 2021 annual financial statements and
its review of the 2022 interim financial statements, and made recommendations on the control matters in relation
to accounting, internal audit and financial reporting functions;

(c) reviewed the external auditor’s statutory audit plan for 2022, reporting obligations and the terms of engagement;

(d) reviewed the independence and objectivity of the external auditor, the scope and nature of audit and non-audit
services and audit-related and non-audit fees;

(e) reviewed the representation letters submitted by each of relevant departments on its effectiveness of internal
control functions;

(f)  reviewed reports submitted by internal auditor on the efficiency of internal control system of the Group, including
the audit findings and recommendations, and the implementation status of audit-related recommendations;

(9) reviewed the adequacy on staffing and resources of the internal audit function and the internal audit plan for
2023;

(h)  reviewed the adequacy on staffing and resources, staff qualifications and experience, training programmes and
budget of the accounting and financial reporting function; and

(i) reviewed the continuing connected transactions undertaken by the Group and the letter on continuing connected
transactions issued by the external auditor.
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Internal Control

The Board acknowledges its responsibility of overseeing the Group’s systems on risk management and internal control
and reviews their effectiveness through meetings of the Risk Committee and the Audit Committee at least twice a year
and at least three times a year respectively. To facilitate the effective and efficient operations and to ensure compliance
with relevant laws and regulations, the Group emphasizes the importance of a sound internal control system which
is also indispensable for mitigating the Group’s risk (including ESG risks) exposures. The Group’s system of internal
control is designed to provide a reasonable, but not absolute, assurance against material misstatement or loss and
to manage and eliminate risks of failure in operational systems and fulfilment of the business objectives. The internal
control system is reviewed on an ongoing basis by the Board in order to make it practical and effective in providing
reasonable assurance in relation to protection of material assets and identification of business risks. The Group is
committed to the identification, monitoring and management of risks associated with business activities and has
implemented a practical and effective control system which includes a defined management structure with limits of
authority, a sound risk management system and periodic review of the Group’s performance by the Audit Committee
and the Risk Committee.

Internal Audit

The Company has an independent internal audit team, which plays an important role in providing objective assurance
to the Board that a sound internal control system is maintained and operated by management. The head of the internal
audit team directly reports to the Audit Committee on audit matters. By adopting a risk-based approach to evaluate
risk level on control environment, the internal audit team makes their audit schedules annually in consultation with, but
independent of, the management, and the audit plan is submitted to the Audit Committee for approval. The head of the
internal audit team shall periodically present audit reports and express opinion to the Audit Committee on the internal
control of the audit units. The annual audit work plan covers major activities and processes of the Group’s operating
business. Moreover, special reviews shall be conducted on request of the Audit Committee or the management.

The Audit Committee has reviewed the adequacy of resources, qualifications and experience of staff of the internal
audit functions, and their training programmes and budget, and considered that the staffing is adequate and the staffs
are competent to carry out their roles and responsibilities, and the performance of the internal audit functions for the
year under review was efficient.

External Auditor
Following the retirement of Ernst & Young as the auditor of the Company at the AGM held on 21 May 2020, KPMG,
Certified Public Accountants, was appointed as the auditor of the Company by the Shareholders at that AGM.

During the year ended 31 December 2022, KPMG, Certified Public Accountants, was re-appointed as the external
auditor of the Company. The remunerations paid/payable by the Group to the external auditors are set out as follows:

Other external

KPMG auditor Total
Services rendered HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
Audit services 3,807 610 4,417
Interim review services 1,015 - 1,015
Compliance and other consultancy services 1,320 - 1,320

Total 6,142 610 6,752
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Risk Committee

The Risk Committee currently comprises five Directors, including one Executive Director, being Dr. YIM Fung, and
three Independent Non-executive Directors, being Professor CHAN Ka Keung Ceajer (chairman), Dr. FU Tingmei, and
Mr. TSANG Yiu Keung and one Non-executive Director, being Dr. HU Xupeng. For the change of its composition during
the year, please refer to the section headed under the “Corporate Information” of this report.

Under its terms of reference, the duties of the Risk Committee include, but not limited to, overseeing management in
design, implementation and monitoring of risk management system and ensuring it has an effective system, advising
the Board on the Group’s overall risk appetite and principles, approving the Group’s risk policies and risk tolerance,
and reviewing major investigation findings on risk management matters as well as significant risk control failings or
weaknesses where identified.

The meeting attendance of each member of the Risk Committee is set out in the paragraph headed “Attendance
Record at Board meetings, Board Committee Meetings and General Meetings” of this section.

During the year, the Risk Committee has discussed with the management to ensure that the management has
performed its duty to have effective risk management system, including the changes, since last review, the nature and
extent of significant risks faced by the Group and its ability to respond to the changes.

Risk Management

The Board has overall responsibility of evaluating and determining the risk appetite and risk tolerance (including ESG
risks) that the Group is willing to take in achieving its strategic objectives, maintaining a sound risk management
system and reviewing its effectiveness on a regular basis.

The Risk Committee has approved the Group’s Risk Framework, which sets out the risk culture and governance,
defining the risk appetite and risk limit, key risk types and overall risk management process. The Risk Framework
serves as an outline of the Group’s overall risk management system and process, which facilitates the Board to identify
and assess the nature and extent of significant risks (including ESG risks), the Group’s ability to respond to changes
in its business and the external environment, as well as the scope and quality of management’s ongoing risk (including
ESG risks) monitoring and related internal control measures.

The Group’s risk management framework is embodied by the three-tier system, the Risk Committee, which delegated
by the Board, being the first-tier level, whereas the Risk Management Committee, consists of management members
from frontline and internal control functions, being the second-tier level, along with the third-tier level under the Risk
Management Committee, i.e. Risk Management Department, other risk control departments and working groups,
which manage day-to-day specific risks. All significant risks (including ESG risks), material changes and the associated
mitigating actions to enhance the accountability and quality of risk management process shall be reported to the Risk
Committee through the chief risk officer of the Group or the ESG Committee through designated risk management staff
(as the case may be). For details, please refer to the 2022 ESG Report of the Company.
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Review of Risk Management and Internal Control Effectiveness

For the year ended 31 December 2022, the Board has reviewed the effectiveness of the Group’s risk (including ESG
risks) management and internal control systems through two meetings of the Risk Committee, three meetings of the
Audit Committee and one meeting of the ESG Committee respectively, covering all material controls, including financial,
operational and compliance controls, and is of the view that the Group’s risk (including ESG risks) management and
internal control systems are effective and adequate to safeguard the interests of Shareholders and the Company as a
whole.

ESG Committee

The ESG Committee currently comprises six members, including one Independent Non-executive Director, being Dr. FU
Tingmei (chairman), together with other management members and heads of relevant departments, namely, Mr. WANG
Junhong, Ms. ZHAO Tong, Ms. FENG Zheng Yao Helen, Mr. WONG George Ka Kui, and Ms. DAI Yu Hong Daisy. On 5
March 2022 and 8 September 2022, Ms. CHAN Man Lin Juenn and Mr. NG Chi To Graham ceased to be a member of
the ESG Committee, respectively. The ESG Committee is a functional committee established by the Board and assists
the Board to oversee matters relating to sustainability development and ESG (including climate change issues) of the
Group, covering governance, policies, objectives and strategy, performance and reporting, and reports to the Board
regularly.

The meeting attendance of each member of the ESG Committee is set out in the paragraph headed “Attendance
Record at Board Meetings, Board Committee Meetings and General Meetings” of this section.

The major work performed by the ESG Committee during the year included:
(@) recommended to the Board for the adoption of Climate Change Policy;

(b) recommended to the Board for the nomination of ESG Committee members and approved the new ESG
governance structure taking into the considerations of the personnel experience and qualifications;

(c) scrutinized the performance of Low-carbon Office Functional Division, ESG Disclosure Functional Division and
Sustainable Finance Functional Division and considered the adequacy of their resources (such as training and
budget);

(d) approved the environmental targets and plans for ensuing year;

(e) approved the community investment plans and budgets for ensuing year;

(f)  considered and confirmed the stakeholder materiality assessment results, and monitored the ESG-related trends
and issues in understanding emerging ESG matters that affected or may affect the Group’s operations and made
recommendations to the Board on areas for improvement; and

(9) endorsed the ESG report for 2021.

For further details, please refer to the 2022 ESG Report of the Company.
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Anti-Corruption and Whistleblowing

The Group attaches great importance to integrity and anti-corruption and is committed to the highest standard
of business ethics, with zero tolerance for bribery and corruption activities. The Company has its anti-bribery and
anti-corruption policies in place, which sets the ‘tone from the top’ against all bribery and corruption behaviors and
ensure the effectiveness of the Group’s anti-bribery and anti-corruption framework, all staff must be familiar with them
as well as the relevant laws and regulations when conducting business. The Anti-bribery and Corruption Manual has
been upgraded as a standalone policy from the existing policies of the Company during the year.

Moreover, the Company also upholds the principles of openness, probity and accountability and has its whistleblowing
mechanism and complaint handling procedure in place, employees and those who deal with the Group (e.g.
customers, suppliers, creditors and debtors) are encouraged to report to the Company, in confidence and anonymity,
any suspected impropriety, misconduct or malpractice within the Group. The Whistleblowing Policy has been upgraded
as a standalone policy from the existing policies of the Company in March 2023. This policy is available on the website
of the Company.

For further details on anti-corruption and whistleblowing practices, please refer to the 2022 ESG Report of Company.

Anti-Money Laundering and Counter Financing of Terrorism

The Group pledges to actively prevent money laundering and terrorist financing and comply with applicable laws and
regulations in respect of anti-money laundering and counter-terrorist financing in relevant jurisdictions during the course
of business, such as the Anti-Money Laundering and Counter-Terrorist Financing Ordinance (Cap. 615 of the Laws of
Hong Kong), and continuously to assume its anti-money laundering obligations. For further details, please refer to the
2022 ESG Report of Company.

Handling and Dissemination of Inside Information

For the purpose of handling and disseminating inside information in accordance with the Listing Rules and the
Securities and Futures Ordinance (Cap. 571 of the Laws of Hong Kong) (the “SFQ”), the Group has a policy on
disclosure of inside information with various procedures and measures, including arousing the awareness to preserve
confidentiality of inside information within the Group, implementing Chinese walls between certain departments,
imposing control on information flow, sending blackout period and securities dealing restriction notifications to the
directors and relevant employees, and disseminating information to specific persons on a need-to-know basis. In all
cases, great care must be taken to ensure that no inside information will be disclosed to selected outsiders.
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Directors’ Securities Transactions

The Company has adopted the Model Code for Securities Transactions by Directors of Listed Issuers (the “Model
Code”) sets out in Appendix 10 of the Listing Rules as its code of conduct regarding securities transactions by the
directors and employees. On specific enquiry made by the Company, all Directors confirmed that they have complied
with the required standards as set out in the Model Code throughout the year of 2022.

Directors’ Responsibilities on Financial Statements

The Directors acknowledge their responsibilities of supervising the preparation of financial statements of each financial
period which shall consistently adopt suitable accounting policies and to comply with the accounting standards issued
by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants and to reflect the financial position, the results and cash
flows of the Company during the year in a true and fair manner.

Company Secretary

The Company Secretary, Ms. FENG Zheng Yao Helen was appointed by the Board. She is an employee of the
Company and responsible for facilitating the Board’s processes and communications among Board members,
Shareholders and management. She has confirmed her compliance with the requirements of at least 15 hours of
relevant professional training under Rule 3.29 of the Listing Rules during the year of 2022.

Dividend Policy

The Company endeavors to reward Shareholders with stable dividend income while retaining adequate reserves for
its future development. The Company aims to distribute to Shareholders with regular dividends semi-annually with
a certain percentage of attributable profit and may also distribute special dividends from special income. In order to
better reflect the Company’s dividend target, while retaining flexibility in determining the actual dividend payout ratio
by the Board based on the market conditions and the Company’s performance, on 25 August 2022, the Board has
amended its annual dividend target of “approximately 30% to 50% of net profit after tax of the Company” to “not less
than 30% of profit attributable to Shareholders” by removing the upper payout limit of 50% from the Dividend Policy
of the Company, subject to the economic conditions as well as the Company’s position. The dividend payout ratio
analysis for past years is set out under the section headed “Financial Highlights” of this report. The summary of the
Dividend Policy and the dividend statistics are available on the website of the Company.

Constitutional Documents

There was no change to the constitutional documents of the Company during the year 2022.
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Communication with Shareholders

Effective Communication

The Board recognizes the importance of effective communication with Shareholders and other stakeholders and
maintains an ongoing dialogue through various means to ensure Shareholders and other stakeholders are provided with
balanced, clear, transparent and timely information about the Company to facilitate their understanding of the Group’s
performance, strategic plan, ESG related initiatives and growth prospects, etc. Different communication channels for
Shareholders and other stakeholders to communicate their views on various matters affecting the Group are set out
in the Shareholders Communication Policy, and based on the steps taken in 2022, the Board is of the view that the
shareholders’ communication mechanism is effective, a summary of which is disclosed as follows. The Shareholders
Communication Policy is available on the website of the Company.

. Website (www.gtjai.com). Corporate communications such as annual and interim reports, ESG report,
announcements, circulars and notices of general meetings as well as other information such as press releases,
business development and operations are available on the website of the Company. All publications made on
the website of the Stock Exchange during the year had been synchronized on the website of the Company
automatically.

. General Meetings. General meetings have always been the most traditional platform for face-to-face
communication between the Board and Shareholders, where separate resolutions are proposed on each motion
at the general meetings. An EGM and an AGM were held on 16 February 2022 and 31 May 2022, respectively.
In the interest of health and wellbeing of Shareholders, staff and other members of the community amid the
prevailing COVID-19 pandemic, special arrangements were adopted for general meetings held during the year
in order to minimize attendance in person, Shareholders were enabled to vote online and ask questions through
electronic means.

° Investor Relations. The Company held two live webcasts of analyst briefing conference after its results
announcement in 2022. The webcast replays of the last two years’ results announcement conferences are
available on the website of the Company. Besides, the investor relations (“IR”) team of the Company, under the
supervision of the Company Secretary, is designated to receive and respond to the inquiries from, and arrange
meetings with, investors and media community. The IR team can be reached by ir@gtjas.com.hk. Stakeholders
may also at any time send their enquiries to the Board in writing through the Company Secretary (contact
information as shown below).

. Social Media Platforms. Marketing and business activities related information is made regularly on the social
platforms, such as WeChat, LinkedIn, Facebook as well as YouTube, while the Company is able to solicit and
receive feedback from Shareholders and other stakeholders through these platforms.

Further information about the Company’s stakeholder engagement activities during the year is set out in the 2022 ESG
Report of the Company.
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Shareholders’ Rights

Subject to the applicable laws and regulations, including but not limited to, the Companies Ordinance (Chapter 622
of the Laws of Hong Kong) (the “CQO”), the Listing Rules and the Articles of Association as amended from time to
time, Shareholder(s) may call general meeting, put forward proposals at AGM and direct enquiries to the Board in
accordance with the following procedures:

Convening an Extraordinary General Meeting by Shareholders

Shareholder(s) holding at the date of the deposit of the requisition not less than one-twentieth of the paid up capital of
the Company may request the directors to convene an extraordinary general meeting pursuant to Section 566 to 568
of the CO.

In accordance with sections 566 of the CO, the directors are required to call a general meeting if the Company has
received requests to do so from Shareholder(s) representing at least 5% of the total voting rights of all the Shareholders
having a right to vote at general meeting. Such requests must state the general nature of the business to be dealt with
at the meeting; and may include the text of a resolution that may properly be moved and is intended to be moved at
the meeting. Such requests may be sent to the Company and attention to the Board or the Company Secretary in hard
copy form (by depositing at the registered office of the Company at 27/F., Low Block, Grand Millennium Plaza, 181
Queen’s Road Central, Hong Kong) or in electronic form (by fax: 2509-0030); and must be authenticated by the person
or persons making it. In accordance with Section 567 of the CO, the directors must call a meeting within 21 days after
the date on which they become subject to the requirement under Section 566 of the CO and such meeting must be
held on a date not more than 28 days after the date of the notice convening the meeting.

Putting Forward Proposals at AGM
To put forward a resolution at AGM, Shareholder(s) is/are requested to follow the requirements and procedures set out
in Section 615 and 616 of the CO.

Section 615 of the CO provides that the Company must give notice of a resolution if it has received requested to do so
from (a) the Shareholder(s) representing at least 2.5% of the total voting rights of all the Shareholders who have a right
to vote on the resolution at the AGM to which the requests relate; or (b) at least 50 Shareholders who have the rights
to vote on the resolution at the AGM to which the requests relate.

Such requests (a) may be sent to the Company and attention to the Board or the Company Secretary in hard copy
form (by depositing at the registered office of the Company at 27/F., Low Block, Grand Millennium Plaza, 181 Queen’s
Road Central, Hong Kong) or in electronic form (by fax: 2509-0030); (b) must identify the resolution of which notice is
to be given; (c) must be authenticated by the person or persons making it; and (d) must be received by the Company
not later than (i) 6 weeks before the AGM to which the requests relate; or (i) if later, the time at which notice is given of
that meeting. Section 616 of the CO provides that the Company that is required under Section 615 of the CO to give
notice of a resolution must send a copy of it at the Company’s own expense to each Shareholder entitled to receive
notice of the AGM (a) in the same manner as the notice of the meeting; and (b) at the same time as, or as soon as
reasonably practicable after, it gives notice of the meeting.

The procedures for Shareholders to propose a person for election as a director can be found on the website of the
Company at www.gtjai.com.
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Procedures for Directing Enquiries to the Board

Enquiries to the Board

The Board is grateful to Shareholders and other stakeholders for their continued support and welcomes their views
as well as any questions they may have about the management and governance of the Company. Shareholders and
stakeholders may at any time send their enquiries and concerns to the Board in writing through the Company Secretary
at the contact details below:

Registered office: 27/F., Low Block, Grand Millennium Plaza, 181 Queen’s Road Central, Hong Kong
Email: comsec@gtjas.com.hk

Tel: (852) 2509-9118

Fax: (852) 2509-0030

Share Registration Related Matters

For share registration related matters, such as share transfer and registration, change of name or address, loss of
share certificates or dividend warrants, Shareholders can contact the share registrar of the Company, at the contact
details below:

Name: Computershare Hong Kong Investor Services Limited

Address: Shops 1712-1716, 17th Floor, Hopewell Centre, No. 183 Queen’s Road East, Wanchai, Hong Kong
Website: https://www.computershare.com/hk/zh/contact-us

Tel: (852) 2862-8555

Fax: (852) 2865-0990
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Executive Director

Dr. YIM Fung, Jr, aged 60, the Chairman since August 2012 and an Executive Director since March 2010. Dr. YIM is
concurrently a member of the Risk Committee and the Nomination Committee of the Company. Dr. YIM is a director
of various subsidiaries of the Company, including Guotai Junan Securities (Vietnam) Corp. (formerly known as Vietnam
Investment Securities Company) (stock code: IVS.HN), which is listed on the Hanoi Stock Exchange in Vietnam. In
addition, he is also a director and the general manager of Guotai Junan Financial Holdings Limited, the controlling
shareholder of the Company, and a director of its subsidiary. He acted as the Vice-chairman of the Company and
the Chief Executive Officer during the period from March 2010 to August 2012 and during the period from March
2010 to 13 December 2021, respectively. Dr. YIM joined the Group in 1993. He has over 30 years of experience in
the securities industry. Dr. YIM is a Senior Economist and holds a doctorate degree in Economics from the Graduate
School of the Chinese Academy of Social Sciences and a bachelor’'s degree in Environmental Engineering from the
Tsinghua University. Dr. YIM was an independent non-executive director of Shenzhen International Holdings Limited
(stock code: 152.HK) during the period from 2017 to 15 May 2020.

At present, he is a member of the 14th National Committee of the Chinese People’s Political Consultative Conference,
a director and vice chairman of the Hong Kong Chinese Enterprises Association, the honorary life president of Chinese
Securities Association of Hong Kong Company Limited, a director and standing committee member of the Chinese
General Chamber of Commerce and the life president of the Tsinghua Alumni Association of Hong Kong.

Ms. QI Haiying, aged 41, an Executive Director since March 2015 and the Chief Executive Officer since 14 December
2021 and is responsible for the overall business management of the Group. Ms. QI is concurrently a director of various
subsidiaries of the Company. Ms. QI was the Deputy Chief Executive Officer of the Company since March 2015 until
13 December 2021. Prior joining to the Group, Ms. QI worked for Shenzhen Supervision Bureau of the China Securities
Regulatory Commission and was responsible for regulatory supervision of securities companies and listed companies
between 2004 and 2012. In 2012, Ms. QI joined Guotai Junan Securities Co., Ltd. (stock code: 2611.HK; 601211.SH),
the parent company, and held the positions as deputy general manager in compliance department and strategic
management department respectively. Ms. QI holds a master’s degree in Financial Economics from the London School
of Economics and Political Science (LSE) and a bachelor’'s degree in International Economics and Trade from the
University of International Business and Economics (UIBE) in China.

At present, Ms. Ql is a member of All-China Youth Federation, a member of All-China Financial Youth Federation, a
deputy director of International Cooperation Committee of Securities Association of China, a director and vice president
of Chinese Asset Management Association of Hong Kong Limited and the vice president of Youth Committee of the
Hong Kong Chinese Enterprises Association.
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Non-executive Director

Mr. YU Jian, aged 59, a Non-executive Director since 16 February 2022. Mr. YU is also a member of the Nomination
Committee of the Company. Mr. YU joined Guotai Junan Securities Co., Ltd. (stock code: 2611.HK; 601211.SH),
the parent company, in 1993, and is currently an executive director and the secretary to the board of Guotai Junan
Securities Co., Ltd. and a director of Guotai Junan Financial Holdings Limited, the controlling shareholder of the
Company. Mr. YU has over 29 years of experience in the securities industry. Prior to his current role, Mr. YU was a
project head of the science department of the research institution under the Ministry of Aerospace for seven years.
Mr. YU obtained a master’s degree in Business Administration jointly granted by the Shanghai National Accounting
Institute and the Arizona State University and a bachelor’s degree in Engineering from the Beijing Institute of
Aeronautics (currently known as Beihang University).

Dr. HU Xupeng, aged 47, a Non-executive Director since 16 February 2022. Dr. HU is also a member of the Risk
Committee of the Company. Dr. HU Xupeng joined the group of Guotai Junan Securities Co., Ltd. (stock code:
2611.HK; 601211.SH), the parent company, in 2013, and is currently the general manager of the risk management
department of Guotai Junan Securities Co., Ltd and a director of Guotai Junan Financial Holdings Limited, the
controlling shareholder of the Company. Prior to his current role, Dr. HU was a prosecution officer of the Criminal
Prosecution Division and the Arrest Division of the People’s Procuratorate of Bengbu City in Anhui Province, a
legal specialist of the security department of Shanghai Pudong Development Bank headquarter, and held several
management positions in Zhonghai Trust Co., Ltd.. Dr. HU has over 20 years of experience in the financial industry.
Dr. HU obtained a doctorate degree in Law and a master’s degree in Law from the East China University of Political
Science and Law.

Ms. YU Xuping, aged 42, a Non-executive Director since 16 February 2022. Ms. YU is also a member of the
Remuneration Committee of the Company. Ms. YU joined Guotai Junan Securities Co., Ltd. (stock code: 2611.HK;
601211.SH), the parent company, in 2007, and held various positions in different departments, including the audit
department, retail customer department, integrated management team for committee of economic affairs and treasury
department. Ms. YU is currently the general manager of asset and liability department of Guotai Junan Securities Co.,
Ltd.. Prior to her current role, Ms. YU worked for Shanghai Mingpin Shangsha Co., Ltd.( 8 & g EAR A ).
Ms. YU has over 15 years of experience in the securities industry. Ms. YU obtained a master’s degree in Business
Administration from the Shanghai University of Finance and Economics. She is a member of the Chinese Institute of
Certified Public Accountants and holds the Certificate of Certified Internal Auditor.
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Independent Non-executive Director

Dr. FU Tingmei, aged 56, an Independent Non-executive Director since June 2010. Dr. FU is currently the chairman
of the Remuneration Committee and the ESG Committee as well as a member of the Audit Committee, the Risk
Committee and the Nomination Committee of the Company. Dr. FU has extensive experiences in investment, finance,
law and business management. Between 1992 and 2003, he conducted many corporate finance transactions in several
investment banking firms based in Hong Kong, including serving as a director of Peregrine Capital Limited, and a
deputy managing director and subsequently a managing director of BNP Paribas Peregrine Capital Limited. Dr. FU is
currently engaged in private investment business. Presently, he is also an independent non-executive director of China
Resources Pharmaceutical Group Limited (stock code: 3320.HK), China Resources Medical Holdings Company Limited
(stock code: 1515.HK) and COFCO Joycome Foods Limited (formerly known as COFCO Meat Holdings Limited) (stock
code: 1610.HK). He was an independent non-executive director of CPMC Holdings Limited (stock code: 906.HK) and
Beijing Enterprises Holdings Limited (stock code: 392.HK). Dr. FU was also an independent non-executive director of
Postal Savings Bank of China Co., Ltd (stock code: 1658.HK) during the period from 2016 to 10 March 2023. Dr. FU
graduated from the University of London with a doctorate degree and a master’s degree in Law in 1993 and 1989,
respectively.

Mr. TSANG Yiu Keung, aged 69, an Independent Non-executive Director since 2010. Mr. TSANG is also the
chairman of the Audit Committee and a member of the Remuneration Committee, the Nomination Committee and
the Risk Committee of the Company. Mr. TSANG joined KPMG in 1975 and retired as a senior banking partner
in 2003. At present, Mr. TSANG is an independent non-executive director of L. K. Technology Holdings Limited
(stock code: 558.HK). Mr. TSANG was an independent non-executive director of China CITIC Bank International
Limited, a licensed bank in Hong Kong, and CITIC International Financial Holdings Limited, from 2004 to 2017.
Mr. TSANG holds a higher diploma in Accountancy from the Hong Kong Polytechnic University. He is also a fellow
member of the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants, the Association of Chartered Certified Accountants
and the Chartered Governance Institute/Institute of Chartered Secretaries and Administrators.

Professor CHAN Ka Keung Ceajer, GBS, s8s, JP, aged 66, an Independent Non-executive Director since August 2018.
Professor CHAN is concurrently the chairman of the Risk Committee and the Nomination Committee and a member of
the Audit Committee and the Remuneration Committee of the Company. At present, he is also an adjunct professor
of the Business School of the Hong Kong University of Science and Technology (“HKUST”). He was appointed as
the secretary for Financial Services and the Treasury of the Government of the Hong Kong Special Administrative
Region from 2007 to 2017. Prior to that, he was the dean of the HKUST Business School. Before joining the HKUST
in 1993, Professor CHAN taught for nine years at the Ohio State University in the United States. Professor CHAN was
a non-executive director of MTR Corporation Limited (stock code: 66.HK) and The Hong Kong Mortgage Corporation
Limited. He is currently an independent non-executive director of Langham Hospitality Investments and Langham
Hospitality Investments Limited (stock code: 1270.HK), China Overseas Land & Investment Ltd. (stock code: 688.HK),
NWS Holdings Limited (stock code: 659.HK) and Hong Kong Aerospace Technology Group Limited (stock code:
1725.HK). He is also a chairman of WelLab Bank Limited (formerly known as Welab Digital Limited), a senior advisor
of WelLab Holdings Limited, an independent non-executive director of CMB International Capital Corporation Limited
and Greater Bay Area Homeland Investments Limited, a director and member of One Country Two Systems Research
Institute and a member of the Competition Commission of Hong Kong. Professor CHAN holds a bachelor’s degree in
Economics from the Wesleyan University and followed by M.B.A. and Ph.D. in Finance from the University of Chicago.
He specialized in assets pricing, evaluation of trading strategies and market efficiency and has published numerous
articles on these topics.



Guotai Junan International | Annual Report 2022 103

Biographies of the Directors and Senior Management

Senior Management

Mr. LAl Changhua, aged 56, the Chief Risk Officer of the Group since December 2017 and responsible for overall risk
management of the Group. He joined the Group in October 2015. Before that, Mr. LAl held a management role in the
risk management departments of several international investment banks, with over 25 years of experience in financial
markets and risk management. Mr. LAl holds a master’s degree in Economics from the Nankai University, a master’s
degree in Business Administration from the Western Sydney University and a bachelor’s degree in Engineering from the
Sichuan University. He is also a certified FRM (Financial Risk Manager) and PRM (Professional Risk Manager).

Mr. AO Qishun, aged 36, the Chief Financial Officer of the Group since 14 December 2021. He joined Guotai Junan
Securities Co., Ltd. (stock code: 2611.HK; 601211.SH), the parent of the Company, in 2011 and was the head of
information disclosure and investor relations in the planning and finance department and acted as the head of finance
of Guotai Junan Financial Holdings Limited, the controlling shareholder of the Company. Prior to these roles, he
worked for Pricewaterhouse Coopers in Shanghai and Ping An Asset Management Co., Ltd., respectively. Mr. AO has
over 14 years of experience in audit and finance areas. Mr. AO obtained a master’s degree in Business Administration
from the East China Normal University and a bachelor’s degree in Investment Economics from the Shanghai University
of Finance and Economics. In addition, he is a member of the Chinese Institute of Professional Risk Manager and
holds the qualifications as a Certified Professional Risk Manager (CPRM) and an International Project Management
Professional (IPMP).
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The Directors have the pleasure in presenting to Shareholders this annual report together with the audited consolidated
financial statements of the Group for the year ended 31 December 2022.

Principal Activities and Business Review

The Company is an investment holding company and its subsidiaries are principally engaged in brokerage, corporate
finance, asset management, loans and financing, financial products, market making and investments. There were no
significant changes in the nature of the Group’s principal activities during the year.

Further discussion and analysis of the business review as required by Schedule 5 of the CO, including a description of
the principal risks and uncertainties facing the Group, important events affecting the Group that have occurred since
the end of this financial year and an indication of likely future development in the Group’s business are set out in the
sections of “Chairman’s Statement”, “Management Discussion and Analysis” and “Notes to the Financial Statements”
in this report and the sub-sections of “Risk Management” and “ESG Risk Management” in the 2022 ESG Report of the
Company.

Results and Dividends

The results of the Group for the year ended 31 December 2022 are set out in the consolidated statement of profit or
loss and other comprehensive income on page 131 of this report.

The Board recommended a final special dividend of HK$0.010 per Share for the year ended 31 December 2022,
subject to the approval by Shareholders at the forthcoming AGM to be held on Monday, 22 May 2023, and will be
payable on Friday, 16 June 2023 to Shareholders whose names appear on the register of members of the Company on
Tuesday, 30 May 2023. Together with an interim dividend of HK$0.010 per Share and a special dividend of HK$0.030
per Share which were paid on 26 September 2022, the total dividends for the year ended 31 December 2022 will
amount to HK$0.050 per Share (2021: an interim dividend of HK$0.050 per Share and a final dividend of HK$0.010
per Share, total dividends for the year amounted to HK$0.060 per Share). Details of the dividend amount are set out in
note 10 to the financial statements of this report.

Segment Information

Detailed segment information of the Group’s revenue and segment results is showed in note 4 to the financial
statements of this report.
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Summary of Financial Information

A summary of the published results, assets, liabilities and non-controlling interests of the Group for the last five
financial years, as extract from the audited financial statements as appropriate, is set out on page 276 of this report.
This summary is not part of the audited financial statements.

Distributable Reserves

As at 31 December 2022, the Company’s reserves available for distribution, calculated in accordance with the
provisions of Sections 291, 297 and 299 of the CO, amounted to HK$5,567,965,000. Details of movements in the
reserves of the Group during the year are set out in the consolidated statement of changes in equity on page 135.

Donations

During the year, charitable donations made by the Group amounted to HK$110,200.

Particulars of Subsidiaries

Particulars of the Company’s subsidiaries as of 31 December 2022 are set out in note 1 to the financial statements of
this report.

On 8 March 2023, the Company transferred 35,350,000 shares of Guotai Junan Securities (Vietnam) Corp. (stock
code: IVS.HN, “IVS”) held by it (representing approximately 50.97% of the issued shares of IVS) to its wholly-owned
subsidiary, Guotai Junan Securities (Hong Kong) Limited, by way of sale and purchase through the Hanoi Stock
Exchange. On 16 March 2023, the Company incorporated a wholly-owned subsidiary in Macao, namely Guotai Junan
Securities (Macau) Company Limited with a capital of MOP$100,000,000.

Shares/Debentures Issued

Details of movements in share capital of the Company and the number of Shares in issue during the year are set out in
the paragraph headed “Purchase, Sale or Redemption of the Company’s Listed Securities” below and note 30 to the
financial statements of this report. No new Shares were issued by the Company during 2022.

Details of issued debentures of the Company during the year are set out in note 27 to the financial statements and the
section headed “Financial Position Analysis” under “Management Discussion and Analysis” of this report.
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Purchase, Sale or Redemption of the Company’s Listed Securities

During the year, the Company bought back a total of 65,000,000 Shares on the Stock Exchange at an aggregate
consideration of HK$56,882,343.34 (inclusive of all expenses) under the general mandates granted by the Shareholders
at general meeting to buy back Shares. All these Shares were cancelled during the year correspondingly.

Details of the Shares bought back during the year are as follow:

Aggregate

consideration

Price paid per Share (inclusive of

Number of Shares Highest Lowest transaction costs)

Month bought back HK$ HK$ HKS$
April 2022 1,180,000 0.84 0.80 976,415.36
May 2022 30,059,000 0.87 0.81 25,468,775.25
June 2022 27,170,000 0.97 0.85 24,643,902.44
July 2022 5,940,000 0.93 0.84 5,255,088.32
August 2022 651,000 0.83 0.81 538,161.97

On 14 January 2022, the Company has redeemed all of its outstanding 4.25% notes due 2022 with an aggregate
principal amount of US$200,000,000, the redemption price equals to 100% of the principal amount plus accrued and
unpaid interest.

Save as disclosed above, neither the Company nor any of its subsidiaries had purchased, sold or redeemed any of the
Company’s listed securities during the year ended 31 December 2022.

Major Customers and Suppliers

During the year, both the aggregate sales attributable to the Group’s five largest customers and the aggregate
purchases attributable to the Group’s five largest suppliers were less than 30% of the Group’s total sales and
purchases respectively.

Directors

Mr. YU Jian, Dr. HU Xupeng and Ms. YU Xuping were appointed as Non-executive Directors at the EGM held on 16
February 2022. Dr. SONG Ming retired as an Independent Non-executive Director with effect from the conclusion of
the AGM held on 31 May 2022. The list of the Directors during 2022 and up to the date of this report is set out under
the section of “Corporate Information” on page 116 of this report.

In accordance with Article 99(A) of the Articles of Association, Ms. QI Haiying, Mr. TSANG Yiu Keung and Professor
CHAN Ka Keung Ceajer will retire by rotation at the forthcoming AGM, being eligible, and have offered themselves for
re-election.

Biographies of the Directors and Senior Management

Biographical details of the Directors and senior management of the Company are set out on pages 100 to 103 of this
report.

Emoluments of Directors, Chief Executive(s) and the Five Highest Paid
Employees

Details of the Directors’, chief executive(s)’ emoluments and the five highest paid employees of the Group are set out
in notes 35 and 38 to the financial statements of this report respectively.
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Directors of Subsidiaries

The names of directors who have served on the boards of the subsidiaries of the Company for the year ended 31
December 2022 and up to the date of this report (unless otherwise stated) are set out below:

(in alphabetical order)

AO Qishun NG Pui Nee WEI Xi

CHIU Simon Siu Hung NGUYEN Thanh Ky WONG Anthony*

DAl Bo NGUYEN Thanh T4 WONG Chung Mun
HUANG Bo ONG Wei Hiam WONG George Ka Kui
LAI Changhua OUYANG Shu WONG Tak Shing
LAU Muk Hoi Ql Haiying WONG Tung Ching
LEI Qiang* SIN Hau Yi* YEUNG Tze Fung

LI Guangjie TAN Su Hoon Matilda Irene YIM Fung

LI Xining TAY Shu Wei Yvonne ZHANG Jinhui*

NG Chi To Graham* WANG Junhong ZHAO Tong

no longer the director(s) of the subsidiaries of the Company as at 31 December 2022.
Change of Information of Directors

Dr. FU Tingmei has been appointed as an independent non-executive director of China Resources Medical Holdings
Company Limited (stock code: 1515.HK) with effect from 27 February 2023 and ceased to be an independent
non-executive director of Postal Savings Bank of China Co., Ltd (stock code: 1658.HK) with effect from 10 March
2028.

Save as disclosed above, there is no other information required to be disclosed pursuant to Rule 13.51B(1) of the
Listing Rules since last published report.

Directors’ Service Contracts

None of the Directors has a service contract with the Company which is not determinable by the Company within one
year without payment of compensation, other than statutory compensation.

Directors’ Material Interests in Transaction, Arrangement and Contract

None of the Directors or his/her connected entity had a material interest, whether directly or indirectly, in any
transactions, arrangements, or contracts of significance in relation to the business of the Group where were entered
into by the Group and subsisting during, or at the end of, the year.

Directors’ Interest in Competing Businesses

None of the Directors and their associates had any interest in an entity whose business competes or is likely compete,
either directly or indirectly, with the Group’s business during the year.

Management Contracts

No contracts concerning the management and administration of the whole or any substantial part of business of the
Company or its subsidiaries were entered into or existed during the year.
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Directors’ and Chief Executive(s)’ Interests in Shares and Underlying Shares
of the Company or Any Associated Corporation

As at 31 December 2022, the interests and short positions of the Directors and chief executive(s) of the Company
in the Shares, underlying shares and debentures of the Company or any of its associated corporations (within the
meaning of Part XV of the SFO) which have been notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to
Divisions 7 and 8 of Part XV of the SFO, or which were recorded in the register required to be kept pursuant to Section
352 of the SFO or as otherwise notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to the Model Code were as
follows:

Long position in Shares and underlying shares of the Company

Number of

underlying
shares in Percentage of
Number of relation to Shares in
Name of Directors Capacity Shares share options Total issue'™
YIM Fung Personal interest 68,546,955 2,300,000 70,846,955 0.74%
Ql Haiying Personal interest 6,012,000 2,300,000 8,312,000 0.09%
FU Tingmei Personal interest 1,512,096 - 1,512,096 0.02%
TSANG Yiu Keung Personal interest 1,612,096 - 1,612,096 0.02%

Note:

(1) The percentage was calculated based on 9,553,994,707 Shares in issue on 31 December 2022.

Save as disclosed above, as at 31 December 2022, none of the Directors or chief executive(s) of the Company had
any interests or short positions in Shares, underlying shares or debentures of the Company or any of its associated
corporations which would have to be notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to Divisions 7 and
8 of Part XV of the SFO or which were required, pursuant to Section 352 of the SFO, to be recorded in the register
referred to therein or which were required, pursuant to the Model Code, to be notified to the Company and the Stock
Exchange.
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Share-based Compensation Scheme

The Company adopted an equity-settled share-based compensation scheme, details are set out as follow.

Share Option Scheme

The Company adopted the share option scheme on 19 June 2010 (the “Share Option Scheme”). The Share Option
Scheme was valid for a period of 10 years from the date of adoption and has expired on 19 June 2020. No further
share options shall be granted after it expired, but all granted and outstanding share options remain exercisable for a
period of 10 years after the respective dates of grant, the provisions of the Share Option Scheme thereof remain in full
force and effect.

The purpose of the Share Option Scheme was to provide the people working for the interests of the Group with an
opportunity to obtain equity interest in the Company, thus linking their interests of the Group and thereby providing
them with an incentive to work better for the interests of the Group.

The participants of the Share Option Scheme were the directors (whether executive or non-executive and whether
independent or not) and employees of the Group who, in the absolute opinion of the Board, had contributed to the
Company or the Group.

The maximum number of Shares issued and to be issued upon exercise of share options granted and to be granted
(including both exercised, cancelled and outstanding options) pursuant to the Share Option Scheme and any other
share option schemes to: (A) each participant in the 12-month period up to and including the date of grant, shall not
exceed 1% of the total number of Shares in issue; and (B) a participant of a substantial shareholder or an independent
non-executive director, or any of their respective associates in the 12-month period up to and including the date of
grant (i) representing in aggregate shall not exceed 0.1% of the total number of Shares in issue; and (i) having an
aggregate value, based on the closing price of the Shares as stated in the Stock Exchange’s daily quotations sheet on
the date of each grant, shall not in excess of HK$5,000,000. Any further grant of share options in excess of the above
limits is subject to Shareholders’ approval in general meeting.

The exercise period of share option granted under the Share Option Scheme was determined by the Board at its
absolute discretion, and shall expire no later than the 10th anniversary of date on which the share option was granted.

There was neither any minimum period for which a share option must be held, nor any performance target which
required to be achieved before the share option could be exercised unless otherwise determined by the Board and
specified at the time of the offer.

The consideration of HK$1 for the acceptance of the grant shall be remitted in favour of the Company within 28 days
from the date of offer or other period as may be determined by the Board.

The exercise price of share options was determined by the Board in its absolute discretion, and shall be at least the
higher of (i) the closing price of the Shares as stated in the daily quotations sheet issued by the Stock Exchange on
the date of offer; and (ii) the average closing price of the Shares as stated in the daily quotations sheets issued by
the Stock Exchange for the five consecutive days on which Shares are traded on the Stock Exchange immediately
preceding the date of offer.
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The total number of Shares that may be issued upon exercise of all share options granted and to be granted must not
in aggregate exceed 10% of the Shares in issue on the date of adoption of the Share Option Scheme (i.e. 164,000,000
Shares). As at the date of this report, a total number of Shares available for issue in respect of the share options which
had been granted and were outstanding under the Share Option Scheme were 44,034,428 representing approximately
0.46% of the Shares in issue.

Movements of the share options under the Share Option Scheme for the year ended 31 December 2022 are set out as
follows, details of which are set out in note 31 of the financial statements of this report:

Number of share options
At Granted Exercised Cancelled Lapsed At Exercise
1 January during during during during 31 December price
Name of participants 2022 the year the year the year the year 2022 HKS  Date of grant® Exercise period
Directors
YIM Fung 800,000 - - - - 800,000 2440 13/07/2017 13/07/2018-12/07/2027
500,000 - - - - 500,000 1720 04/07/2018 04/07/2019-03/07/2028
1,000,000 - - - - 1,000,000 1450 11/09/2019 11/09/2020-10/09/2029
QI Haiying 800,000 - - - - 800,000 2440 13/07/2017 13/07/2018-12/07/2027
500,000 - - - - 500,000 1720 04/07/2018 04/07/2019-03/07/2028
1,000,000 - - - - 1,000,000 1450 11/09/2019 11/09/2020-10/09/2029
Sub-total 4,600,000 - - - - 4,600,000
Employees (in aggregate) 20,762,131 - - - (1515832 19,246,209 1264 1000172014 10/01/2015-09/01/2024
5,700,000 - - - (300,000 5,400,000 2440 13/07/2017 13/07/2018-12/07/2027
6,200,000 - - - (450,0000 5,750,000 1720 04/07/2018 04/07/2019-03/07/2028
12,600,000 - - - (1,300,000 11,200,000 1450 11/09/2019 11/09/2020-10/09/2029
Sub-total 45,162,131 - - - (3,565,832 41,596,299
Total 49,762,131 - - - (3,565,832 46,196,299
Notes:

The number of outstanding share options and the exercise price may be subject to adjustment in case of reorganization of the capital structure
of the Company. Pursuant to the announcements dated 29 September 2014 and 9 July 2015, the Company adjusted respectively the number
of outstanding share options and the exercise price with reference to the terms of the Share Option Scheme and the supplementary guidance
attached to the letter of the Stock Exchange relating to share option scheme dated 5 September 2005.

In respect of the share options granted on 10 January 2014, one-third of the share options has been vested evenly on 10 January 2015, 10
January 2016 and 10 January 2017 and shall be exercisable until 9 January 2024.

In respect of the share options granted on 13 July 2017, one-third of the share options has been vested evenly on 13 July 2018, 13 July 2019
and 13 July 2020 and shall be exercisable until 12 July 2027.

In respect of the share options granted on 4 July 2018, one-third of the share options has been vested evenly on 4 July 2019, 4 July 2020 and 4
July 2021 and shall be exercisable until 3 July 2028.

In respect of the share options granted on 11 September 2019, one-third of the share options has been vested evenly on 11 September 2020, 11
September 2021 and 11 September 2022 and shall be exercisable until 10 September 2029.
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Equity-linked Agreements

Save as the Share Option Scheme disclosed above, no equity-linked agreements that will or may result in the Company
issuing Shares or that require the Company to enter into any agreements that will or may result in the Company issuing
Shares were entered into by the Company during the year or subsisted at the end of the year.

Directors’ Rights to Acquire Shares or Debentures

Save as the Share Option Scheme disclosed above, for the year ended 31 December 2022, none of the Company or
any of its subsidiaries was a party to any arrangement to enable Directors to acquire benefits by means of acquisition
of Shares in, or debt securities (including debentures) of, the Company or its associated corporations and none of the
Directors, their spouses or children under the age of 18 had any rights to subscribe for equity or debt securities of the
Company or its associated corporations, or had exercised any such rights.

Substantial Shareholders’ Interests and Short Positions in Shares and
Underlying Shares

So far as is known to any Director or chief executive(s) of the Company, as at 31 December 2022, the following
persons (not being a Director or the chief executive(s) of the Company) who had interests or short positions in the
Shares or underlying shares of the Company which had been disclosed to the Company under the provisions of
Division 2 and 3 of Part XV of the SFO, or which were recorded in the register required to be kept by the Company
under Section 336 of the SFO were as follows:

Number of Shares Percentage of
Name of Shareholders Capacity (Long positions) Shares in issue®
Guotai Junan Financial Holdings Limited Beneficial owner 7,044,877,066 73.74%
Guotai Junan Securities Co., Ltd. " Interested in controlled 7,044,877,066 73.74%

corporation

Notes:

(1) Guotai Junan Financial Holdings Limited is a wholly-owned subsidiary of Guotai Junan Securities Co., Ltd. and accordingly, Guotai Junan
Securities Co., Ltd. is deemed to be interested in these 7,044,877,066 Shares.

(2) The percentage was calculated based on 9,553,994,707 Shares in issue on 31 December 2022.

Save as disclosed above, as at 31 December 2022, the Company has not been notified by any persons (other than
the Directors or the chief executive(s) of the Company) who had interests or short positions in the Shares or underlying
shares of the Company which would fall to be disclosed to the Company under the provisions of Division 2 and 3 of
Part XV of the SFO, or which were recorded in the register required to be kept by the Company under Section 336 of
the SFO.
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Continuing Connected Transactions

On 2 December 2020, the Company and Guotai Junan Securities Co., Ltd. (“GTJA”) entered into a master agreement
(the “Master Agreement”), pursuant to which both parties conditionally agreed that each of them will, and will
procure the Company (and its subsidiaries from time to time, collectively referred to as the “Group”) and GTJA (and
its subsidiaries from time to time, collectively referred to as “GTJA Group”) respectively, to provide 1) brokerage
services, 2) investment management and advisory services, 3) consulting services, 4) corporate finance services to,
and to engage in 5) investment and finance transactions with, the other for a term of three years from 1 January
2021 to 31 December 2023. As GTJA is the ultimate controlling shareholder of the Company and therefore is a
connected person of the Company, the transactions contemplated under the Master Agreement constitute continuing
connected transactions of the Company and are expected to be of a recurrent nature and may occur on a regular and
continuous basis in the ordinary and usual course of business of the Group. The transactions contemplated under the
Master Agreement are subject to reporting, announcement, annual review and independent Shareholders’ approval
requirement as part of the applicable percentage ratios exceeds 5% under the Listing Rules. The Master Agreement
and the transactions contemplated thereunder have been approved by the independent Shareholders on 20 January
2021. For further details, please refer to the circular dated 5 January 2021.

The Group and GTJA Group shall, from time to time during the term of the Master Agreement, enter into separate
operational agreements in respect of the provision of any services and transactions, provided that such operational
agreements and their terms shall be subject to and shall not exceed the terms of the Master Agreement.

The annual caps in respect of continuing connected transactions contemplated under the Master Agreement for three
years ended 31 December 2021 and 2022, and ending 31 December 2023 are shown as below:

For the year ended  For the year ended For the year ending
31 December 2021 31 December 2022 31 December 2023

HK$ million HK$ million HK$ million
Category 1 Transactions
(@ Income (to be) received by the Group
for services provided to the GTJA Group 226 274 329
(b)  Expenses (to be) incurred by the Group
for services provided by the GTJA
Group 160 187 219
HK$ billion HK$ billion HK$ billion
Category 2 Transactions
Transaction amount attributable to
principal-to-principal transactions between
the Group and the GTJA Group 64.1 73.7 83.3

Details of the related party transactions undertaken by the Group in the normal course of business are set out in
note 39 to the financial statements of this report, some of those transactions constituted non-exempted continuing
connected transactions under the Listing Rules, for which the Company has complied with applicable disclosure
requirements in accordance with Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules in above.
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The Independent Non-executive Directors have reviewed and confirmed that the aforesaid continuing connected
transactions were entered into (i) in the ordinary and usual course of business of the Group; (i) on normal commercial
terms or better; and (iii) in accordance with the relevant agreements governing them on terms that are fair and
reasonable and in the interests of the Shareholders as a whole.

According to the Group’s policy on pricing and internal control measures for continuing connected transactions,
the relevant business units are required to consult and obtain pre-approvals from the relevant departments for each
continuing connected transaction (except for brokerage transactions with standard brokerage rate applied). Each of
the legal and compliance, risk management, finance departments and office of the board of the Company is assigned
to review each of the continuing connected transactions from their respective expertise with reference to comparable
transactions with independent third parties. The Group regularly monitors transactions between the Group and the
GTJA Group as to whether such transactions fall within the scope of the Master Agreement, whether the relevant
annual caps have nearly been fully utilised, and issues reminders to the responsible business units where necessary.
The Group also conducts sampling inspections based on the internal audit plan so as to ensure the appropriateness
and effectiveness of its internal control procedures.

The Directors engaged the auditor of the Company to report on the aforesaid continuing connected transactions in
accordance with Hong Kong Standard on Assurance Engagement 3000 (Revised) “Assurance Engagements Other
Than Audits or Reviews of Historical Financial Information” (“HKSAE 3000”) and with reference to Practice Note 740
“Auditor’s letter on Continuing Connected Transactions under the Hong Kong Listing Rules” (“PN740”) issued by the
Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants.

The auditor has reported to the Directors in accordance with HKSAE 3000 and with reference to PN740 that the
transactions (i) had been approved by the Board; (i) were in accordance with the pricing policies of the Company;
(i) had been entered into in accordance with the relevant agreements governing such transactions; and (iv) had not
exceeded the relevant annual caps.

Disclosure Pursuant to Rule 13.21 of the Listing Rules

On 21 August 2020, the Company (as guarantor) and Guotai Junan (Hong Kong) limited (“GJHK”), a wholly-owned
subsidiary of the Company (as borrower), entered into several committed facility agreements with certain banks in Hong
Kong (as lenders) (the “1st Facility Agreement(s)”) in relation to the committed revolving facilities with an aggregate
amount of up to HK$2,150,000,000 with final repayment date falling 36 months after the date of respective 1st Facility
Agreement(s) and an aggregate amount of up to HK$1,350,000,000 with the final repayment date falling 24 months
after the date of respective 1st Facility Agreement(s).

On 25 September 2020, the Company (as guarantor) and GJHK (as borrower) entered into a committed facility
agreement with a bank in Hong Kong (as lender) (the “2nd Facility Agreement”) in relation to the committed revolving
facility with an amount of up to HK$500,000,000 with the final repayment date falling 24 months after the date of the
2nd Facility Agreement.

On 31 October 2022, the Company (as borrower) entered into several committed facility agreements with certain banks
in Hong Kong (as lenders) (the “3rd Facility Agreement(s)”, together with the 1st Facility Agreement(s) and the 2nd
Facility Agreement collectively referred to as the “Facility Agreements”) in relation to the committed revolving facilities
with an aggregate amount of up to HK$1,650,000,000 with final repayment date falling 36 months after the date of
respective 3rd Facility Agreement(s).
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Under the Facility Agreements, it will be an event of default if Guotai Junan Securities Co., Ltd., the controlling
shareholder of the Company, is not, or ceases (directly or indirectly) to be the single largest legal and beneficial holder
of shares in the Company or does not, or cease to, control the Company. In case of the occurrence of an event of
default, the lender(s) may, by notice to borrower(s), (i) cancel all or part of the commitment(s); and/or (ii) declare all
or part of the loan(s), together with accrued interest, and all other amounts accrued or outstanding under the Facility
Agreements be immediately due and payable; and/or (i) declare that all or part of the loan(s) become payable on
demand.

The committed revolving facilities with an aggregate amount of up to HK$1,350,000,000 under the 1st Facility
Agreement(s) were expired on 21 August 2022 and the 2nd Facility Agreement was expired on 25 September 2022.

Permitted Indemnity

Subject to the CO and under the Articles of Association, every Director is entitled to be indemnified out of the assets
of the Company against all losses and liabilities which he or she may sustain or incur in or about the execution or
discharge of his or her duties and/or the exercise of his or her powers and/or otherwise in connection with his or
her duties, powers or office. In addition, the Company has maintained appropriate Directors’ and Officers’ Liability
Insurance in respect of relevant legal actions against the directors and officers.

Sufficiency of Public Float

Based on information that is publicly available to the Company and within the knowledge of the Directors, at least 25%
of the total number of issued Shares was held by the public throughout the year ended 31 December 2022 and up to
the date of this report.

Corporate Governance

The Company’s corporate governance principles and practices are set out in the “Corporate Governance Report” on
pages 82 to 99 of this report.

Compliance with Laws and Regulations

The major laws and regulations that have a significant impact on the Group’s business include the CO, the SFO, the
Anti-Money Laundering and Counter-Terrorist Financing Ordinance (Cap. 615 of the Laws of Hong Kong) and the
Listing Rules. Throughout the year of 2022 and as at the date of this report, as far as the Board and management are
aware, there was no material breach of, or non-compliance with, the applicable laws and regulations by the Group that
has a significant impact on its businesses and operations.
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Environmental, Social and Corporate Responsibility

The Company creates sustainable value for its stakeholders by proactively managing risks deriving from environmental,
social and governance conditions. ESG practices are embedded across all operations of the Group and the Board
recognizes the different needs in economic, environmental and social by various stakeholder groups. In achieving
ESG-related goals, the Company has identified certain ESG areas that present challenges and opportunities for its
businesses to operate in a responsible and sustainable manner.

In 2022, the Company has adopted its climate change-related policy, commenced its climate risk assessment and
disclosed the related information with reference to the recommendations of the Task Force on Climate-related Financial
Disclosures (TCFD), aiming to tackle and respond to climate change-related concerns of various stakeholders of the
Group. For further details about the ESG performance of the Company, please refer to the 2022 ESG Report of the
Company.

Auditor

The consolidated financial statements of the Group for the year ended 31 December 2022 have been audited by
KPMG, Certified Public Accountants and Public Interest Entity Auditor registered in accordance with the Financial
Reporting Council Ordinance, who will retire, being eligible, and has offered itself for the re-appointment at the AGM to
be held on 22 May 2023.

By order of the Board

Dr. YIM Fung, JP
Chairman of the Board

Hong Kong, 27 March 2023
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TO THE MEMBERS OF
GUOTAI JUNAN INTERNATIONAL HOLDINGS LIMITED
(Incorporated in Hong Kong with limited liability)

Opinion

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of Guotai Junan
International Holdings Limited (“the Company”) and its subsidiaries (“the
Group”) set out on pages 131 to 275, which comprise the consolidated
statement of financial position as at 31 December 2022, the consolidated
statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive income, the
consolidated statement of changes in equity and the consolidated
statement of cash flows for the year then ended and notes to the
consolidated financial statements, including a summary of significant
accounting policies.

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true and
fair view of the consolidated financial position of the Group as at 31
December 2022 and of its consolidated financial performance and its
consolidated cash flows for the year then ended in accordance with
Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards (“HKFRSs”) issued by the
Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants (“HKICPA”) and have
been properly prepared in compliance with the Hong Kong Companies
Ordinance.

Basis for opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong Standards on
Auditing (“HKSAs”) issued by the HKICPA. Our responsibilities under
those standards are further described in the Auditor’s responsibilities for
the audit of the consolidated financial statements section of our report.
We are independent of the Group in accordance with the HKICPA’s Code
of Ethics for Professional Accountants (“the Code”) and we have fulfilled
our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with the Code. We believe
that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to
provide a basis for our opinion.

BERZEREABRZERARLT
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X OUREEMBEHREKE BEEE
SETBURBME o

ZMRE ZEREUBEBRRERBES
BEFMAg ((BESFMAE]) B
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FRARETEE

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgement, B ET S E R E B A = 3 4
were of most significance in our audit of the consolidated financial REH KGRV EREANBTIRAE
statements of the current period. These matters were addressed in the EHMEFH SLEHEAYUES TR
context of our audit of the consolidated financial statements as a whole, RERETETITERERNE S TR
and in forming our opinion thereon, and we do not provide a separate BE BT ELEBIEHEBZBN =

opinion on these matters.

ﬁo

BMTEFNERRBRNELRE AR XFTME

Expected credit loss assessment for loans and advances to customers

BRI R EREN 16K FB145F 181 B NS K E ©

Refer to Note 16 to the consolidated financial statements and the accounting policies on pages 145-181.

The Key Audit Matter
BRETEE

How the matter was addressed in our audit

REEEEMNEFSF PR ONMAESE N

Loans and advances to customers constitute a significant
portion of the total assets of the Group. As at 31
December 2022, the gross carrying amount of loans and
advances to customers and its related expected credit loss
(“ECL") allowance amounted to HK$8,589 million (2021:
HK$17,889 million) and HK$2,197 million (2021: HK$2,035
million) respectively. The net carrying amount of HK$6,391
million (2021: HK$15,855 million) represented 7% (2021:
14.9%) of the Group’s total assets.
BTEFPHNERERIRGE ESEEERLENRA—
2 o R2022F12A310 - G TEFHER R B R RE 42
BEREEABERAGEARX ((BHERBXDBES A
8,589E & &t (20214 : 17,8898 B t) k2,1978 B
BT (20214 - 2,035B& B L) - lREF(ES3TEEET
(20214 : 15,866A & B L) h EEBEEET% (2021
F:14.9%) °

Qur audit procedures to assess ECL for loans and
advances to customers included the following:
BMEL TEFPHNERRBRNTELRE BB R AT
EBFHEF B T3 JIE -

° understanding and assessing the design,
implementation and operating effectiveness
of key internal controls over the credit risk
management of loans and advances to
customers and the ECL assessment. For the key
systems used for the processing of transactions
in relation to loans and advances to customers,
we involved our information technology
specialists to assess the design, implementation
and operating effectiveness of a selection of key
internal controls over access to these systems
and controls over data and change management;

e TEHRERIGGETEFPHNERRBINEERRE
BH AR AR ES RERERBRTENRS
HITREER - HRAREEETEFHNER
RBREENRZHEE RS BHMARREMD
BABMRERT AT HZE RS AR REBE
ZHIR FHEENCKERBAISIERES
AT RBITRORR
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Key audit matters (continued)

BRETEE )

Expected credit loss assessment for loans and advances to customers

RTEFNERRBRNVEREARATMG

Refer to Note 16 to the consolidated financial statements and the accounting policies on pages 145-181.

ERMGE A BEREN 16 R E1452 181 HEA S i1 & °

The Key Audit Matter
BRETEE

How the matter was addressed in our audit

REHEEMNEFF PR OMAEH K

Management assesses whether the credit risk of loans
and advances to customers and financial investments
have increased significantly since their initial recognition
and applies a three-stage impairment model to calculate
their ECL. A financial asset is classified as stage 1 when
its credit risk has not increased significantly since its
initial recognition; otherwise, it is classified as stage 2 or
stage 3. Stage 3 applies when a financial asset is credit-
impaired. The loss allowance for stage 1 financial assets
is measured at an amount equal to a 12-month ECL. The
loss allowance for stage 2 and stage 3 financial assets is
measured at an amount equal to a lifetime ECL.
EREgNMETEPLPNERKBRTIARERBRENEE
B2 B ERIARESEEZIEM KA =ZERBEER
AEHERERAX - B EERARB VA ER AR B8R
ZHEm AeREEFEAFT BR BABAEF_HE=
BR - FRREANGERENEREE -Z—HBRE
BMEENEEREGHEBEEXN12EAERERABELANEHE
R ERECRREBNEEEEBEBNEBSENREH
BHEERBEANESRETE -

° understanding and assessing the appropriateness of
the established policies and procedures for the ECL
assessment including the staging criteria, application
of assumptions and inputs into the ECL model;

o  TEIFERTHIETERERBERFHBUORRIE
FHEEE BRERERRE BREALREHRE
AR R RE A B
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BRETEE )

Expected credit loss assessment for loans and advances to customers

MTEFNERRBRNWEALRGERBATMG

Refer to Note 16 to the consolidated financial statements and the accounting policies on pages 145-181.

BREGEBEHERNTI16RFE145E181 R AR HE °

The Key Audit Matter
BRETEE

How the matter was addressed in our audit

REHEEREMNFSF PR ONMAESE N

For loans and advances to customers that are categorised
as stage three, management performs individual
assessment for each borrower by considering credit
enhancements provided to the Group.

HRBAZ=BERNGETEFNERRBR  ERELE
BRET EXENEERAHSRERAETERTME -

As at 31 December 2022, the gross carrying amount
of stage 3 loans and advances to customers and its
related expected credit loss (“ECL”) allowance amounted
to HK$2,380 million and HK$2,194 million respectively.
Increase of net carrying amount of stage 3 loans and
advances to customers from HK$129 million in 2021
to HK$186 million in 2022 mainly due to transfer of
impairment stages.

2022 12A31H KT EPHE=ZBRERRBERNH
FHAEKEEAEREREN(BRERABX]D BES
A A2,380E BB T R21M4BEBT - F=-BRETEP
WE R KRB R FER2021FEM1298 BB TiEINE
2022FF 186 E & BT  FEHNRERRHNER -

evaluating the reasonableness and appropriateness
of the ECL model by assessing the critical
assumptions, inputs and parameters used in the
model that has been reviewed by our internal
risk modelling specialists. This included the
classification of loss stages, probability of default,
loss given default, exposure at default, discount
rate, adjustments for forward-looking information
and other management adjustments. As part of
these procedures, we challenged management’s
revision to estimate and input parameters by
comparing with prior period and considered the
consistency of judgement;

RPN IR ER KB TR ETEHRER
BRABRANESEUEREEEARERRB R
BER BWARBR2E OREEEBRER &2
APE - BZBHABEEX ZEHRER BIIRE - LA
EULEERAERBRRAMERAE - (ERZFE
FFE —&2 > HFRBER —HEN L REER
BHME RBAZHENETIREER - WEEH
B ey — Bt

assessing the value of collateral held for a
sample of loans and advances to customers with
reference to publicly available market prices;
MBI ERA TEFHNER R BRI EF @
BE SP2EZL RAEBMSER:




122 Guotai Junan International | Annual Report 2022

Independent Auditor’s Report
B A% AR

Key audit matters (continued) BRETTSE®

Expected credit loss assessment for loans and advances to customers

MTEFNERRBRNWEALRGERABANMG

Refer to Note 16 to the consolidated financial statements and the accounting policies on pages 145-181.
FRHGEBHREN T 16 R E146F 181 E A BT HE °

The Key Audit Matter How the matter was addressed in our audit
BREEE REEER M E R AR

The determination of the loss allowance is subject to | assessing the existence of collateral by obtaining
several key parameters and assumptions, including independent confirmations or statements from
estimates of probability of default, loss given default, brokers or clearing houses for a sample of
exposures at default and the discount rate, adjustments for securities held as collateral per the Group's
forward-looking information and other adjustment factors. records;

Management judgement is involved in the selection of | ¢  RiIE BEXEERSERFHFEERFRNES  BAEB
those parameters and the application of the assumptions. KR ANNEEMMS R R ER - T E
ETEEEFEAZSEZH2HERH  BREMAFEDR BEFRmNEEFEMY

o ROBEE RORBRRERE  RAREEN R
fAEREMERE - NRT RS SRR EREBERS
R TR I -

In particular, the determination of the loss allowance is
heavily dependent on the macro-economic environment
and the Group’s internal credit risk management strategy.
The loss allowance for loans and advances to customers
is determined based on estimates whereby management
takes into consideration market data, historical overdue
data, historical loss experience and other adjustment
factors.

LHE BrTFERERELBLERELR E5ERDH
EERRERRR GTEFPHNERRBRNEBREED
REEEEZRITSHE BERREE BEEFEK
R HAMFHERARBITEGEAERE -
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BRETEE )

Expected credit loss assessment for loans and advances to customers

MTEFNERRBRNWEALRGERBATMG

Refer to Note 16 to the consolidated financial statements and the accounting policies on pages 145-181.

BREGEBEHERNTI16RFE145E181 R AR HE °

The Key Audit Matter
BRETEE

How the matter was addressed in our audit

REHEEREMNFSF PR ONMAESE N

Management also exercises judgement in determining
the quantum of loss given default based on a range of
factors. These include available remedies for recovery, the
financial situation of the borrower, the recoverable amount
of collateral, the seniority of the claim and existence and
cooperativeness of other creditors. When listed stocks are
pledged as collateral, the loan balances to collateral ratio,
and the stock holding concentration of the borrower, the
industry sector and the operation of the issuer, the liquidity
restriction on sales of the stock are taken into account in
the assessment.
ERETTERAGARBSERNZETRENBEEEREE -
ZERZBER AR K E AR EE - ERAT BRI -
KR KOEeHE REBEAFREMEEAREREE
REGEEZER - BELTREERERGTUER ERE
MHREFmEERERAFTRERE  BITARETERE
AR - SHEZRE R EN MEIR HIl 5 H =g A AT -

The amount of impairment of the loans and advances
to customers is significant, and the measurement has
a high degree of estimation uncertainty. For measuring
ECL, management adopted complex models, employed
numerous parameters and data inputs, and applied
significant management judgments and assumptions, and
involved significant inherent risk. In view of these reasons,
we identified this as a key audit matter.
RTEPHNERRBEZINRESEEAN  BstEAEERE
T THEEN -t BERBERELRNS EBERA
TEHOER  BERTASNZ2EREE  UKATEKX
WEREHE MERR PREANEFER - EXZER
CHPIEEREERBERESEE -

assessing the existence and quality of collateral,
guarantees or other forms of credit support
such as remedies for recovery in evaluating the
adequacy of ECL allowance made by the Group
for material loans and advances to customers
classified as Stage three; and

Rt BEXEHBAZF=BRERNGTEPNE
RERRBHRAERBERBERBER B MR -
AEERAD  BEREAEMEXEEHF (KD
MREENEEFELEREE &

evaluating whether the disclosures on ECLs
for loans and advances to customers meet the
disclosure requirements of prevailing accounting
standards.
TEETEFHNERRBANTARERERKE
REAMARITEAERRERE -
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Key audit matters (continued) BRETTSE®

Valuation of Level 3 financial instruments

E-ZREMITAMKE

Refer to Note 40 to the consolidated financial statements and the accounting policies on pages 145-181.
BRI ERAN TI0R F146F 181 E A EFHHF -

The Key Audit Matter How the matter was addressed in our audit

BREETER ZERERMNES PR OMTEHH

As at 31 December 2022, the fair value of the Group’s | Our audit procedures to assess the fair value of level 3
financial assets and financial liabilities at level 3 amounted | financial instruments included the following:

to HK$11,069 million and HK$7,650 million, representing | RFIFFEF =R R T AR FENETRFEE T
19% and 20% of the Group’s financial assets and financial £IE

liabilities measured at fair value.
R2022%12A31H - BEEE=MeMEERSAMAE | * assessing the design, implementation and

MAFES B AE11,0008 BB TR7.660EEBT 5 & operating effectiveness of key internal controls
EERATEISENEHEERSRE BH19%%20% ° over the valuation of level 3 financial instruments;
o AR =RemTIAMGENBEREANIPIERRE
AT RGBT

The valuation of the Group’s level 3 financial instruments
is based on a combination of market data and valuation
models which often require judgement.
EEEE=ReRmITAGBEDENEMIZEERMEEELR
WiEaZRME  HBEHEEELHE -

. reading investment agreements for level 3
financial instruments to understand the relevant
investments terms and identify any conditions
that were relevant to the valuation of these
financial instruments;

e ZFHE=FEHMIAREMRNTREBRKRER

obtained from readily available data in liquid markets. F R R EZES R T AL E AT A &5

Where such observable data is not readily available, as in

the case of level 3 financial instruments, estimates need to

be developed which can involve significant management
judgement.

HEEEPTAE T8 A BRI B R & m %53 A5 8RR

BE-MEBABERBBIREASE MBEE=AcH

TEZER  BIZEELMGE  ETF@SREREREHE -

Some of the inputs used in the valuation models are
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BRETEE )

Valuation of Level 3 financial instruments

EZREMITAMKE

Refer to Note 40 to the consolidated financial statements and the accounting policies on pages 145-181.

BREGEE R BEHRNTIORF145E 181 R AR HE °

The Key Audit Matter
BRETEE

How the matter was addressed in our audit

REHEEREMNFSF PR ONMAESE N

We identified assessing the fair value of level 3 financial
instruments as a key audit matter because of the degree of
complexity involved in valuing these financial instruments
and the significant degree of judgement exercised by
management in determining the inputs used in the
valuation models.
BMETHRE=ZRemITAEATFTEIN A —HHAREASF
B HRZEeRmIAGAERAEMEEFTHEREMA
BABBAERREEHERHE -

engaging our internal valuation specialists to
assist us in performing independent valuation
of certain level 3 financial instruments where
appropriate and compare their valuation with
the Group’s valuation. This included comparing
the valuation derived from the Group’s valuation
models with our knowledge of current market
practice, testing inputs to the fair value
calculations and establishing our own valuation
models to perform revaluations. If the valuation
is determined based on recent transaction
price, we evaluated the appropriateness of
management assessment and verified the
transaction price with supporting documents. For
unlisted fixed income securities and unlisted fund
investments, we also assessed the quality and
sufficiency of the collaterals where appropriate;
and
ZREMABEEZRBIEMEETE=ZR
TRIAETEYGE (WER) YKZFHE
B EXEEMAEETLER HWEeREt 5E5E
EE R A P15 % (8 82 3 P39 2 A T 5 18 1 &) &0
FBoARARTFEAERABBRRIHME F
EEEETER - MEENERITIHRRSGERE
EBMAFAGEREBETHNGEE RBEBEIFX
HzBm R ERE o HNIE EE T W E 5 R IE
FHEERE  ZMTTEERARzmE RIS
Fr(EA) s &
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Key audit matters (continued)

BRETEE )

Valuation of Level 3 financial instruments

EZREMITAMKE

Refer to Note 40 to the consolidated financial statements and the accounting policies on pages 145-181.

R A B R EZ M40 F145F 1818 A & 51 %

The Key Audit Matter
BRETEE

How the matter was addressed in our audit

REHEEREMNFSF PR ONMAESE N

assessing the appropriateness of the use of
the net asset value provided by external fund
administrators as the fair value of the level 3
financial instruments at reporting date. For the
valuation of fund interests we compared the fair
value adopted by the Group to the latest reported
net asset values from the fund managers, and
obtained the audited financial statements of the
funds where applicable to check the historical
accuracy of the reported net asset values; and
AHERRE B REININSESEREMREEES
EREFEF=FcsMIAATENGHEE - HNE
THERMAE BHMAE EEERANQATFESRE
TERERENGHEREEFEETHL &
RISESORERMBHRE (WER) B2
BEFERBEEREME &

assessing the disclosures in the consolidated
financial statements with reference to the
requirements of the prevailing accounting
standards.
TEFEEMBRRARE  ETF2ERHTEFE
AR E °




BEREZERE | 20223 127

Independent Auditor’s Report
B A% AR

Information other than the consolidated financial
statements and auditor’s report thereon

The directors are responsible for the other information. The other
information comprises all the information included in the annual report,
other than the consolidated financial statements and our auditor’s report
thereon.

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does not cover
the other information and we do not express any form of assurance
conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial statements,
our responsibility is to read the other information and, in doing so,
consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with the
consolidated financial statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit
or otherwise appears to be materially misstated.

If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is a
material misstatement of this other information, we are required to report
that fact. We have nothing to report in this regard.

Responsibilities of the directors for the
consolidated financial statements

The directors are responsible for the preparation of the consolidated
financial statements that give a true and fair view in accordance
with HKFRSs issued by the HKICPA and the Hong Kong Companies
Ordinance and for such internal control as the directors determine is
necessary to enable the preparation of consolidated financial statements
that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the directors are
responsible for assessing the Group’s ability to continue as a going
concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and
using the going concern basis of accounting unless the directors either
intend to liquidate the Group or to cease operations, or have no realistic
alternative but to do so.

The directors are assisted by the Audit Committee in discharging their
responsibilities for overseeing the Group’s financial reporting process.

bR & S B 15
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Auditor’s responsibilities for the audit of the
consolidated financial statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the
consolidated financial statements as a whole are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s
report that includes our opinion. This report is made solely to you, as
a body, in accordance with section 405 of the Hong Kong Companies
Ordinance, and for no other purpose. We do not assume responsibility
towards or accept liability to any other person for the contents of this
report.

Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee
that an audit conducted in accordance with HKSAs will always detect a
material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud
or error and are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate,
they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions
of users taken on the basis of these consolidated financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with HKSAs, we exercise professional
judgement and maintain professional scepticism throughout the audit.
We also:

. Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the
consolidated financial statements, whether due to fraud or error,
design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks,
and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to
provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material
misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting
from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional
omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.

. Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit
in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the
circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on
the effectiveness of the Group’s internal control.

. Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the
reasonableness of accounting estimates and related disclosures
made by the directors.
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Independent Auditor’s Report
B A% AR

Auditor’s responsibilities for the audit of the
consolidated financial statements (continueq)

Conclude on the appropriateness of the directors’ use of the going
concern basis of accounting and, based on the audit evidence
obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events
or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Group’s ability
to continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a material
uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditor’s
report to the related disclosures in the consolidated financial
statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our
opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained
up to the date of our auditor’s report. However, future events or
conditions may cause the Group to cease to continue as a going
concern.

Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the
consolidated financial statements, including the disclosures,
and whether the consolidated financial statements represent the
underlying transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair
presentation.

Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the financial
information of the entities or business activities within the Group to
express an opinion on the consolidated financial statements. We
are responsible for the direction, supervision and performance of
the group audit. We remain solely responsible for our audit opinion.

We communicate with the Audit Committee regarding, among other
matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit and significant audit
findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal control that we
identify during our audit.
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Independent Auditor’s Report
B A% AR

Auditor’s responsibilities for the audit of the
consolidated financial statements (continueq)

We also provide the Audit Committee with a statement that we have
complied with relevant ethical requirements regarding independence,
and communicate with them all relationships and other matters that
may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence and, where
applicable, actions taken to eliminate threats or safeguards applied.

From the matters communicated with the Audit Committee, we
determine those matters that were of most significance in the audit of the
consolidated financial statements of the current period and are therefore
the key audit matters. We describe these matters in our auditor’s
report unless law or regulation precludes public disclosure about the
matter or when, in extremely rare circumstances, we determine that a
matter should not be communicated in our report because the adverse
consequences of doing so would reasonably be expected to outweigh
the public interest benefits of such communication.

The engagement partner on the audit resulting in this independent
auditor’s report is Chan Siu Tung.

KPMG

Certified Public Accountants
8th Floor, Prince’s Building
10 Chater Road

Central, Hong Kong

27 March 2023
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Consolidated Statement of Profit or Loss and Other Comprehensive Income

GEeEEmREMEEREX

Year ended 31 December 2022
HZE2022F12831HIEFE

2022 2021
20224 20214
Notes HK$’000 HK$'000
B 5 FBET T
Revenue PN 5 2,314,917 3,966,415
Other income H fth Yo 2 4,334 5,279
Revenue and other income WA B E b U 55 2,319,251 3,971,694
Staff costs 8 TR 6 (721,499) (803,434)
Commission to account executives XEFEHEE (134,120) (224,602)
Depreciation e (78,077) (78,639)
Net impairment charge FORE R (153,972) (220,597)
Other operating expenses Hfh & (528,262) (581,913)
Operating profit £ 5 ) 703,321 2,062,509
Finance costs Bl & B AR 7 (676,664) (774,863)
Profit before tax B 356 Bt A1 8 26,657 1,287,646
Income tax credit/(expense) FEfiEe, (k) 9 56,385 (184,373)
Profit for the year F R F 83,042 1,103,273
Other comprehensive income for the year, FRE 2 HEHKH -
net of tax HIBRBE
— Investments at fair value through other — AT EFAEM
comprehensive income (net movement 2HEKZHIEE
in investment revaluation reserve — (BRIEEEhHEE
recycling) gE) . n]ElE) (1,053) 8,308
— Investments at fair value through other — A EFTAEM
comprehensive income (net movement 2HBEIEE
in investment revaluation reserve — (BRI BEEMFHEE
non-recycling) #E) o A EE) (4,998) =
— Exchange difference on translation of —HNEE N =58
foreign exchange (43,144) 38,684
Total comprehensive income for the year FRAZHEWHZEAEE 33,847 1,150,265
Profit for the year attributable to: B iR
Owners of the Company ZIN/NEIEF =N 80,381 1,094,743
Non-controlling interests FE 12 i e 2 2,661 8,530
83,042 1,103,273
Total comprehensive income for the EBEFEFREZEKZALE:
year attributable to:
Owners of the Company RNRAREER A 33,928 1,141,735
Non-controlling interests FE5 fx = (81) 8,530
33,847 1,150,265
Earnings per share attributable to ordinary AT EERKR
equity holders of the parent EhEREF
— Basic (in HK cents) —EH AR (B 11(a) 0.8 11.4

- Diluted (in HK cents) — B8 (B IET) 11(b) 0.8 11.4
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Consolidated Statement of Financial Position

e B AR &R

As at 31 December 2022
H2022%12831H

2022 2021
20224 20214
Notes HK$’000 HK$'000
B 5 FBET T
Non-current assets FRBEE
Property, plant and equipment VI BB R 12 478,689 514,853
Goodwill and other intangible assets EENEMEREE 13 22,886 22,886
Other assets Hh&E 14 13,680 27,959
Deferred tax assets RIETIE & B 15 244,068 157,631
Derivative financial instruments TEEmIA 21 577,055 12,325
Financial assets at fair value through EAFEFAERZHN
profit or loss TREE 20 15,445,877 17,368,819
— Financial assets held for trading and —BEEBERKED
investments TREE 1,769,013 6,153,930
— Financial products — S BESR 13,676,864 11,214,889
Total non-current assets ERBEELTE 16,782,255 18,104,473
Current assets TENEE
Loans and advances to customers BTFREFPHNERNLER 16 6,391,369 15,854,687
Accounts receivable J& W R IE 18 5,641,386 6,559,681
Prepayments, deposits and other receivables FEfTFIHE « £ & &
E h fE W k1B 19 212,984 118,311
Financial assets at fair value through EAFEFAERZH
profit or loss TRLEE 20 41,928,120 37,472,478
— Financial assets held for trading and —BEEBERKED
investments TREE 9,666,306 17,088,058
- Financial products — S BEMm 32,261,814 20,384,420
Financial assets at fair value through BEAFEFAEMEE
other comprehensive income W mEE 20 82,304 11,529
Derivative financial instruments TEEmIT A 21 1,527,458 606,905
Receivable from reverse repurchase [ 1) 1B B 175 2k B W SR 0B
agreements 22 586,845 4,443,729
Tax recoverable A U Bl 75 18 198,764 33,585
Client trust bank balances B EsEIRITARR 23 13,347,021 17,804,841
Cash and cash equivalents BHeRBEEEEY 23 7,756,580 5,077,874
Total current assets MEEERRE 77,672,831 88,183,620
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Consolidated Statement of Financial Position

e B AR &R

As at 31 December 2022
H2022%12831H

2022 2021
2022%F 20214
Notes HK$’000 HK$'000
B oE FE T THBT
Current liabilities REAaE
Accounts payable JE < 7R 3B 24 (16,726,328)  (20,587,166)
Other payables and accrued liabilities HhENRERETAE 25 (602,958) (632,317)
Derivative financial instruments PTETRTE 21 (1,297,531) (426,552)
Interest bearing borrowings TR B 26 (9,333,620) (5,334,661)
Debt securities in issue EETEBRES 27 (28,719,537)  (34,153,825)
— At amortised cost — IR SR AR (3,784,775)  (18,298,551)
- Designated at fair value through —ETEEREAFEFABR
profit or loss (24,934,762) (15,855,274)
Financial liabilities at fair value through BAFEFAEBRN
profit or loss TRAE 28 (2,108,386) (8,772,805)
Obligations under repurchase agreements B 85 W = (B 1R 29 (7,695,073) (9,255,723)
Tax payable FET A IR (8,917) (157,353)
_Total current liabilities mBEMEEE 0 (66/492,350)  (79,320,402)
_Netcurrentassets nBKEFE 11180481 8863218
_Total assets less current liabilites RERBRRBASE 27962736 26,967,691
Non-current liabilities kRBEE
Deferred tax liabilities EEFIE B E 15 (10,736) (45,843)
Interest bearing borrowings B ER 26 (15,387) (40,542)
Derivative financial instruments MESMTE 21 (231,686) (106,409)
Debt securities in issue BEETERES 27 (12,768,731)  (11,337,958)
— At amortised cost — FR S AR (3,138,860) (3,139,345)
— Designated at fair value through —BEZAFEFAER
profit or loss (9,629,871) (8,198,613)
o (18,026,540)  (11,530,752)
Net assets EEFE 14,936,196 15,436,939
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Consolidated Statement of Financial Position

e B AR &R

As at 31 December 2022
H2022%12831H

2022 2021
2022%F 20214
Notes HK$’000 HK$’000
B oE FE T THT
Equity R
Share capital [N 30 10,911,163 10,911,163
Other reserve B Ath 5 33 (1,236,460) (1,236,460)
Currency translation reserve BN G (3,324) 37,078
Share-based compensation reserve VA RS 1 7 ZE 15t 25 B £ 26,132 27,429
— Share option reserve — R 31 26,132 27,429
— Share award reserve — WD B RE 32 - =
Investment revaluation reserve KEEHFEE 33 (4,998) 1,053
_Retained profits R&Ewr 511418  5567,098
Equity attributable to holders of the T AR IR R A R
ordinary shares 14,806,699 15,307,361
_Non-controlling interests s 129497 129,578
Total equity FESAEE 14,936,196 15,436,939

Dr. YIM Fung
EEE L
Director

EF

Ms. Ql Haiying
WEgELL
Director

EF
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||
Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity
mEEREEH X
Year ended 31 December 2022
HZE2022F12 A31HILFE

Shares Investment
held under Investment  revaluation
Currency Share Share  the share revaluation reserve Non-
Share Other translation option award award  Retained reserve (non- controlling Total
capital reserve reserve reserve reserve scheme profits  (recycling) recycling) Total interests equity
RHEE REEfT REER
L RERE  FEET i ffe

Ba  EtthfE e BEERR ffE FENRG  RERN  (THE) (AUHE) f FEREE  RE4E
HKS000  HKS'000  HKS'000  HKS'000  HKS'000  HKS'000  HKS'000  HKS000  HKS'000  HKS'000  HKS'000  HKS'000
Térn  fEx TR TEx  TEx  TEx Tz TEx  TE#r  TEx  TER  Tén

Balance at 1 January 2021 120211 1B H)
i3 10,908,749  (1,236,460) (1,606) 32,521 9,085 (30,672) 5,443,757 (7,255) - 15,118,119 121,048 15,239,167

Total comprehensive income A2 AR AE

for the year - - 38,684 - - - 1,004,743 8,308
Recognition of equity-settled  FERAMER T E

share-based payments ARG BER

(notes 31 and 32) 3% (W 331 R32) - = - 1,462 6,314 - - - - 7,776 - 7,776
Vesting of shares for the share k{7 R0zt &5 8

award scheme (note 32) R (RizE32) - = =
Shares issued upon exercise R iEaH BB T 176

of share options under the ~ BIREMETH

share option scheme (notes  B&{3 (P zE30R%31)

30and 31) 2,414 . - 73) - - . . - 1,681 . 1,681
Transfer of share option BREXAMERE

reserve upon the forfeiture of AR B R (FE31)

1,141,785 8,030 1,150,265

(15,399) 16,879 (7,484) = (6,004) (6,004)

share options (note 31) - - - (6,821) - - 5,821 - - - - -
Disposal of shares held under & &7 #2815t &
share award scheme BT ANHRD = = - - - 13793 - - - 18,793 - 18,793
Final dividend for 2020 220205 K HR &
(note 10) (B3x10) = = = = - - (489,670) - - (489,670) - (489,670)
Interim dividend for 2021 01 ERHRE
(note 10) (B3x10) = = = = - - (480,069) - - (480,069) - (480,069)
Balance at 31 December R2021512A318 &
2021 and 1 January 2022 202251R188
&5 10,911,163 (1,236,460) 37,078 27,429 - - 5,567,098 1,063 - 15,307,361 129,578 15,436,939
Total comprehensive income ~ FAZERZAE
for the year - - (40409) - - - 80,381 (1,083) (4098 33,928 81) 33847

Recognition of equity-settled  HERRMER T E U

share-based payments R AEROEH

(notes 31 and 32) (M31R32) - - - 417 - - - - - 47 - a7
Transfer of share option BREXNAMER

reserve upon the forfeiture of  EREEE

share options (note 31) (Ki&31) - - - (1,714) - - 1,714 - - - - -
Share repurchase (note 30) {388 (FzE30) - - - - - - (56,969) - - (56,969) - (56,969)
Final dividend for 2021 (note 20215 KR 5.

10) (Ki&10) - - - - - - (95879) - - (95878) - (95,878
Interim and special dividend 2022 E R 47

for 2022 (note 10) 8 (F3E10) - - - - - - (382,160) - - (382,160) - (382,160)

Balance at 31 December 2022 1202212431 H &)
#5 10,911,163 (1,236,460) (3,324) 26,132 - - 5114186 - (4,998) 14,806,699 129,497 14,936,196
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Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows

REEHERER

Year ended 31 December 2022
HZE2022F12831HIEFE

2022 2021
2022%F 20214
Notes HK$’000 HK$'000
B 5 FET T
Net cash flows from operating activities KL EEFTS
REmEF5E 36 1,663,221 5,879,052
Cash flows from investing activities REZTBHEESRE
Purchases of property, plant and BEME  WERZE
equipment 12 (39,296) (43,062)
Net cash flows used in investing activities KREEHFABE S REFH (39,296) (43,062)
Cash flows from financing activities RMEITBHEERE
Net proceed/(repayment) of IRITIEFRFASRIE, (BH)
bank borrowings F R 3,998,436 (4,408,497)
Proceeds from issuance of debt securities BITEBE ST RIE 81,830,235 96,210,967
Repayment of debt securities EEEHES (84,463,134)  (96,794,533)
Net proceeds from issuance of shares IE AR AT M 1T
upon exercise of share options F{S 3R IB F 58 31 - 1,681
Disposal of shares held under share SR D RENETEIIE T
award scheme F B B G - 13,793
Dividend paid to shareholders SN TS 10 (478,038) (969,739)
Principal portion of lease payments HENZNAEHD (27,303) (30,364)
Interest portion of lease payments HENKBFEF D (1,359) (1,292)
Repurchase of shares = B f% 15 30 (56,969) =
Net cash flows from/(used in) financing MEEERE (BA)
activities RengFs 801,868 (5,977,984)
Net increase/(decrease) in cash and ReRBESESEWEM
cash equivalents (R) F8 2,425,793 (141,994)
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning FMReRBEEEEY
of year 5,154,748 5,258,088
Effect of foreign exchange rate changes, fEREBMN R EFE
net (43,090) 38,845
Effect of impairment provision on cash BEREBHRERRE
and cash equivalents, net EEYNTEFE (135) (191)

Cash and cash equivalents at end of year FREERBEEZEY 7,537,316 5,154,748
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Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows

mERERER

Year ended 31 December 2022
HZE2022F12831HIEFE

2022 2021
20224 20214
Notes HK$’000 HK$'000
B 5 FBET T
Analysis of balances of cash and REeRESZEYN
cash equivalents EER DT
Cash and bank balances 8 e MIRTTE 23 7,478,709 5,080,107
Non-pledged time deposits with original GFREREHETE=MA
maturity of less than three months /2R 45 38 TF BB 17 3K
when acquired 23 58,607 74,641
Cash and cash equivalents as stated RERERERMIZ
in the consolidated statement of ReMBREEFEEY
cash flows 7,537,316 5,154,748
Non-pledged time deposits with original TR REIHE B R
maturity more than three months but =@AR BTR—FHN
less than one year when acquired AR T HF R 23 219,264 123,126
Cash and cash equivalents as stated RAE VAR R 2
in the consolidated statement of ReERREEEY
financial position 7,756,580 5,277,874
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Notes to Financial Statements

Bt 5 ¥R 3R B &

31 December 2022
2022412 A31H

Corporate and group information

Guotai Junan International Holdings Limited (the “Company”) was
incorporated on 8 March 2010 in Hong Kong with limited liability
under the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance and its shares were
listed on the Main Board of The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong
Limited (the “Stock Exchange”) on 8 July 2010. The registered
office address of the Company is 27th Floor, Low Block, Grand
Millennium Plaza, 181 Queen’s Road Central, Hong Kong. The
Company is an investment holding company and its subsidiaries
are principally engaged in brokerage, corporate finance, asset
management, loans and financing, financial products, market
making and investments.

The Company’s immediate holding company and ultimate holding
company are Guotai Junan Financial Holdings Limited (“GJFHL”)
incorporated in Hong Kong and Guotai Junan Securities Company
Limited (“GJSCL”) incorporated in the People’s Republic of China,
respectively.

Particulars of the principal subsidiaries as at 31 December 2022 are
as follows:

RAREEEHR

BlRAELTBEERER AR (AR
All) A MR2010F3A8H BRI FH
CREMEBD) EER B MK 2 B R
AR AR EE R D R2010%67 A8
BEEEBMEZZMBR AR (5
RET)) ER ET - AR RGP E
BRI AEH B2/ KNEF1815%
4 TR SR E27HE - K DT AK
B Ar ENBAREE/E
K rERE BEETE -BX
LmE eMER MMAkEEE
jﬁ%o

RAB N ERER QR R &ZIER
DA Bl A I F 8 R AR AL B B B
BELERARAA ((BHRELER
ER) R AR EE AR KM B GE
RINBEREZLEFBNERAA
(TBEH=ERILEH]) °

R2022%F12A31H T2 B A A
BT

Percentage of equity attributable

Place of to the Company
incorporation ADFEERER AL
Company name and business Share capital Direct Indirect  Principal activities
ARER AMAIREERE KA B BiE TEEER
Guotai Junan (Hong Kong) Limited Samoa/Hong Kong  US$816,300,000 100% - Provision of general administration
(“GJHK") and support services to its fellow
subsidiaries
BREZ (BE)FRAR BED/E% 816,300,000% 1. 100% - NRAZMBARRE-REBRIE
((BRERZER]) R
Guotai Junan International Singapore SG$9,300,000 100% - Provision of general administration
(Singapore) Pte. Limited and support services to its fellow
subsidiaries
% 9,300,000%7 A3 7T 100% - RRRMEBARRE-REBRXE

R
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B % R R MY &t
31 December 2022
2022912 A31H
1. Corporate and group information (continued) 1. REAIREEER @
Percentage of equity attributable
Place of to the Company
incorporation EARELERERD L
Company name and business Share capital Direct Indirect  Principal activities
ARER AMRIREE LT KA B BiE TEEER
Guotai Junan International Singapore SG$4,200,000 100% - Asset management
Asset Management (Singapore)
Pte. Limited CiplIE 4,200,000%7 f1K 7T 100% - BEER
Guotai Junan International Singapore $G$3,500,000 100% - Securities brokerage and other financial
Securities (Singapore) Pte. services
Limited
CiplIE 8,500,000 M3 7T 100% - BFRERHEMERRE
Guotai Junan Securities Hong Kong HK$7,500,000,000 100% - Securities dealing and broking and
(Hong Kong) Limited provision of wealth management
services
BRAERES (BE)BR BA 7,500,000,000% 7T 100% - BERFREEUARRENEEERE
Guotai Junan Futures Hong Kong HK$50,000,000 100% - Futures dealing and broking
(Hong Kong) Limited
BRARHE (FE) R BA 50,000,000 7 100% - HEEERER
Guotai Junan Finance Hong Kong HK$300,000,000 100% - Trading in securities
(Hong Kong) Limited
BRARHE (FE)BR BA 300,000,0007% 7T 100% - ZFEE
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Notes to Financial Statements

Bt 5 ¥R 3R B &

31 December 2022
2022412 A31H

1.

Corporate and group information (continued)

Percentage of equity attributable

1.

APEIREEER @)

Place of to the Company
incorporation EARELERERD L
Company name and business Share capital Direct Indirect  Principal activities
ARER AMRIREE LT KA B BiE TEEER
Guotai Junan Capital Limited Hong Kong HK$50,000,000 100% - Provision of consultancy and financial
services
BREZRERRAA EE 50,000,000 7T 100% - REZARMBRSE
Guotai Junan Assets (Asia) Hong Kong HK$50,000,000 100% - Asset management
Limited
AREREEERE (DM ERAR & 50,000,000/ ¢ 100% - BEER
Guotai Junan Fund Management ~ Hong Kong HK$10,000,000 50% - Asset management and trading in
Limited® securities
BRERESERERAR B 10,000,000/ 7 50% - BEEBRBSER
Guotai Junan Financial Products ~ Hong Kong HK$1,000,000 100% - Trading in securities
Limited
AREZeRHERARAA BA 1,000,000/ 7T 100% - HHEE
Guotai Junan FX Limited Hong Kong HK$30,000,000 100% - Leveraged foreign exchange dealing
and broking
BREZINEERAA B 30,000,000/ 70 100% - BEIANERFRELR
Guotai Junan Securities (Vietnam) ~ Vietnam VND693,500 50.97% - Securities dealing and broking and
Corporation million margin financing
B%RZE &% () kA il 693,500,000,000 50.97% - BERH BERFEBE

BEE
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B 7% R R MY &
31 December 2022
2022912 A31H
1. Corporate and group information (continued) 1. DaAk&EBER »

Percentage of equity attributable

Place of to the Company
incorporation EAFEERERSL
Company name and business Share capital Direct Indirect  Principal activities

DEEE

EMALREERE RE EE

BE TEXK

Guotai Junan Asia Dynamic Fund ~ Cayman Islands Note 1 - 100%  Investments holding
RE#s il - 100% ®AEK
Guotai Junan Asia Investment Cayman Islands Note 1 - 66% Investments holding
Grade Bond Fund SP
RErSs ial - 66% RAER
Guotai Junan Value Vintage Equity Cayman Islands Note 1 - 100%  Investments holding
Feeder Fund
REHS izt - 100% REER
Note 1:  These consolidated investment funds are subsidiaries for the purpose of MizE1 : B ETRBDKEE /M s 0 %
Appendix 16 of the Listing Rules. These consolidated investment funds are EEAMBESARB AT © %
not body corporates and therefore do not have any share capital. ZEEARBESWIEEAEFE -
& bk I B AERARA o
Note 2:  The Group considers that it has the ability to govern the financial and Mfiz32: BHRAEBEENEZEETXRBRE

operating policies of the entity as the Group has the power to appoint or
remove the majority of the members of its board of directors.

The above table lists the subsidiaries of the Company which, in
the opinion of the directors, principally affected the results for the
year or formed a substantial portion of the net assets of the Group.
To give details of other subsidiaries would, in the opinion of the
directors, result in particulars of excessive length.

During the year ended 31 December 2022, the Group has fully
redeemed the participating shares in Guotai Junan Asia High
Income Bond Fund SP and Guotai Junan Thematic Fund SPC -
GTJA China Dynamic Bond Fund and therefore lost control over
these structured entities.

These financial statements were approved and authorised for issue
by the board of directors on 27 March 2023.
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2.1 IRBEE

2.1 Basis of preparation

These financial statements have been prepared in accordance
with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards (“HKFRSs”) (which
include all applicable HKFRSs, Hong Kong Accounting Standards
(“"HKASs”) and Interpretations) issued by the Hong Kong Institute
of Certified Public Accountants (“HKICPA”), accounting principles
generally accepted in Hong Kong and the Hong Kong Companies
Ordinance. They have been prepared under the historical cost
convention, except for financial assets and financial liabilities at fair
value through profit or loss, financial assets at fair value through
other comprehensive income, debt securities in issue designated at
fair value through profit or loss and derivative financial instruments
which have been measured at fair value.

These financial statements are presented in Hong Kong dollars
and all values are rounded to the nearest thousand except when
otherwise stated.

Basis of consolidation

The consolidated financial statements include the financial
statements of the Company and its subsidiaries (collectively
referred to as the “Group”) for the year ended 31 December 2022.
A subsidiary is an entity (including a structured entity), directly or
indirectly, controlled by the Company. Control is achieved when
the Group is exposed, or has rights, to variable returns from its
involvement with the investee and has the ability to affect those
returns through its power over the investee (i.e., existing rights that
give the Group the current ability to direct the relevant activities of
the investee).
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2.1 Basis of preparation (continued)

Basis of consolidation (continued)

When the Company has, directly or indirectly, less than a majority
of the voting or similar rights of an investee, the Group considers all
relevant facts and circumstances in assessing whether it has power
over an investee, including:

(@) the contractual arrangement with the other vote holders of
the investee;

(b) rights arising from other contractual arrangements; and

(c) the Group’s voting rights and potential voting rights.

The financial statements of the subsidiaries are prepared for
the same reporting period as the Company, using consistent
accounting policies. The results of subsidiaries are consolidated
from the date on which the Group obtains control, and continue to
be consolidated until the date that such control ceases.

Profit or loss and each component of other comprehensive income
are attributed to the owners of the parent of the Group and to the
non-controlling interests, even if this results in the non-controlling
interests having a deficit balance. All intra-group assets and
liabilities, equity, income, expenses and cash flows relating to
transactions between members of the Group are eliminated in full
on consolidation.

The Group reassesses whether or not it controls an investee if
facts and circumstances indicate that there are changes to one or
more of the three elements of control described above. A change in
the ownership interest of a subsidiary (without a loss of control) is
accounted for as an equity transaction.

Certain comparative figures have been reclassified to conform to
current year’s presentation.
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2.2Changes in accounting policies and
disclosures

The Group has applied the following amendments to HKFRSs
issued by the HKICPA to these financial statements for the current
accounting period:

° Amendments to HKAS 16, Property, plant and equipment:
Proceeds before intended use

° Amendments to HKAS 37, Provisions, contingent liabilities
and contingent assets: Onerous contracts — cost of fulfilling
a contract

The Group has not applied any new standard or interpretation that
is not yet effective for the current accounting period. Impacts of the
adoption of the amended HKFRSs are discussed below:

Amendments to HKAS 16, Property, plant and
equipment: Proceeds before intended use

The amendments prohibit an entity from deducting the proceeds
from selling items produced before that asset is available for use
from the cost of an item of property, plant and equipment. Instead,
the sales proceeds and the related costs should be included in
profit and loss. The amendments do not have a material impact
on these financial statements as the Group does not sell items
produced before an item of property, plant and equipment is
available for use.

Amendments to HKAS 37, Provisions,
contingent liabilities and contingent assets:
Onerous contracts — cost of fulfilling a contract

The amendments clarify that for the purpose of assessing whether a
contract is onerous, the cost of fulfilling the contract includes both
the incremental costs of fulfilling that contract and an allocation of
other costs that relate directly to fulfilling contracts.

Previously, the Group included only incremental costs when
determining whether a contract was onerous. In accordance
with the transitional provisions, the Group has applied the new
accounting policy to contracts for which it has not yet fulfilled all
its obligations at 1 January 2022, and has concluded that none of
them is onerous.
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23X EEHHEHME

2.3 Summary of significant accounting policies

Fair value measurement

The Group measures its financial assets and financial liabilities at
fair value through profit or loss, financial assets at fair value through
other comprehensive income, debt securities in issue designated at
fair value through profit or loss and derivative financial instruments,
fund investments, debt investments and equity investments at fair
value at the end of each reporting period. Fair value is the price that
would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an
orderly transaction between market participants at the measurement
date. The fair value measurement is based on the presumption that
the transaction to sell the asset or transfer the liability takes place
either in the principal market for the asset or liability, (or in the
absence of a principal market) in the most advantageous market for
the asset or liability. The principal or the most advantageous market
must be accessible by the Group. The fair value of an asset or a
liability is measured using the assumptions that market participants
would use when pricing the asset or liability, assuming that market
participants act in their economic best interest.

A fair value measurement of a non-financial asset takes into
account a market participant’s ability to generate economic benefits
by using the asset in its highest and best use or by selling it to
another market participant that would use the asset in its highest
and best use.

The Group uses valuation techniques that are appropriate in
the circumstances and for which sufficient data are available to
measure fair value, maximising the use of relevant observable inputs
and minimising the use of unobservable inputs.
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2.3 Summary of significant accounting policies
(continued)

Fair value measurement (continued)

All assets and liabilities for which fair value is measured or disclosed
in the financial statements are categorised within the fair value
hierarchy, described as follows, based on the lowest level input that
is significant to the fair value measurement as a whole:

Level 1 - based on quoted prices (unadjusted) in active
markets for identical assets or liabilities

Level 2 - based on valuation techniques for which the
lowest level input that is significant to the
fair value measurement is observable (either
directly or indirectly)

Level 3 - based on valuation techniques for which the
lowest level input that is significant to the fair
value measurement is unobservable

For assets and liabilities that are recognised in the financial
statements on a recurring basis, the Group determines whether
transfers have occurred between levels in the hierarchy by
reassessing categorisation (based on the lowest level input that is
significant to the fair value measurement as a whole) at the end of
each reporting period.

Impairment of non-financial assets

Where an indication of impairment exists, or when annual
impairment testing for an asset is required (other than financial
assets), the asset’s recoverable amount is estimated. An asset’s
recoverable amount is the higher of the asset’s or cash-generating
unit’s value in use and its fair value less costs of disposal, and
is determined for an individual asset, unless the asset does not
generate cash inflows that are largely independent of those from
other assets or groups of assets, in which case the recoverable
amount is determined for the cash-generating unit to which the
asset belongs.
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2.3 Summary of significant accounting policies

23X ESHHERME(»)

(continued)

Impairment of non-financial assets (continued)

An impairment loss is recognised only if the carrying amount of an
asset exceeds its recoverable amount. In assessing value in use,
the estimated future cash flows are discounted to their present
value using a pre-tax discount rate that reflects current market
assessments of the time value of money and the risks specific to
the asset. An impairment loss is charged to profit or loss in the
period in which it arises in those expense categories consistent with
the function of the impaired asset.

An assessment is made at the end of each reporting period as to
whether there is an indication that previously recognised impairment
losses may no longer exist or may have decreased. If such an
indication exists, the recoverable amount is estimated. A previously
recognised impairment loss of an asset is reversed only if there has
been a change in the estimates used to determine the recoverable
amount of that asset, but not to an amount higher than the carrying
amount that would have been determined (net of any depreciation)
had no impairment loss been recognised for the asset in prior
years. A reversal of such an impairment loss is credited to profit or
loss in the period in which it arises.

Property, plant and equipment and depreciation
Property, plant and equipment are stated at cost less accumulated
depreciation and any impairment losses. The cost of an item of
property, plant and equipment comprises its purchase price and
any directly attributable costs of bringing the asset to its working
condition and location for its intended use.

Expenditure incurred after items of property, plant and equipment
have been put into operation, such as repairs and maintenance,
is normally charged to profit or loss in the period in which it is
incurred. In situations where the recognition criteria are satisfied,
the expenditure for a major inspection is capitalised in the carrying
amount of the asset as a replacement. Where significant parts
of property, plant and equipment are required to be replaced at
intervals, the Group recognises such parts as individual assets with
specific useful lives and depreciates them accordingly.
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2.3 Summary of significant accounting policies 2.3 TE@:HHEME »)

(continued)

Property, plant and equipment and depreciation
(continued)

Depreciation is calculated on the straight-line basis to write off the
cost of each item of property, plant and equipment to its residual
value over its estimated useful life. The principal annual rates used
for this purpose are as follows:

Buildings 25-40 years
Leasehold improvements 3 years
Office equipment 3 years
Furniture and fixtures 3 years
Motor vehicles 3 years

Where parts of an item of property, plant and equipment have
different useful lives, the cost of that item is allocated on a
reasonable basis among the parts and each part is depreciated
separately. Residual values, useful lives and the depreciation
method are reviewed, and adjusted if appropriate, at least at each
financial year end.

An item of property, plant and equipment including any significant
part initially recognised is derecognised upon disposal or when no
future economic benefits are expected from its use or disposal. Any
gain or loss on disposal or retirement recognised in profit or loss in
the year the asset is derecognised is the difference between the net
sales proceeds and the carrying amount of the relevant asset.
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2.3 Summary of significant accounting policies

23X ESHHERME(»)

(continued)

Leases

The Group assesses at contract inception whether a contract is, or
contains, a lease. A contract is, or contains, a lease if the contract
conveys the right to control the use of an identified asset for a
period of time in exchange for consideration.

Group as a lessee

The Group applies a single recognition and measurement approach
for all leases, except for short-term leases and leases of low-value
assets. The Group recognises lease liabilities to make lease
payments and right-of-use assets representing the right to use the
underlying assets.

(@) Right-of-use assets

Right-of-use assets are recognised at the commencement
date of the lease (that is the date the underlying asset is
available for use). Right-of-use assets are measured at cost,
less any accumulated depreciation and any impairment
losses, and adjusted for any remeasurement of lease liabilities.
The cost of right-of-use assets includes the amount of lease
liabilities recognised, initial direct costs incurred, and lease
payments made at or before the commencement date less any
lease incentives received. Right-of-use assets are depreciated
on a straight-line basis over the shorter of the lease terms and
the estimated useful lives of the assets as follows:

Leasehold land 25 to 40 years
Building 1 to 3 years

If ownership of the leased asset transfers to the Group by
the end of the lease term or the cost reflects the exercise
of a purchase option, depreciation is calculated using the
estimated useful life of the asset.

The Group’s right-of-use assets are included in property, plant
and equipment.
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2.3 Summary of significant accounting policies
(continued)

Leases (continued)
Group as a lessee (continued)

(o)

Lease liabilities

Lease liabilities are recognised at the commencement date
of the lease at the present value of lease payments to be
made over the lease term. The lease payments include fixed
payments (including in-substance fixed payments) less any
lease incentives receivable, variable lease payments that
depend on an index or a rate, and amounts expected to be
paid under residual value guarantees. The lease payments also
include the exercise price of a purchase option reasonably
certain to be exercised by the Group and payments of
penalties for termination of a lease (if the lease term reflects
the Group exercising the option to terminate). The variable
lease payments that do not depend on an index or a rate are
recognised as an expense in the period in which the event or
condition that triggers the payment occurs.

In calculating the present value of lease payments, the
Group uses its incremental borrowing rate at the lease
commencement date because the interest rate implicit in the
lease is not readily determinable. After the commencement
date, the amount of lease liabilities is increased to reflect
the accretion of interest and reduced for the lease payments
made. In addition, the carrying amount of lease liabilities is
remeasured if there is a modification, a change in the lease
term, a change in lease payments (e.g., a change to future
lease payments resulting from a change in an index or rate)
or a change in assessment of an option to purchase the
underlying asset.

The Group’s lease liabilities are included in interest bearing
borrowings.
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2.3 Summary of significant accounting policies

23X ESHHERME(»)

(continued)

Leases (continued)
Group as a lessee (continued)
(c) Short-term leases and leases of low-value assets

The Group applies the short-term lease recognition exemption
to its short-term leases of property and office equipment (that
is those leases that have a lease term of 12 months or less
from the commencement date and do not contain a purchase
option). It also applies the recognition exemption for leases
of low-value assets to leases of office equipment and laptop
computers that are considered to be of low value.

Lease payments on short-term leases and leases of low-value
assets are recognised as an expense on a straight-line basis
over the lease term.

Group as a lessor

When the Group acts as a lessor, it classifies at lease inception (or
when there is a lease modification) each of its leases as either an
operating lease or a finance lease.

Leases in which the Group does not transfer substantially all
the risks and rewards incidental to ownership of an asset are
classified as operating leases. When a contract contains lease and
non-lease components, the Group allocates the consideration in
the contract to each component on a relative stand-alone selling
price basis. Rental income is accounted for on a straight-line basis
over the lease terms and is included in revenue in the consolidated
statement of profit or loss due to its operating nature. Initial direct
costs incurred in negotiating and arranging an operating lease are
added to the carrying amount of the leased asset and recognised
over the lease term on the same basis as rental income. Contingent
rents are recognised as revenue in the period in which they are
earned.

Leases that transfer substantially all the rewards and risks and
rewards incidental to of ownership of an underlying assets to the
lessee Group (other than legal title, are accounted for as finance
leases.
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2.3 Summary of significant accounting policies

23X ESHHERME(»)

(continued)

Business combinations and goodwill

Business combinations are accounted for using the acquisition
method. The consideration transferred is measured at the
acquisition date fair value which is the sum of the acquisition
date fair values of assets transferred by the Group, liabilities
assumed by the Group to the former owners of the acquiree and
the equity interests issued by the Group in exchange for control
of the acquiree. For each business combination, the Group elects
whether to measure the non-controlling interests in the acquiree
that are present ownership interests and entitle their holders to a
proportionate share of net assets in the event of liquidation at fair
value or at the proportionate share of the acquiree’s identifiable
net assets. All other components of non-controlling interests are
measured at fair value. Acquisition-related costs are expensed as
incurred.

When the Group acquires a business, it assesses the financial
assets and liabilities assumed for appropriate classification and
designation in accordance with the contractual terms, economic
circumstances and pertinent conditions as at the acquisition date.
This includes the separation of embedded derivatives in host
contracts of the acquiree.

If the business combination is achieved in stages, the previously
held equity interest is remeasured at its acquisition date fair value
and any resulting gain or loss is recognised in profit or loss.

Any contingent consideration to be transferred by the acquirer
is recognised at fair value at the acquisition date. Contingent
consideration classified as an asset or liability is measured
at fair value with changes in fair value recognised in profit or
loss. Contingent consideration that is classified as equity is not
remeasured and subsequent settlement is accounted for within
equity.
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2.3 Summary of significant accounting policies

23X ESHHERME(»)

(continued)

Business combinations and goodwill (continued)
Goodwill is initially measured at cost, being the excess of the
aggregate of the consideration transferred, the amount recognised
for non-controlling interests and any fair value of the Group’s
previously held equity interests in the acquiree over the identifiable
net assets acquired and liabilities assumed. If the sum of this
consideration and other items is lower than the fair value of the net
assets acquired, the difference is, after reassessment, recognised
in profit or loss as a gain on bargain purchase.

After initial recognition, goodwill is measured at cost less
any accumulated impairment losses. Goodwill is tested for
impairment annually or more frequently if events or changes in
circumstances indicate that the carrying value may be impaired.
The Group performs its annual impairment test of goodwill as at
31 December. For the purpose of impairment testing, goodwill
acquired in a business combination is, from the acquisition date,
allocated to each of the Group’s cash-generating units, or groups
of cash-generating units, that are expected to benefit from the
synergies of the combination, irrespective of whether other assets
or liabilities of the Group are assigned to those units or groups of
units.

Impairment is determined by assessing the recoverable amount
of the cash-generating unit (group of cash-generating units) to
which the goodwill relates. Where the recoverable amount of
the cash-generating unit (group of cash-generating units) is less
than the carrying amount, an impairment loss is recognised.
An impairment loss recognised for goodwill is not reversed in a
subsequent period.

Where goodwill has been allocated to a cash-generating unit (or
group of cash-generating units) and part of the operation within
that unit is disposed of, the goodwill associated with the operation
disposed of is included in the carrying amount of the operation
when determining the gain or loss on the disposal. Goodwill
disposed of in these circumstances is measured based on the
relative value of the operation disposed of and the portion of the
cash-generating unit retained.
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2.3 Summary of significant accounting policies

23X ESHHERME(»)

(continued)

Intangible assets (other than goodwill)

Intangible assets are measured on initial recognition at cost. The
useful lives of intangible assets are assessed to be either finite
or indefinite. Intangible assets with finite lives are subsequently
amortised over the useful economic life and assessed for
impairment whenever there is an indication that the intangible asset
may be impaired. The amortisation period and the amortisation
method for an intangible asset with a finite useful life are reviewed
at least at each financial year end.

Intangible assets, representing eligibility rights to trade on or
through The Hong Kong Stock Exchange Limited (the “Stock
Exchange”) and The Hong Kong Futures Exchange Limited, with
indefinite useful lives are tested for impairment annually either
individually or at the cash-generating unit level. These intangible
assets are not amortised. The useful life of an intangible asset with
an indefinite life is reviewed annually to determine whether indefinite
life assessment continues to be supportable. If not, the change in
the useful life assessment from indefinite to finite is accounted for
on a prospective basis.

Financial assets and liabilities

Initial recognition and measurement

Financial assets and financial liabilities are recognised when
the entity becomes a party to the contractual provisions of the
instrument. Regular way purchases and sales of financial assets are
recognised on trade-date, the date on which the Group commits to
purchase or sell the asset.
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2.3 Summary of significant accounting policies

23X ESHHERME(»)

(continued)

Financial assets and liabilities (continued)

Initial recognition and measurement (continued)

At initial recognition, the Group measures a financial asset or
financial liability at its fair value plus or minus, in the case of a
financial asset or financial liability not at fair value through profit or
loss, transaction costs that are incremental and directly attributable
to the acquisition or issue of the financial asset or financial liability,
such as fees and commissions. Transaction costs of financial assets
and financial liabilities carried at fair value through profit or loss are
expensed in profit or loss. Immediately after initial recognition, an
expected credit loss (“ECL”) allowance is recognised for financial
assets measured at amortised cost and investments in debt
instruments measured at fair value through other comprehensive
income (“FVOCI”), which results in an accounting loss being
recognised in profit or loss when an asset is newly originated.

When the fair value of financial assets and liabilities differs from the
transaction price on initial recognition, the entity recognises the
difference as follows:

(i) When the fair value is evidenced by a quoted price in an
active market for an identical asset or liability (i.e. a Level 1
input) or based on a valuation technique that uses only data
from observable markets, the difference is recognised as a
gain or loss.

(i) In all other cases, the difference is deferred and the
timing of recognition of deferred day one profit or loss is
determined individually. It is either amortised over the life of
the instrument, deferred until the instrument’s fair value can
be determined using market observable inputs, or realised
through settlement.
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2.3 Summary of significant accounting policies

(continued)

Financial assets and liabilities (continued)

(a) Financial assets

()  Classification and subsequent measurement
The Group’s financial assets include accounts receivable,
deposits and other receivables, loans and advances to
customers, client trust bank balances, financial assets
at fair value through profit or loss, financial assets at fair
value through other comprehensive income, receivable
from reverse repurchase agreements, derivative financial
instruments, other assets and cash and cash equivalent.

The Group has applied HKFRS 9 and classifies its
financial assets in the following measurement categories:

(i) Fair value through profit or loss (“FVTPL");

(i) Fair value through other comprehensive income

(“FVOCI”); or

(i)~ Amortised cost.

The classification requirements for debt and equity

instruments are described below:

Debt instruments

Classification and subsequent measurement of debt

instruments depend on:

()  the Group’s business model for managing the

asset; and;

(i) the cash flows characteristics of the asset.
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2.3 Summary of significant accounting policies
(continued)

Financial assets and liabilities (continued)
(a) Financial assets (continued)

(i)

Classification and subsequent measurement
(continued)

Debt instruments (continued)

Business model assessment:

The business model reflects how the Group manages
the assets in order to generate cash flows. That is,
whether the Group’s objective is solely to collect the
contractual cash flows from the assets or is to collect
both the contractual cash flows and cash flows arising
from the sale of assets. If neither of these is applicable
(e.g. financial assets are held for trading purposes),
then the financial assets are classified as part of ‘other’
business model and measured at FVTPL. Factors
considered by the Group in determining the business
model for a group of assets include past experience on
how the cash flows for these assets were collected, how
the asset’s performance is evaluated and reported to
key management personnel, how risks are assessed and
managed and how managers are compensated.
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2.3 Summary of significant accounting policies
(continued)

Financial assets and liabilities (continued)
(a) Financial assets (continued)

(i)

Classification and subsequent measurement
(continued)

Debt instruments (continued)

SPPI test:

The Group assesses the contractual terms of instruments
to identify whether the contractual cash flows are ‘solely
payments of principal and interest on the principal
amount outstanding’ (“SPPI”). Financial assets that
are consistent with a basic lending arrangement are
considered to meet the SPPI criterion. In a ‘basic
lending arrangement’, consideration for the time value of
money and credit risk are typically the most significant
elements of interest. It may also include consideration
for other basic lending risks such as liquidity risks, costs
associated with holding the financial assets for a period
of time (e.g., servicing or administrative costs) and a
profit margin.

Financial assets with embedded derivatives are
considered in their entirety when determining whether
their cash flows are solely payments of principal and
interest.
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2.3 Summary of significant accounting policies

(continued)

Financial assets and liabilities (continued)

(a) Financial assets (continued)

()  Classification and subsequent measurement

(continued)
Debt instruments (continued)
SPPI test: (continued)

Based on these factors, the Group classifies its debt
instruments into one of the following three measurement

categories:

Amortised cost: Assets that are held for collection of
contractual cash flows where those cash flows represent
solely payments of principal and interest (“SPPI”), and
that are not designated at FVTPL, are measured at
amortised cost. The carrying amount of these assets
is adjusted by any ECL allowance recognised and
measured as described in note 2.3(a)(ii). Interest income
from these financial assets is included in ‘Interest income
from market making debt securities’ and ‘Interest income
from fixed income securities’ using the effective interest

rate method.

FVOCI: Financial assets that are held for collection
of contractual cash flows and for selling the assets,
where the assets’ cash flows represent SPPI, and that
are not designated at FVTPL, are measured at FVOCI.
Movements in the carrying amount are taken through
OCI, except for the recognition of impairment gains or
losses, interest revenue and foreign exchange gains and
losses on the instrument’s amortised cost which are
recognised in profit or loss. When the financial asset
is derecognised, the cumulative gain or loss previously
recognised in OCI is reclassified from equity to profit or
loss and recognised in ‘Other income’. Interest income
from these financial assets is included in ‘Interest income
from market making debt securities’ and ‘Interest income
from fixed income securities’ using the effective interest

rate method.
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2.3 Summary of significant accounting policies

(continued)

Financial assets and liabilities (continued)

(a) Financial assets (continued)

()  Classification and subsequent measurement

(continued)
Debt instruments (continued)
SPPI test: (continued)

FVTPL: Assets that do not meet the criteria for amortised
cost or FVOCI are measured at fair value through
profit or loss. A gain or loss on a debt investment
that is subsequently measured at fair value through
profit or loss and is not part of a hedging relationship
is recognised in profit or loss and presented in the
statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive
income within ‘Net trading gain/loss from debt securities
market making’ in the period in which it arises. Interest
income from these financial assets is included in “Interest
income from market making debt securities’ and ‘Interest
income from fixed income securities” using the effective

interest rate method.

The Group reclassifies debt investments when and only
when its business model for managing those assets
changes. The reclassification takes place from the start
of the first reporting period following the change. Such
changes are expected to be very infrequent and none

occurred during the period.
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2.3 Summary of significant accounting policies
(continued)

Financial assets and liabilities (continued)
(a) Financial assets (continued)

(i)

Classification and subsequent measurement
(continued)

Equity instruments

Equity instruments are instruments that meet the
definition of equity from the issuer’s perspective; that is,
instruments that do not contain a contractual obligation
to pay and that evidence a residual interest in the
issuer’s net assets. Examples of equity instruments
include basic ordinary shares.

The Group subsequently measures all equity investments
at fair value through profit or loss, except where the
Group’s management has elected, at initial recognition,
to irrevocably designate an equity investment at fair
value through other comprehensive income. The Group’s
policy is to designate equity investments as FVOCI when
those investments are held for purposes other than
to generate investment returns. When this election is
used, fair value gains and losses are recognised in OCI
and are not subsequently reclassified to profit or loss,
including on disposal. Impairment losses (and reversal
of impairment losses) are not reported separately from
other changes in fair value. Dividends, when represent a
return on such investments, continue to be recognised
in profit or loss as other income when the Group’s right
to receive payments is established.

Gains and losses on equity investments at FVTPL are
included in the ‘Investments — fixed income securities,
funds, derivatives and equity investments’ line in the
statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive
income.
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2.3 Summary of significant accounting policies
(continued)

Financial assets and liabilities (continued)
(a) Financial assets (continued)

(i

ECL allowance

The Group applies a simplified approach to measure ECL
on trade receivable and a general approach to measure
ECL on loans and advances to customers, time deposits
and other financial assets accounted for at amortised
cost as well as loan commitment.

Under the simplified approach, the Group measures the
loss based on lifetime ECL. Under the general approach,
financial assets migrate through the following three
stages based on the change in credit risk since initial
recognition:

Stage 1: 12-month ECL

For exposures where there has not been a significant
increase in credit risk since initial recognition and that
are not credit-impaired upon origination, the portion
of the lifetime ECL associated with the probability of
default events occurring within the next 12 months is
recognised.

Stage 2: Lifetime ECL — not credit-impaired

For exposures where there has been a significant
increase in credit risk since initial recognition but are
not credit-impaired, a lifetime ECL (i.e. reflecting the
remaining lifetime of the financial asset) is recognised.

23X ESHHERME(»)

tHEEREE &)
THEE (&)

@)

(i

AHERERBE
AEBEEBE ST A
EXRZEWKENEB
EREX TEA K
HEHERTERPWNE
RARBR - EHERR
H 12 2 35 A AN A BR Y
ERMEENREFRAE
MBREREX -

REES LA AKHE
REZHBHERBEX
AERE -RER—&S
Eo R IEAETERY]
FTHERBERNEERRE
B BB N = ERE R
TSR

— 12 A8

AHF%E%

RENTERERNEE
Rl EERNES  H
RELRIYEEFEERE
MBERME - I E R
K+—_EAHBRENS
HEREEERNE S
BEHMERBXRED TN
R -

F_BER:2HEY

ERBX-—VEEE

BUE
ERBVLHERBROE
ERREHRERES
HESr A EORERIIE R
TEREHEHERIER
K-ARREBEER
£ A A JE B



Notes to Financial Statements

Bt 5 ¥R 3R B &

31 December 2022
2022412 A31H

2.3 Summary of significant accounting policies

(continued)

Financial assets and liabilities (continued)

(a) Financial assets (continued)
(i) ECL allowance (continued)

Stage 3: Lifetime ECL - credit-impaired

BEREZERE | 202263 163

Exposures are assessed as credit-impaired when one
or more events that have a detrimental impact on the
estimated future cash flows of that asset have occurred.
For exposures that have become credit-impaired,
a lifetime ECL is recognised and interest revenue is
calculated by applying the effective interest rate to the
amortised cost (net of provision) rather than the gross

carrying amount.

At each reporting date, the Group assesses whether
there has been a significant increase in credit risk for
exposures since initial recognition by comparing the
risk of default occurring over the expected life between
the reporting date and the date of initial recognition.
The Group considers reasonable and supportable
information that is relevant and available without undue
cost or effort for this purpose. This includes quantitative
and qualitative information and also, forward-looking
analysis. For certain portfolio of margin loans, the Group
rebuts the presumption that there have been significant
increases in credit risk since initial recognition when
financial assets are more than 30 days past due as
management considers the probability of default is highly
correlated with the collateral value rather than the past

due days.
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2.3 Summary of significant accounting policies
(continued)

Financial assets and liabilities (continued)
(a) Financial assets (continued)

(i

ECL allowance (continued)
Stage 3: Lifetime ECL — credit-impaired (continued)

The Group assesses whether the credit risk on an
exposure has increased significantly on an individual
or collective basis. For the purposes of a collective
evaluation of impairment, financial instruments
are grouped on the basis of shared credit risk
characteristics, taking into account instrument type,
remaining term to maturity and other relevant factors.

The amount of ECL is measured as the probability-
weighted present value of all cash shortfalls over the
expected life of the financial asset discounted at its
original effective interest rate. The cash shortfall is the
difference between all contractual cash flows that are
due to the Company and all the cash flows that the
Company expects to receive. The amount of the loss is
recognised using a provision for doubtful debts account.

If, in a subsequent period, credit quality improves and
reverses any previously assessed significant increase
in credit risk since origination, then the provision for
doubtful debts reverts from lifetime ECL to 12-month
ECL.
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2.3 Summary of significant accounting policies
(continued)

Financial assets and liabilities (continued)
(a) Financial assets (continued)
(iiiy Modification of loans

The Group sometimes renegotiates or otherwise modifies
the contractual cash flows of loans to customers. When
this happens, the Group assesses whether or not the
new terms are substantially different to the original
terms. The Group does this by considering, among
others, the following factors:

° If the borrower is in financial difficulty, whether the
modification merely reduces the contractual cash
flows to amounts the borrower is expected to be
able to pay.

° Whether any substantial new terms are introduced,
such as a profit share/equity-based return that
substantially affects the risk profile of the loan.

° Significant extension of the loan term when the
borrower is not in financial difficulty.

° Significant change in the interest rate.

° Change in the currency the loan is denominated in.

° Insertion of collateral, other security or credit

enhancements that significantly affect the credit
risk associated with the loan.
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2.3 Summary of significant accounting policies

(continued)

Financial assets and liabilities (continued)

(a) Financial assets (continued)
(i) Modification of loans (continued)

If the terms are substantially different, the Group
derecognises the original financial asset and recognises
a ‘new’ asset at fair value and recalculates a new
effective interest rate for the asset. The date of
renegotiation is consequently considered to be the date
of initial recognition for impairment calculation purposes,
including for the purpose of determining whether a
significant increase in credit risk has occurred. However,
the Group also assesses whether the new financial
asset recognised is deemed to be credit-impaired at
initial recognition, especially in circumstances where the
renegotiation was driven by the debtor being unable to
make the originally agreed payments. Differences in the
carrying amount are also recognised in profit or loss as

a gain or loss on derecognition.

If the terms are not substantially different, the
renegotiation or modification does not result in
derecognition, and the Group recalculates the gross
carrying amount based on the revised cash flows of
the financial asset and recognises a modification gain
or loss in profit or loss. The new gross carrying amount
is recalculated by discounting the modified cash flows
at the original effective interest rate (or credit-adjusted
effective interest rate for purchased or originated

credit-impaired financial assets).
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2.3 Summary of significant accounting policies
(continued)

Financial assets and liabilities (continued)
(a) Financial assets (continued)

(iv)

Derecognition other than on a modification

Financial assets, or a portion thereof, are derecognised
when the contractual rights to receive the cash flows
from the assets have expired, or when they have been
transferred and either (i) the Group transfers substantially
all the risks and rewards of ownership, or (i) the Group
neither transfers nor retains substantially all the risks and
rewards of ownership and the Group has not retained
control.

The Group enters into transactions where it retains the
contractual rights to receive cash flows from assets but
assumes a contractual obligation to pay those cash flows
to other entities and transfers substantially all of the risks
and rewards. These transactions are accounted for as
‘pass through’ transfers that result in derecognition if the
Group:

(i) has no obligation to make payments unless it
collects equivalent amounts from the assets;

(i) is prohibited from selling or pledging the assets;
and

(i)  has an obligation to remit any cash it collects from
the assets without material delay.
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2.3 Summary of significant accounting policies
(continued)

Financial assets and liabilities (continued)

@

(b)

Financial assets (continued)

(iv) Derecognition other than on a modification
(continued)
Collateral (shares and bonds) furnished by the Group
under standard repurchase agreements and securities
lending and borrowing transactions is not derecognised
because the Group retains substantially all the risks and
rewards on the basis of the predetermined repurchase
price, and the criteria for derecognition are therefore
not met. This also applies to certain securitisation
transactions in which the Group retains a subordinated
residual interest.

Financial liabilities

Classification and subsequent measurement

In both the current and prior period, financial liabilities are
classified as subsequently measured at amortised cost,
except for:

Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss: this
classification is applied to derivatives and financial liabilities
held for trading. Gains or losses on financial liabilities
designated at fair value through profit or loss are presented
partially in other comprehensive income (the amount of change
in the fair value of the financial liability that is attributable to
changes in the credit risk of that liability, which is determined
as the amount that is not attributable to changes in market
conditions that give rise to market risk) and partially profit or
loss (the remaining amount of change in the fair value of the
liability). This is unless such a presentation would create, or
enlarge, an accounting mismatch, in which case the gains and
losses attributable to changes in the credit risk of the liability
are also presented in profit or loss.

Financial liabilities are derecognised when the obligation
specified in the contract is discharged or cancelled, or
expires.
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2.3 Summary of significant accounting policies

23X ESHHERME(»)

(continued)

Derivative financial instruments

The Group’s derivative financial instruments are initially recognised
at their fair value on the date on which a derivative contract is
entered into and are subsequently remeasured at fair value.

Derivatives are carried as assets when the fair value is positive and
as liabilities when the fair value is negative. Any gains or losses
arising from changes in fair value of derivatives are taken directly to
statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive income.

Whilst the Group enters into a derivative contract for trading
purposes or to provide economic hedges under the Group’s risk
management framework, it does not apply hedge accounting.

Offsetting of financial instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are offset and the net
amount is reported in the statement of financial position if there is
a currently enforceable legal right to offset the recognised amounts
and there is an intention to settle on a net basis, or to realise the
assets and settle the liabilities simultaneously.

Shares held under the share award scheme

Own equity instruments which are reacquired (shares held under
the share award scheme) are recognised at cost and deducted
from equity. No gain or loss is recognised in profit or loss on the
purchase, sale, issue or cancellation of the Group’s own equity
instruments. Any difference between the carrying amount and the
consideration is recognised in equity.
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2.3 Summary of significant accounting policies

23X ESHHERME(»)

(continued)

Client trust bank balances

The Group maintains trust and segregated accounts with authorised
financial institutions to hold clients’ deposits arising from normal
business transactions. The Group has classified the clients’ monies
as client trust bank balances under the current assets in the
consolidated statement of financial position as the Group is allowed
to retain some or all of the interest income on the clients’ monies
and recognised corresponding accounts payable to the respective
customers in the current liabilities clients on grounds that it is liable
for any loss or misappropriation of clients’” monies. Under the Hong
Kong Securities and Futures Ordinance (Cap. 571) and the Hong
Kong Insurance Companies Ordinance (Cap. 41), the Group is not
allowed to use the clients’” monies to settle its own obligation.

Fiduciary activities

Apart from the client trust bank balances as mentioned above, the
Group provides brokerage and asset management services and the
Group acts in a fiduciary capacity which results in the holding or
placing of assets on behalf of its customers. These assets and any
gains or losses arising thereon are not included in these financial
statements as the Group has no contractual rights to these assets
and its gains or losses under fiduciary activities.

Cash and cash equivalents

For the purpose of the consolidated statement of cash flows, cash
and cash equivalents comprise cash on hand and demand deposits,
and have a short maturity of generally within three months when
acquired, less bank overdrafts which are repayable on demand and
form an integral part of the Group’s cash management.

For the purpose of the consolidated statement of financial position,
cash and cash equivalents comprise cash on hand and at banks,
including term deposits, and assets similar in nature to cash, which
are not restricted as to use.
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2.3 Summary of significant accounting policies

23X ESHHERME(»)

(continued)

Other assets

Other assets represent the deposits and admission fee paid to
the Stock Exchange, Hong Kong Futures Exchange Limited, Hong
Kong Securities Clearing Company Limited and other regulators.
They are intended to be held on a long-term basis and are stated
at the nominal amount.

Provisions

A provision is recognised when a present obligation (legal or
constructive) has arisen as a result of a past event and it is
probable that a future outflow of resources will be required to settle
the obligation, provided that a reliable estimate can be made of the
amount of the obligation.

When the effect of discounting is material, the amount recognised
for a provision is the present value at the end of the reporting
period of the future expenditures expected to be required to settle
the obligation. The increase in the discounted present value amount
arising from the passage of time is included in finance costs in
profit or loss.

Income tax

Income tax comprises current and deferred tax. Income tax relating
to items recognised outside profit or loss is recognised outside
profit or loss, either in other comprehensive income or directly in
equity.

Current tax assets and liabilities for the current and prior periods
are measured at the amount expected to be recovered from or
paid to the taxation authorities, based on tax rates (and tax laws)
that have been enacted or substantively enacted by the end of
the reporting period, taking into consideration interpretations and
practices prevailing in the countries in which the Group operates.

Deferred tax is provided, using the liability method, on all temporary
differences at the end of the reporting period between the tax
bases of assets and liabilities and their carrying amounts for
financial reporting purposes.
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2.3 Summary of significant accounting policies
(continued)

Income tax (continued)
Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for all taxable temporary
differences, except:

° when the deferred tax liability arises from the initial recognition
of goodwill or an asset or liability in a transaction that is not
a business combination and, at the time of the transaction,
affects neither the accounting profit nor taxable profit or loss;
and

o in respect of taxable temporary differences associated with
investments in subsidiaries, when the timing of the reversal
of the temporary differences can be controlled and it is
probable that the temporary differences will not reverse in the
foreseeable future.

Deferred tax assets are recognised for all deductible temporary
differences, the carryforward of unused tax credits and any unused
tax losses. Deferred tax assets are recognised to the extent that
it is probable that taxable profit will be available against which the
deductible temporary differences, the carryforward of unused tax
credits and unused tax losses can be utilised, except:

° when the deferred tax asset relating to the deductible
temporary differences arises from the initial recognition of
an asset or liability in a transaction that is not a business
combination and, at the time of the transaction, affects neither
the accounting profit nor taxable profit or loss; and

° in respect of deductible temporary differences associated
with investments in subsidiaries, deferred tax assets are only
recognised to the extent that it is probable that the temporary
differences will reverse in the foreseeable future and taxable
profit will be available against which the temporary differences
can be utilised.
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2.3 Summary of significant accounting policies

23X ESHHERME(»)

(continued)

Income tax (continued)

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at the end of
each reporting period and reduced to the extent that it is no longer
probable that sufficient taxable profit will be available to allow all or
part of the deferred tax asset to be utilised. Unrecognised deferred
tax assets are reassessed at the end of each reporting period and
are recognised to the extent that it has become probable that
sufficient taxable profit will be available to allow all or part of the
deferred tax asset to be recovered.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the tax rates that
are expected to apply to the period when the asset is realised or
the liability is settled, based on tax rates (and tax laws) that have
been enacted or substantively enacted by the end of the reporting
period.

Revenue from contracts with customers

Revenue from contracts with customers is recognised when control
of goods or services is transferred to the customers at an amount
that reflects the consideration to which the Group expects to be
entitled in exchange for those goods or services.

When the consideration in a contract includes a variable amount,
the amount of consideration is estimated to which the Group will
be entitled in exchange for transferring the goods or services to
the customer. The variable consideration is estimated at contract
inception and constrained until it is highly probable that a significant
revenue reversal in the amount of cumulative revenue recognised
will not occur when the associated uncertainty with the variable
consideration is subsequently resolved.
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2.3 Summary of significant accounting policies

23X ESHHERME(»)

(continued)

Revenue from contracts with customers
(continued)

Provision of securities and futures brokerage services

The performance obligation is satisfied at a point in time when the
customer has obtained control of the service, generally when the
trades are executed.

Provision of investment banking services

The performance obligation for sponsoring and certain consultancy
and financial advisory services are fulfiled when all the relevant
duties of a sponsor or a financial advisor as stated in the contract
are completed.

Depending on the nature of the services and the contract terms,
sponsor fee is recognised in profit and loss over time using a
method that depicts the Group’s performance, or at point in time
when the service is completed. Certain consultancy and financial
advisory services’ performance obligations are satisfied over time
as services are rendered if the customer simultaneously receives
and consumes the benefits provided by the Group.

Provision of asset management services

Revenue from asset management services is recognised over time
as the services are provided. Fees for asset management services
are calculated based on a fixed percentage of the value of assets
managed.

Performance fees are recognised on the performance fee valuation
day of the investment funds and managed accounts when there
is a positive performance for the relevant performance period and
it is determined that it will not result in significant reversal in a
subsequent period, taking into consideration the relevant basis of
calculation for the investment funds and managed accounts.

Fund distribution activities are separate performance obligations
from the asset management and the obligation being satisfied at
a point in time upon the investors’ subscription. Subscription and
handling fees relating to the distribution services are recognised at
a point in time when the services are performed and the amount is
known.
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2.3 Summary of significant accounting policies

23X ESHHERME(»)

(continued)

Revenue from contracts with customers
(continued)

Provision of wealth management service

The performance obligation relating to the insurance brokerage
service is satisfied at the point when the terms of the insurance
policy have been agreed contractually by the insurer and
policyholder, and the insurer has a present right to payment from
the policyholder (the ‘transaction date’).

Revenue from other sources and other income

Interest income is recognised on an accrual basis using the
effective interest method by applying the rate that exactly discounts
the estimated future cash receipts over the expected life of the
financial instrument, to the gross carrying amount of the financial
asset.

Employee benefits

(a) Retirement benefit scheme
The Group operates a defined contribution Mandatory
Provident Fund retirement benefit scheme (the “MPF Scheme”)
under the Mandatory Provident Fund Schemes Ordinance
for all of its employees. Contributions are made based on a
percentage of the employees’ basic salaries and are charged
to profit or loss as they become payable in accordance
with the rules of the MPF Scheme. The assets of the MPF
Scheme are held separately from those of the Group in an
independently administered fund. The Group’s employer
contributions vest fully with the employees when contributed
into the MPF Scheme.

(b) Bonuses
The Group recognises a liability and an expense for bonuses,
based on an approved formula that takes into consideration
the profit attributable to the Group after certain adjustments.
The Group recognises a provision where contractually
obliged or where there is a past practice that has created a
constructive obligation.
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2.3 Summary of significant accounting policies
(continued)

Employee benefits (continued)

(c)

Share-based payments

The Group operates a share option scheme for the purpose
of assisting in recruiting, retaining and motivating key staff
members. Employees (including directors) of the Group
receive remuneration in the form of share-based payments,
whereby employees render services as consideration for
equity instruments (“equity-settled transactions”).

The cost of equity-settled transactions with employees is
measured by reference to the fair value at the date at which
they are granted. The cost of equity-settled transactions
is recognised, together with a corresponding increase
in the “share award reserve” and “share option reserve”
under equity, over the period in which the performance
and/or service conditions are fulfilled in share-based
compensation expense. The cumulative expense recognised
for equity-settled transactions at the end of each reporting
period until the vesting date reflects the extent to which the
vesting period has expired and the Group’s best estimate of
the number of equity instruments that will ultimately vest. The
charge or credit to profit or loss for a period represents the
movement in the cumulative expense recognised as at the
beginning and end of that period.

No expense is recognised for awards that do not ultimately
vest, except for equity-settled transactions where vesting is
conditional upon a market or non-vesting condition, which are
treated as vesting irrespective of whether or not the market
or non-vesting condition is satisfied, provided that all other
performance and/or service conditions are satisfied.
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2.3 Summary of significant accounting policies
(continued)

Employee benefits (continued)

(c)

Share-based payments (continued)

Where the terms of an equity-settled award are modified,
as a minimum an expense is recognised as if the terms had
not been modified. In addition, an expense is recognised
for any modification that increases the total fair value of
the share-based payments, or is otherwise beneficial to the
employee as measured at the date of modification.

Where an equity-settled award is cancelled, it is treated as
if it had vested on the date of cancellation, and any expense
not yet recognised for the award is recognised immediately.
This includes any award where non-vesting conditions within
the control of either the Group or the employee are not met.
However, if a new award is substituted for the cancelled
award, and is designated as a replacement award on the
date that it is granted, the cancelled and new awards are
treated as if they were a maodification of the original award, as
described in the previous paragraph.

The dilutive effect (if any) of outstanding options is reflected
as additional share dilution in the computation of earnings per
share.

Dividends
Final dividends are recognised as a liability when they are approved
by the shareholders in a general meeting.

Interim dividends are simultaneously proposed and declared,
because the Company’s articles of association grant the directors
the authority to declare interim dividends. Consequently, interim
dividends are recognised immediately as a liability when they are
proposed and declared.
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2.3 Summary of significant accounting policies

23X ESHHERME(»)

(continued)

Securities borrowing and lending agreements
The Group has engaged in the securities borrowing and lending
business with financial institutions and the Group’s customers,
under which all transactions are secured in the form of cash. The
Group maintains no net position in such securities borrowing and
lending transactions and is not subject to significant price risk.
However, under the securities borrowing and lending arrangements,
the cash collateral received and cash collateral placed is included
in the accounts payable and accounts receivable from brokers
and dealers respectively. Fees received or paid in connection with
securities borrowing and lending is recorded as interest income or
interest expense, respectively.

Assets sold under repurchase agreements (repos)

The Group may enter into repurchase agreements whereby
securities are sold to third parties with a concurrent agreement to
repurchase the securities at a specified date. The Group may be
required to provide additional collateral based on the fair value of
the underlying assets if necessary.

Assets purchased under agreements to resell
(reverse repos)

The Group may enter into purchases of assets under agreements
to resell. Reverse repos are initially recorded at the cost of the loan
or collateral advanced in the consolidated statement of financial
position. These securities are not recognised in the Group’s
consolidated statement of financial position as the counterparty
retains substantially all risks and returns of the securities. In the
event of failure by the counterparty to repay the loan, the Group
has the right to the underlying assets.
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2.3 Summary of significant accounting policies

23X ESHHERME(»)

(continued)

Foreign currencies

These financial statements are presented in Hong Kong dollars,
which is the Company’s functional and presentation currency.
Each entity in the Group determines its own functional currency
and items included in the financial statements of each entity
are measured using that functional currency. Foreign currency
transactions recorded by the entities in the Group are initially
recorded using their respective functional currency rates prevailing
at the dates of the transactions. Monetary assets and liabilities
denominated in foreign currencies are retranslated at the functional
currency rates of exchange prevailing at the end of the reporting
period. Differences arising on settlement or translation of monetary
items are recognised in profit or loss.

The functional currencies of certain overseas subsidiaries are
currencies other than the Hong Kong dollar. As at the end of the
reporting period, the assets and liabilities of these entities are
translated into Hong Kong dollars at the exchange rates prevailing
at the end of the reporting period and their statements of profit
or loss and other comprehensive income are translated into Hong
Kong dollars at the weighted average exchange rates for the year.

The resulting exchange differences are recognised in other
comprehensive income and accumulated in the currency translation
reserve. On disposal of a foreign operation, the component of other
comprehensive income relating to that particular foreign operation is
recognised in the consolidated statement of profit or loss and other
comprehensive income.
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2.3 Summary of significant accounting policies
(continued)

Related parties
A party is considered to be related to the Group if:

(@) the party is a person or a close member of that person’s
family and that person
(i) has control or joint control over the Group;
(i) has significant influence over the Group; or
(i) is a member of the key management personnel of the
Group or of a parent of the Group;
or

(b) the party is an entity where any of the following conditions
applies:

()  the entity and the Group are members of the same
group;

(i)  one entity is an associate or joint venture of the other
entity (or of a parent, subsidiary or fellow subsidiary of
the other entity);

(i)  the entity and the Group are joint ventures of the same
third party;

(iv) one entity is a joint venture of a third entity and the other
entity is an associate of the third entity;

(v) the entity is a post-employment benefit plan for the
benefit of employees of either the Group or an entity
related to the Group;
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2.3 Summary of significant accounting policies

23X ESHHERME(»)

(continued)

Related parties (continued)
(b)  (continued)
(vi)  the entity is controlled or jointly controlled by a person
identified in (a);

(vii) a person identified in (a)(i) has significant influence
over the entity or is a member of the key management
personnel of the entity (or of a parent of the entity); and

(viii) the entity, or any member of a group of which it is a
part, provides key management personnel services to
the Group or to the parent of the Group.

Significant accounting judgements and
estimates

The preparation of the Group’s financial statements requires
management to make judgements, estimates and assumptions that
affect the reported amounts of revenues, expenses, assets and
liabilities, and their accompanying disclosures, and the disclosure
of contingent liabilities. Uncertainty about these assumptions and
estimates could result in outcomes that could require a material
adjustment to the carrying amounts of the assets or liabilities
affected in the future.

Judgements

In the process of applying the Group’s accounting policies,
management has made the following judgements, apart from those
involving estimations, which have the most significant effect on the
amounts recognised in the financial statements:

Taxes

Significant judgement is required in determining the provisions for
income and other taxes. There are transactions and calculations for
which the ultimate tax determination is uncertain during the ordinary
course of business. The Group recognises liabilities for anticipated
tax audit issues based on estimates of whether additional taxes will
be due. Where the final tax outcome of these matters is different
from the amounts that were initially recorded, the differences will
impact the income tax and deferred tax provisions in the period in
which the determination is made.
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3.

Significant accounting judgements and
estimates (continued)

Estimation uncertainty

The key assumptions concerning the future and other key sources
of estimation uncertainty at the end of the reporting period, that
have a significant risk of causing a material adjustment to the
carrying amounts of assets and liabilities within the next financial
year, are described below.

Deferred tax assets

Deferred tax assets are recognised for all unused tax losses to the
extent that it is probable that taxable profit will be available against
which the losses can be utilised. Significant management judgement
is required to determine the amount of deferred tax assets that
can be recognised, based upon the likely timing and level of future
taxable profits together with future tax planning strategies. The
carrying value of deferred tax assets relating to recognised tax
losses as at 31 December 2022 was amounted to HK$236.9 million
(2021: HK$188.1 million). The amount of unrecognised tax losses
at 31 December 2022 was approximately HK$174,460 (2021: nil).
Further details are contained in note 15 to the financial statements.

ECL allowances on financial assets

The measurement of ECL allowance under HKFRS 9 across all
categories of financial assets requires judgement, in particular,
the estimation of the amount and timing of future cash flows
and collateral values when determining ECL allowance and the
assessment of a significant increase in credit risk. These estimates
are driven by a number of factors, changes in which can result in
different levels of allowances.

At each reporting date, the Group assesses whether there has
been a significant increase in credit risk for exposures since initial
recognition by comparing the risk of default occurring over the
expected life between the reporting date and the date of initial
recognition. The Group considers reasonable and supportable
information that is relevant and available without undue cost or
effort for this purpose. This includes quantitative and qualitative
information and also, forward-looking analysis. Further details are
contained in note 16 to the financial statements.
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3.

Significant accounting judgements and
estimates (continued)

Estimation uncertainty (continued)
Valuation of financial assets at fair value through profit or
loss and fair value through other comprehensive income

The fair value of financial assets designated at fair value through
profit or loss that are not traded in an active market is determined
by using external valuations or valuation techniques. The Group
uses a variety of methods and makes assumptions that are mainly
based on market conditions existing at each reporting date.
Valuation techniques used include the use of comparable recent
arm’s length transactions, discounted cash flows analysis, option
pricing models and other valuation techniques commonly used by
other market participants. Changes in assumptions on the valuation
techniques could affect the reported fair values of these financial
assets. Further details are contained in notes 20 and 40 to the
financial statements.

Operating segment information

Operating segments are reported in a manner consistent with
the internal reporting provided to the Group’s senior executive
management and in accordance with HKFRSs. The Group’s
operating businesses are structured and managed separately
according to the nature of their operations and the services they
provide. Each of the Group’s operating segments represents a
strategic business unit that offers services which are subject to
risks and returns that are different from those of the other operating
segments.
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4.

Operating segment information (continuea)

In preparing the segment information for the year ended 31
December 2022, the executive directors considered that the

business relating to wealth management,
services, corporate finance services,

institutional investor
investment management are

separate reportable segments.

Details of each of the operating segments are as follows:

(@)

)

wealth management provides comprehensive financial services
and solutions to individual investors, small to medium-sized
businesses and family office including: brokerage, loans and
financing and other wealth management services;

institutional investor services provide market making,
investments, structured product solutions, lending and
other services to corporations, governments and financial
institutions;

corporate finance services provide advisory services, placing
and underwriting services of debts and equity securities;

investment management provides asset management and
fund management services to institutions and individuals, and
also includes investment in funds, debts and equity securities;
and

the “others” mainly represents rental income and the provision
of information channel services.

Inter-segment transactions, if any, are conducted with reference to
the prices charged to third parties.
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4. Operating segment information (continued) 4, BEPHER @)

The segment results of the Group for the years ended 31 December
2022 and 2021 are as follows:

B F20224F N2021F12A31H 1b
FE AEEHNDIBEEOT :

Year ended 31 December 2022

B £2022F12A31H 1t §F

E
Institutional Corporate
Wealth Investor Finance Investment
Management Services Services Management Others Total
BEREE TrEmE
HEEE R R REER Hit @it
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TER TER TER TER TER TER
Segment revenue and other income: 2 P R E fb Ui -
Commission and handling income ReRkFEBRA 455,403 98,151 287,016 25,572 - 866,142
Interest and coupon income FIEREBWA 753,891 1,132,345 - 10,446 - 1,896,682
Net trading and investment income X5 RZEKAFE 61,972 99,013 - (608,892) - (447,907)
Other income HA A - - - - 4,334 4,334
Total @t 1,271,266 1,329,509 287,016 (572,874) 4,334 2,319,251
Segment results PHLE 519,656 415,718 (76,809)  (831,908) - 26,657
Income tax credit MEHRES 56,385
Profit for the year FREM 83,042
Other segment information: HitpEHEH
Net impairment charge on loans and & FRFE R k2K
advances to customers HRER A 46,766 115,926 - - - 162,692
Net impairment charge/(reversal) on  FEURFIE
accounts receivable FRERE/ (BE) (795) (679) 4,341 5,265 - 8,132
Net impairment charge/(reversal) on ~ Hft £ mEE
other financial assets FRERE/ (BE) (4,800) (118) - A - (4,877)
Impairment reversal on financial BRATEFAEMEE
assets at fair value through other hEmeREEER
comprehensive income R EEE - (11,975) - - - (11,975)
Depreciation g 59,055 2,936 7,435 8,651 - 78,077
Finance costs N 384,601 154,109 - 137,954 - 676,664
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4. Operating segment information (continued) 4, BEPZER 2
Year ended 31 December 2021 B 2021128318 Lt F
E
Institutional Corporate
Wealth Investor Finance  Investment
Management Services Services Management Others Total
BEREE TERE
HEEE k% k% REEE Hfty @i
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FRT FRT FTRT FAT FAT FAT
Segment revenue and other income: 2 ERULA R H k35
Commission and handling income BERFEBUA 705,752 182,065 617,194 121,068 - 1,626,079
Interest and coupon income FIERZEBWA 752,032 1,349,303 - 179,204 - 2,280,539
Net trading and investment income RGREBEWNFE 371,662 87,718 - (399,583) 59,797
Other income Hi g A - - - - 5,279 5,279
Total Feh 1,829,446 1,619,086 617,194 (99,311) 5,279 3,971,694
Segment results DEEE 611,929 732,520 317,504 (374,307) - 1,287,646
Income tax expense RS (184,373)
Profit for the year FREF 1,103,273
Other segment information: Hi &R
Net impairment charge on loans and %Gi‘@)f' ERRBR
advances to customers FRERE 27,694 170,602 - - - 198,296
Net impairment charge/(reversal) on  FEUTFRIE
accounts receivable FRERRE/ (BE) 495 4,124 12,853 (10) - 17,462
Net impairment charge/(reversal) on ~ Hft & mEE
other financial assets FRERE/ (BE) (2,234) (3,145) - 8 = (5,371)
Impairment charge on financial BATEFAEMER
assets at fair value through other WareBEERE
comprehensive income AR - 10,210 - - - 10,210
Depreciation e 54,331 5,686 9,953 8,669 - 78,639
Finance costs RMEKA 329,915 273,634 - 171,314 - 774,863
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4. Operating segment information (continued)

ReEFHER 2

Geographical information b 15 & B
(a) Revenue and other income from external customers (@) SIEFEF WA KA MK
2022 2021
20224 20214
HK$’000 HK$'000
FHET FHETT
Hong Kong &5 2,122,928 3,634,402
Other countries H B R 196,323 337,292
2,319,251 3,971,694
The information of revenue and other income above is based Exml AR E ks E R

on the locations of the markets.

(b) Non-current assets
Majority of the non-current assets (excluding deferred tax
assets) of the Group are located in Hong Kong.
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5.

Revenue 5. WA
The Group’s revenue is disaggregated as follows: REBHWRAMES T
2022 2021
2022%F 20214
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET T
Commission and fee income (note (i) Hz R EHKA ()
Brokerage (note (i) 48 40 2E 75 (BT 5 i) 481,265 805,982
Corporate finance hERE
Placing, underwriting and A& -~ HEH K o9 AEH EY
sub-underwriting commission A< (B E (i)
(note (ii)) 233,437 521,693
Consultancy and financial advisory fee R EEEZAERA
income (note (iv)) (B EE(iv)) 46,476 76,058
Asset management fee and performance BEEEBRENEBRA
fee income (note (iv)) (Bt % (v)) 25,572 106,015
Handling income on financial products SHMERFEBERA
(note (iii)) (B 5% i) ) 79,392 116,331
866,142 1,626,079
Interest income (note (i) FILE YA (K17 (i)
Interest and handling income from EPEREFLIRENT SR
customers and counterparty FEBIWA (HFEV)
financing (note (v)) 524,366 744,990
Interest income from banks and others HRIT R E AR SN (FFEEV))
(note (v)) 391,854 125,269
Interest income from market making debt WM ERESHF B A
securities 179,125 506,595
Interest income from fixed income & 7 W 75 5 ) B A
securities 390,916 582,768
Interest income from financial products & BE m A B U A 410,421 320,917
1,896,682 2,280,539
Net trading and investment (loss)/income X ERIEEFE (E1E) Wi
(note (ii)) (Bt £ i)
Net trading loss from debt securities KB BB E 7 T Y
market making R 5 EEFE (189,034) (71,280)
Net trading (loss)/income from fixed KEBEEREES
income securities, unconsolidated FEHITREES -
investment funds, derivatives and METARBRAEEFEED
equity investments R (E8) =S F5E (258,873) 131,077
(447,907) 59,797
2,314,917 3,966,415
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5.

Revenue (continued)

Note (i)

Note (ii)
Note (iii)

Note (iv)

Note (v)

Revenue arising from customer contracts under HKFRS 15

Revenue arising from other sources

Commission and fee income arising from 1) brokerage, 2) placing,
underwriting and sub-underwriting commission, 3) handling income on
financial products are recognized at a point in time.

Commission and fee income arising from 1) consultancy and financial
advisory fee income, 2) asset management fee and performance fee income
are recognized over time.

Interest and handling income from customers and counterparty financing
and interest income from banks and others are calculated using effective
interest method.

Staff costs

ONE )

B ()

RS 22 i)
RS &2 i)

B 3 (iv)

B RE (V)

RARE 78 W75 S R 1657 5K
BEZTFPANEENMIA

H{h SRR 2E A B IR

KA EALER  2) S -~ A&iH
RoEENMAE  3) EMERT
BERGNME RER RSN T
PR HERR ©

e BERERBEAAE K -
)EAEERERRABREN
R K % PR I ok B 2 A AR 745 i e
KEFPREFHRENHE R
FEEWRMRIT REMAF S
Wk KA BB X H -

BT A

2022 2021
20224 20214
HK$’000 HK$'000
FBT T
Staff costs (including directors’ BTN (BREEEHE)
remuneration):
Salaries, bonuses and allowances & - B4 MOERL 707,115 782,661
Share-based compensation expenses VA RS 193 7 25 B8 9 357 B 3R 2
— Share option scheme (note 31) —RERR R & (MT5E31) 417 1,462
— Share award scheme (note 32) — B fn 22 EhaT & (Bt 3E32) - 6,314
Pension scheme contributions RIRE TSR 13,967 12,997
721,499 803,434

7. Finance costs

A& A A

2022 2021
20224 20214

HK$’000 HK$’000

FET FE T

Bank borrowings and overdrafts RITERRBEX 136,626 142,843
Debt securities in issue BEITEKES 212,954 355,507
Securities borrowing and lending BHEE 2,121 1,933
Repurchase agreements [B] 8% 17 7% 147,993 61,497
Financial liabilities TRAaE 163,582 208,806
Lease liabilities HEBE 1,359 1,292
Others H Aty 12,029 2,985

676,664 774,863
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8. Profit before tax 8. PBRBiAIEF
The Group’s profit before tax is arrived at after charging/(crediting): 7R &= B B BR B BT s A Th & HRL S (Bt
AN UTEERED :
2022 2021
20224 20214
HK$’000 HK$'000
FBT T
Auditor’s remuneration 1Z BT B
() audit services (i) Z=ERB 4,417 2,280
(i) interim review (iy " EAZEB 1,015 1,010
(i) compliance and other consultancy (i) &R REMZARS
services 1,320 2,348
Foreign exchange differences, net SNEEF =R (8,352) 6,750
Other commission expenses EM ALY 42,708 64,961
Information services expenses AR S 49,716 51,611
Marketing, advertising and MZHRE BEEREESH
promotion expenses 5,913 9,348
Professional and consultancy fee HERABE 112,502 107,233
Repair and maintenance (including system HiEhtZE(BERGERE)
maintenance) 91,792 81,874
Net impairment charge on loans and BRTEFERRBR
advances to customers R (B B R 162,692 198,296
Net impairment charge on JE W SR IE F R (B B
accounts receivable 8,132 17,462
Net impairment reversal on H b @b & B R E B BF5R
other financial assets (4,877) (5,371)
Impairment (reversal)/charge on BEAFEFAEMEZEKRERN

financial assets at fair value through other CRMEEZRE D),
comprehensive income B (11,975) 10,210
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9. Income tax (credit)/expense 9. FIEHR (ER) BX

Hong Kong profits tax has been provided at the rate of 16.5%
(2021: 16.5%) on the estimated assessable profits arising in Hong
Kong during the year.

ERBFNEH IR FEANEEBELEDN
(AT FERR TR i AR FH % 16.5% (2021
F :16.5%) sHie i -

2022 2021
20224 20214
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET T

Current — Hong Kong BNE — &%
— Charge for the year —FRHAZ 60,762 162,388
— Under provision in prior years —BREFERETR 4,397 821
Deferred (note 15) B (HI5E15) (121,544) 21,164
Total tax (credit)/charge for the year FRFE(ER) HX AR (56,385) 184,373

A reconciliation of the tax expense applicable to profit before tax
using the statutory rate to the tax expense at the effective tax rate

BOERDAEE MR Z BB A G F &
ZBRMBERBZERREGFE IR

is as follows: HERZEHERAT :

2022 2021

20224 20214

HK$’000 HK$’000

FET FE T

Profit before tax B 150 A g A 26,657 1,287,646
Tax at the statutory tax rate at 16.5% BATEHRE16.5%TE 2

(2021: 16.5%) 18 (20214F : 16.5%) 4,399 212,462

Under provision in prior years BEFERETR 4,397 821

Income not subject to tax BAERTRBA (82,595) (43,127)

Expenses not deductible for tax AATHFRAZ 15,286 31,338

Tax losses utilised EEAFHIEEE - (19,079)

Temporary difference not recognised RERERE5 2,128 1,958

Tax (credit)/charge for the year FAHE(ER) FX (56,385) 184,373
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10. Dividends 10. R &
2022 2021
20224 20214
HK$’000 HK$'000
FHET T4
Interim, paid — HK$0.01 HH BN -8R
(2021: HK$0.05) per ordinary share” LM A%0.018 7T (20214 -
0.057%7L)" 95,608 480,950
Special dividend, paid — HK$0.03 BARE  BEXN -8
(2021: nil) per ordinary share’ L AR0.03% 7T (20214F ¢
=)’ 286,552 -
Less: Dividend for shares held under the B AR B RGD EZEETEITE T
Company’s share award scheme Frfs iR (0 B AR B - (881)
; 382,160 - ol
Final, proposed — HK$nil RE - BRE - ERE AR
(2021: HK$0.01) per ordinary share T T (20214F : 0.0157T) - 96,190*
Special dividend, proposed — HK$0.01 FERIRR B« #R 3 — TR
(2021: nil) per ordinary share LM A%0.018 7T (20214 -
TATT) 95,540 -
; 95,540 E AL
477,700 576,259
The Company paid a final dividend of approximately HK$95,878,000 for the * AR aE DI AEZE2021F12H31H
year ended 31 December 2021, as further adjusted to exclude the dividend 1EF & 2 & B i% B #4995,878,000/%
for shares bought back by the Company before ex-dividend date 2 June 2022 T ERDE—SELFARAMEB
amounting to HK$312,000. AARRER B H20229F6A2H A &

5] 79 f% 15 # B 2.312,0007% 7T °

The Board has declared an interim dividend of approximately HK$95,878,000 or # EEe2 T REE202246 A308 1F
HK$0.01 per ordinary share (2021: HK$480,069,000 or HK$0.05 per ordinary 7~ B A 8 5 H R B 995,878,000
share) and a special dividend of approximately HK$287,633,000 or HK$0.03 per JT 5 & % I 3@ A%0.0178 T (2021 4F -
ordinary share (2021: nil) for the six months ended 30 June 2022. 480,069,000/ 7T =% & % & 38 f%0.05

7 7r) KRR AR B 49287,633,000/%
7T 8k & A% 3 3 A%0.037% T (2021 :

F) o
The interim and special dividend paid during the year were FERRMZHAHARERREEER
adjusted to exclude the dividend for shares bought back by the BB AR T AR E BRI
Company before ex-dividend date amounting to HK$270,000 and Bl i 17 2 A% B 5 Bl A270,0007 JT
HK$1,081,000 respectively. 1,081,000 7T °
The proposed final special dividend for the year is subject to the FRER KBS RIIR B ALK R [
approval of the Company’s shareholders at the forthcoming annual BRENEERRERASE NS i -

general meeting. FEEE -
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11. Earnings per share attributable to ordinary
equity holders of the parent

The calculations of the basic and diluted earnings per share are
based on:

(a) Basic earnings per share
The calculation of basic earnings per share is as follows:

11.

1SN
BR

AEERRREMN
2

BREELEERMOFTEIER

(a)

BREXRBF
SREABFMHE AW :

2022 2021

20224 20214
Profit attributable to ordinary equity ISUNCIES NS S i

holders of the parent (in HK$’000) (AT Tat) 80,381 1,094,743
Weighted average number of ordinary B 1T E MR A INAE T &
shares in issue less shares held for the  JE L AR 1D B =T 2 A 5

share award scheme (in '000) B& 13 (LA F51) 9,578,980 9,604,635

Basic earnings per share (in HK cents) BREARF (LABWE) 0.8 11.4

(b) Diluted earnings per share (b) BERE#EEER

The calculation of diluted earnings per share is based on the
profit for the year attributable to ordinary equity holders of
the parent. The weighted average number of ordinary shares
used in the calculation is the number of ordinary shares in
issue during the year, as used in the basic earnings per share
calculation, and the weighted average number of ordinary
shares outstanding to assume conversion of all dilutive
ordinary shares.

No adjustment has been made to the basic earnings per
share amounts presented for the year ended 31 December
2022 in respect of dilution as the impact of the share option
outstanding had an anti-dilutive effect on the basic earnings
per share amount presented.

BREERNDEEAAE
BARBCR EEF R MG E
At BB R Y R A 0 i
BEINEAEERELETN
EANFRAERTEAR
2B UERBRMAEBESEE
EBRREEHRMETHE B
RNt F 19 -

HRMATEEREHMZ
HMERERAFNNBEER
HEE - FE L R g E S
HE2022F12A31B ILEE
FEFNNERERNAT S HE
{EHFAZE -
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11. Earnings per share attributable to ordinary
equity holders of the parent (continued)

(b) Diluted earnings per share (continued)
The calculation of diluted earnings per share for the year
ended 31 December 2021 is as follows:

M. BRAAIEZBERBREEML
BREF 2

(b) BREEERR )
#H E2021FE12 8318 IE &
E SREERAMNFENT

2021
20214
HK$'000
FE T
Profit attributable to ordinary equity N B A% A% R E A s A (A T8 TET)
holders of the parent (in HK$’000) 1,094,743
Weighted average number of ordinary AR ESBREARRFIHE BT
shares in issue less shares held for the & 3@ % &9 04 S 5 SR 32 i (9
share award scheme used in the basic  #2Eh&t 2= A %D (AT 5H)
earnings per share calculation (in ’000) 9,604,635
Effect of dilution — weighted average e 2 — TRk NI
number of ordinary shares:
Share options under the share option BIRERTEIIE T EARE (A T35
scheme (in '000) 799
Awarded shares under the share award & {5 22 E)&T 8118 T AU EBEI AR (D (JA F5T)
scheme (in '000) 4,777
Number of ordinary shares for the FTEEREERFmMEN T AR
purpose of the diluted earnings per HE (AT
share calculation (in '000) 9,610,211

Diluted earnings per share (in HK cents) & % & & 22 F| (LA S 1LEH) 11.4
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- hY kY
12. Property, plant and equipment 12. 9% - BERRE
Right of use assets
kREEE
Furniture
Office and Leasehold Motor Leasehold
equipment fixtures  Buildings improvements  vehicles  Sub-total land  Buildings  Sub-total Total
BAE GRER HENE HE
EL ] #E | & %8 RE At 1 BF It @
HKS'000 HKS'000 HKS'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HKS'000 HKS'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TER TER TER TER TER TET TET TET TET TET
31 December 2022 20225128318
As at 1 January 2022 120221 A1A
Cost KA 208,507 6,918 81,999 52,090 3,069 352,583 481,832 91,834 573,666 926,249
Accumulated depreciation ZithiE (154,542) (6,735  (25935)  (46,808) (3,069)  (237,089)  (150,646)  (23,661)  (174307)  (411,396)
Net carrying amount REHE 53,965 183 56,064 5,282 - 115,494 331,186 68,173 399,359 514,853
Opening net carrying amount FNRERE 53,965 183 56,064 5,282 - 115,494 331,186 68,173 399,359 514,853
Additions RE 33,920 296 - 5,083 - 39,299 - 2,699 2,699 41,998
Exchange realignment MNEHE (145) - - 6) - (151) - 69 69 (82)
Depreciation charged during the year  E£R#TE (31,520) (109) (2,199) (3,181) - (37,009  (12,987)  (28,081) (41,088  (78,077)
Disposal HE k] - - - - &) - - - &)
Closing net carrying amount FREEFE 56,217 370 53,865 7178 - 117,630 318,199 42,860 361,059 478,689
As at 31 December 2022 2020512318
Cost A 241,487 7,138 81,999 57,184 3,069 390,877 481,832 91,921 573,753 964,630
Accumulated depreciation 2itrE (1852700 (6768)  (28,134)  (50,006)  (3,069)  (273,247)  (163,633)  (49,061)  (212,694)  (485,941)
Net carrying amount REHE 56,217 370 53,865 7178 - 117,630 318,199 42,860 361,059 478,689
Right of use assets
RREAE
Furniture
Office and Leasehold Motor Leasehold
equipment fixtures  Buildings improvements vehicles  Sub-total land  Buildings  Sub-total Total
BRE R BENZE HE
EL: ®E &7 % g s T BF et @
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TAT TR FAL TAL TAL TAL TEL TAL TAL TAL
31 December 2021 20215128318
As at 1 January 2021 R202151A1A
Cost A 168,210 6,960 81,999 46,945 3,069 297,183 481,832 73,149 554,981 852,164
Accumulated depreciation it g (112,615) (6,331) (23,736) (42,952) (3,048 (188,682  (137,658) (49,900)  (187,588) (376,240
Net carrying amount REHE 45,595 629 58,263 3,993 21 108,501 344,174 23,249 367,423 475,924
Opening net carrying amount ENEEEFE 45,595 629 58,263 3,993 21 108,501 344,174 23,249 367,423 475,924
Additions RE 37,621 90 - 5,165 - 42,876 - 74,599 74,599 17,475
Exchange realignment SMERE 67 - - 6] - 64 - 2 2 93
Depreciation charged during the year £ i & (29,318) (536) (2,199) (3,873 21) (35,947) (12,988) (29,704) (42,692) (78,639)
Closing net carrying amount FREEFE 53,965 183 56,064 5,282 = 115,494 331,186 68,173 399,359 514,853
As at 31 December 2021 20214128318
Cost KA 208,507 6918 81,999 52,090 3,069 362,583 481,832 91,834 573,666 926,249
Accumulated depreciation ZitHE (154,542) (6.735)  (25935)  (46,808) (3,069  (237,089)  (150646)  (23661) (174307  (411,39)
Net carrying amount REFE 53,965 183 56,064 5,282 = 115,494 331,186 68,173 399,359 514,853
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13. Goodwill and other intangible assets 13. B EREMERLEE
Trading rights Goodwill Total
R G EES et
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
T T T 7T T4
Net carrying amounts BREF(E
As at 1 January and 7R2021F1 18 &
31 December 2021 12H31H 2,413 20,473 22,886
Trading rights Goodwill Total
RERE 5k #Bat
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FET FET
Net carrying amounts BREFE
As at 1 January and 7K2022F1 A1H &
31 December 2022 12H31H 2,413 20,473 22,886

As at 31 December 2022 and 2021, the Group had three trading
rights in the Stock Exchange and one trading right in The Hong
Kong Futures Exchange Limited. The intangible assets are not
amortised as they have no expiry date.

R20224F K2021F12H831H » K&
EREAERBIAN =B ELE
BHERZFBERATN—ERS
M AR IEDE A - R
W EE -
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13. Goodwill and other intangible assets
(continued)

Impairment testing of goodwill

Goodwill acquired through business combinations is allocated
to the Guotai Junan Securities (Vietnam) Corporation (“IVS”)
cash-generating unit for impairment testing. The recoverable
amount of IVS has been determined based on the value-in-use
calculation using cash flow projections covering a five-year period
approved by the management. The discount rate applied to the
cash flow projections is 7% (2021: 11%) which is determined based
on the past business performance, the management’s expectation
of the market development and future business plan. The discount
rate used reflects specific risks relating to IVS and have taken into
account of the risk of business uncertainties in the foreseeable
future. As at 31 December 2022, the estimated recoverable
amount of the cash-generating unit exceeded its carrying amount.
Therefore, no impairment loss was recognized.

14. Other assets

1B.BHEREMWEFLEE @

2R BRI
BREBAHESHNEEDREE
ZELREH (BE) RMHAAE ([E
RELES (BE)) ReEEEN
ARBREAR BEIRELES (B
m) Al Uk B & %8 Ty EAME R EE
HET BHRAERAAETEEZE
ZRERFHR KB - RE R
FEORIFT A BG 3R X B7% (20214 -
11%)  EDERBAEEKRKRRE -
BIEEYE ™SR YT ROoR R
FTEIETE - FTAMIBEERREERE
TS (M) HEFERE - &5
B & R AT R R 2R A 2 75 S 7 TE 1 R
% o FN2022F12A31H ' e ELE
BAAEET AW E & REEAERE
B Al WERERREEIRE -

4. Hitb & &

2022 2021
202245 20214
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET T
Basic contribution of the guarantee fund paid i F&B R RELEGR A A
to Hong Kong Securities Clearing Company ([BA&£E ) HREBES
Limited (“HKSCC”) BERER 742 800
Deposits with Stock Exchange: REERZPTEIR® -
- Compensation fund —fHEES 150 150
— Fidelity fund —BERES 150 150
— Stamp duty deposit —HER RS 500 500
Admission fee paid to HKSCC SR TFEBEENEANE 150 150
Reserve fund with The SEHK Options Clearing R & BBt & 2 5 i S 4%
House Limited BRARNFHEESD 4,580 19,520
Settlement Risk Fund paid to the Shanghai ¥ EBFELHFR SN EHE
Stock Exchange B E S 224 245
Deposit with HKFE Clearing Corporation REBHEHEEER QAN
Limited By g 3,000 3,000
License deposit with the Monetary Authority — R FT AN & &b & 12 B &) hE R
of Singapore bi-ar) 580 577
Statutory deposit with Hanoi Stock Exchange #A] ARE 5 5 FTHY A E i & 3,604 2,867
13,680 27,959

The carrying amounts of the Group’s other assets approximate to
their fair values.

AEEEBEENEEERLAT
A% -
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15. Deferred tax

The movements in deferred tax liabilities and assets during the year

are as follows:

Losses available

15. IEFE R 18

FRAEEHBREBEREEZSNT

for offsetting
Accelerated tax against future Share-based
depreciation taxable profits Fair value loss compensation  ECL allowance Total
T E
ARBERR NRGR BHER
MEHERE HEE ATERR EBHEHMN BREE @zt
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TAR TAR TAR TAR TER TER
At 1 January 2021 R202151 A1 (7,122) 64,407 69,761 1,499 4,407 132,952
Deferred tax credited/(charged)  FMBZTA/ (k) BIEHE
to profit or loss (1,490) 123,684 (143,654) (1,499) 1,795 (21,164)
At 31 December 2021 andat 20215124310 &
1 January 2022 R202261A1H (8,612) 188,091 (73,893) - 6,202 111,788
Deferred tax credited/(charged)  FME&SEF A/ (01k)
to profit or loss BREHE (1,087) 48,820 73,893 - (132) 121,544
At 31 December 2022 #2022612A31A (9,649) 236,911 - - 6,070 233,332

Deferred income tax assets and liabilities are offset when there is a
legally enforceable right to set off current tax assets against current
tax liabilities and when the deferred income taxes relate to the same
taxation authority. The deferred income tax assets and liabilities
are to be utilised and settled after one year and the following
amounts, determined after appropriate offsetting, are shown in the
consolidated statement of financial position.

EBRATENAAGARRIAEE
EAMBEIRBEEEREEREN
B R E—HISHER  BIA R T
FIEMEERABEIREE - BT
IEHEERBERR —FERTMN
BRAMGEE M FTIEFAEEER
HEREBENSBEUESSTH AR
KA °

2022 2021
20224 20214

HK$’000 HK$’000

TET T T

Deferred tax assets RIS E 244,068 157,631
Deferred tax liabilities FEEFIAE & (10,736) (45,843)
233,332 111,788

In accordance with the accounting policy set out in note 2.3, the
Group has recognised deferred tax assets in respect of cumulative
tax losses of HK$1,435.8 million (2021: HK$1,139.9 million) as it is
probable that future taxable profits against which the losses can be
utilised will be available in the relevant jurisdiction and entity. The
tax losses do not expire under the current tax legislation.

BIE 2. 3FTH SR HUR + AEE
B IEEE1,435.8E 88 T
(20214 : 1,139.98 BB Tt) R
RERHIBEEE  ZAMABRIEER
KB Bt B AR R E R B m A 1K 5H
ZEEBEB -REZRH L HEE
B AR EH o
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16. Loans and advances to customers 16. e FTEFHNERREBERK
2022 2021
20225 20214
HK$’000 HK$’000
TET FE T
Margin loans HEEXR 8,120,943 16,644,045
Term loans to customers HTYTREFPFHTHER 467,662 1,245,143
Less: Impairment provision W ORE R (2,197,236) (2,034,501)

6,391,369 15,854,687

» o«

Loans and advances are categorised into “excellent”, “good”, “fair”
and “individually impaired”. Excellent refers to exposures which
margin obligation are consistently met and the payment of principal
and interest is not in doubt, collaterals provided are highly liquid
and of good quality. Good refers to exposures which principal
and interest are fully secured but collaterals provided are at a
relatively lower quality where shortfall may be recorded when there
is a significant drop in collateral value. Fair refers to exposures
which principal and interest are fully secured but the quality of
the collateral is deteriorating, shortfall would be expected when
the collateral value continues to deteriorate. Individually impaired
refers to exposures which loss, partial or full, has incurred and with
insufficient collateral.

ERXRRBROBRIESE] IR
]l TEBRIRIERRE] - BF
EERBETAREERASMAE
AR R AR - BRI MBS A
EarnBUERRMENAR R
A M S 2 H KRB R H
MERREERSERE  RERR
EE AR T H%E A LS RENA
% TREASMA S 2 HER
BEEMMEErE8 = BEAS
BEFETHRKEARSRENR
% - ERREREEERN D HEHK
BEAERMERGAIRER
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16. Loans and advances to customers (continued) 16. 8 FEFHNERRKRER

(%)
Analysis of the gross carrying amount as at 31 December by the HAREBANBEZETR N EKRDLE
Group’s internal credit rating and year end classification: MR 12 A31 B EBEE B E ST -
2022 2022%F
Lifetime ECL Lifetime
12-month not credit- ECL credit-
ECL impaired impaired Total

REERE BfRERE
12/ A B NEHED NEHED

BFRBX ERBEX EREX st
(Stage 1) (Stage 2) (Stage 3)
(B—FERR) (B=RR) (B=KE&)
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
Internal rating grade B AR THERT FTHET THERT THERT
Performing E®
Excellent 8% 5,859,098 - - 5,859,098
Good RiF - - - -
Fair Lim 349,653 - - 349,653
Non-performing TR
Individually impaired EbbER I - - 2,379,854 2,379,854
6,208,751 - 2,379,854 8,588,605
2021 20214
Lifetime ECL Lifetime
12-month not credit- ECL credit-
ECL impaired impaired Total
AEERE BEEERAE
1218 A 78 548 &) 2 B8 5 &) % B 78 5
EREX FEREX EREX st
(Stage 1) (Stage 2) (Stage 3)
(B—RE&) (BZREER) (B=ER)
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$'000
Internal rating grade MR T AR FAT FAT THAL THT
Performing i3-S
Excellent BF 15,727,974 - - 15,727,974
Good RiF - - - -
Fair LA = = = =
Non-performing TR
Individually impaired & B3 E - - 2,161,214 2,161,214

15,727,974 = 2,161,214 17,889,188
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16. Loans and advances to customers (continued) 16. 8 FEFHNERRKRER

(%)
The movements of the gross carrying amount of loans and 48 = B ) B 2R R B 20 BR [ 48 (G B
advances to customers are as follows: AT
Lifetime ECL Lifetime
12-month not credit- ECL credit-
ECL impaired impaired Total

REERE EfEERE
1218 A & 5 NEHEY NEHES

EREX EREX EREX #st
(Stage 1) (Stage 2) (Stage 3)
(B—PEER) (B=FERR) (B=MEE)
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
THERT THET THET THER
Gross carrying amount as at 202151 F1B /)
1 January 2021 REAE 15,296,851 - 2,143,598 17,440,449
New assets originated, purchased EE4L - BB ERHEE
or assets transferred HEEENEE 7,984,019 - 36,697 8,020,716
Assets derecognised or repaid  ERIFERSKEEEN
BE (7,552,896) = (19,081) (7,571,977)
Gross carrying amount as at $2021%F12A31H K
31 December 2021 and R2022F1 A1E /K
as at 1 January 2022 FHaE 15,727,974 - 2,161,214 17,889,188
New assets originated, purchased EEE - EBENFTEE
or assets transferred HEBENEE 1,868,039 - 1,774 1,869,813
Assets derecognised or repaid B IEHERSEEER
BE (11,134,517) - (35,879)  (11,170,396)
Transfer from stage 1 to stage 3 HFE—REEAZ =R (252,745) - 252,745 -
Gross carrying amount as at K2022%F12A31B /Y
31 December 2022 REAE 6,208,751 - 2,379,854 8,588,605
There is no transfer of impairment stages during the year ended 31 REZE2021F12831B IFEER -

December 2021. WESREREREA -
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16. Loans and advances to customers (continued)

16. 8 FTEFNERRER

(%)
The movements of the ECL allowance on loans and advances to MBI EEHER LB RTEH=RE
customers are as follows: K BEEBOT -
Lifetime ECL Lifetime
12-month not credit- ECL credit-
ECL impaired impaired Total
REERE EEERE
1218 A M2 2R M2 H TR
EREX EREX EREX @zt
(Stage 1) (Stage 2) (Stage 3)
(B—PEER) (B=FERR) (B=MEE)
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
THET FET TER FTER
ECL allowance as at R2021F1 1B/
1 January 2021 BHERRAER (2,977) - (1,833,228) (1,836,205)
New assets originated or BEASERENTEE
purchased - - (799) (799)
Assets derecognised or repaid B IFERKEEEN
BE 1,756 - 7 1,763
Changes to risk parameters ElEE 61 (774) = (198,486) (199,260)
ECL allowance as at 2021128318 &
31 December 2021 and 2022F1A1H M EH
1 January 2022 ERBAEE (1,995) - (2,032,506) (2,034,501)
Assets derecognised or repaid 2R IFHERHKEEEN
BE 388 - 799 1,187
Changes to risk parameters R 2 g E (1,814) - (44,800) (46,614)
Transfer from stage 1 to stage 3 HE—EEEAZZEE 125 - (125) -
Changes arising from transfer of BB AELHEE)
stage - - (117,308) (117,308)
ECL allowance as at R2022F12 431 H Y
31 December 2022 BHERBERES (3,296) - (2,193,940) (2,197,236)

There was no loans and advances to customers which have been
written off but were still subject to enforcement activity at 31
December 2022 and 2021.

20224 K2021%F12H31H @ W
B sE RN EEITR I HETTEA
BTEFPHNERRBR -
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16. Loans and advances to customers (continued)

Margin financing operations

The Group provides customers with margin financing for securities
transactions, which are secured by customers’ securities held as
collateral. The maximum credit limit granted for each customer is
based on the customer’s financial background and the quality of
related collateral. The Group seeks to maintain strict control over
its outstanding receivables and has a credit and risk management
department to monitor credit risks.

Margin loans to the customers are secured by the underlying
pledged securities, bear interest at a rate with reference to the
Hong Kong dollar prime rate and are repayable on demand. The
carrying value of margin loans approximates to their fair value. No
ageing analysis is disclosed as, in the opinion of the directors, an
ageing analysis does not give additional value in view of the nature
of the margin loans business. The amount of credit facilities granted
to margin clients is determined by the discounted market value of
the collateral securities accepted by the Group. As at 31 December
2022, the total value of securities pledged as collateral in respect
of the margin loans was approximately HK$30,561 million (2021:
HK$58,946 million) based on the market value of the securities as
at the end of the reporting period.

Term loans to customers

The Group also provides term loans to customers. In determining
the interest rates, reference is made to the credit standing of
the relevant customers and the quality and value of the collateral
pledged. The term loans granted to customers amounted to
HK$434,122,000 (2021: HK$1,210,522,000), and the accrued
interest amounted to HK$33,540,000 (2021: HK$34,621,000) as
at 31 December 2022. The carrying amounts of the term loans to
customers approximate to their fair values.

16. 8 FTEFNERRER

(48)
FRBERE
AEBRBHZHAESRETE
WA AEFHEHFEER AR
R BEEFPERNBREREN
TYUATE P OB 25 5 R AR B 4K
AROEZATE - KEERRE
EEES Y eSOl L3R
WA T R REREE IR
EEER -

BTEFHNARENRAERBD KT
BEER  BBBEBSTRERRE
EEMREFE  WIRERKERER-
FREEFNEAEEELAFTEMR
E-HRESRA ERFTEREXR
EBEHMEE  RROIME TS RME
BINMEE B =R DT -
RTITAREFHNEERERIIRE
NEBEMNETEZSFMBEMEESE
JE o R2022F12H31H ' tEAHFE
EXEARNERRBILEEN A
30,5618 & 7 7t (20214 : 58,946
BEEL) WhEFEFRRES
ROMEFESD

HTFEFNEHER
REBTRAEFREEHER - B
EEMEE g2ZHEREFHNY
HEERDARAERAOKERE
= NMEE - R2022F12A31HK T
B P T B E KA H434,122,000
BT (20214 : 1,210,522,000/8
JL) - EE A8 A& #83,540,000
7 7T (20214F : 34,621,000/ 7T) °
BKTEFHNTHERMEEERR
AEERE -
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17. Loans to directors 17. 8 FTESBHNER
Loans to directors, disclosed pursuant to section 383(1)(d) of the R IEE B (A B0 55383(1)(d) 5
Hong Kong Companies Ordinance and Part 3 of the Companies RArl(BEEEFNRER) REHIE
(Disclosure of Information about Benefits of Directors) Regulation, BT T AEBLETEESHNER
are as follows: WEMT :
Maximum Maximum
amount At 31 amount
At 31 outstanding December outstanding At
December during the 2021 and 1 during the 1 January
Name 2022 year  January 2022 prior year 2021 Collateral held
R20215
12R318
R20225 ERER 20225 EERRS 720215
#E 12A318 REELEH 1A1A REELH 118 REERR
HKS$'000 HKS$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TEL TERL FET FERT FET
Mr. LI Guangjie (note(i)) = - = 525 525 Marketable securities
FRARE (M) BEES
Ms. QI Haiying = - = = S
BEELL

Mr. WONG Tung Ching (notefi) - = - _ -
FRERE (M)

The loans granted to directors bear interest range from Hong Kong EFYTEENERDNIRBTRESRT
dollar prime rate +/- 3% per annum depending on risk assessment KN BB EI%TE - BFEE U
on collateral received and the facilities were granted to the directors HHBRRIEmME A TFE
for a period of 3 years ended on 31 December 2021 and renewed ECMEBELZH BT BEE 22021
for a period of 3 months ended on 31 March 2021. F12A31A L FEARHE REE
202143 A31H It F EE&E3E A &

R o
Note (i):  Mr. WONG Tung Ching and Mr. LI Guangjie resigned as executive director Miax() : EXBFRERT AN EEDBE
with effective from 14 December 2021. HITES » §2021F128148#
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18. Accounts receivable

18. EWF1E

The carrying values of accounts receivable arising from the course

of business of the Group are as follows:

ARG B X BIR T T E £ M EIR
HREREEST

2022 2021
20224 20214
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET T
Accounts receivable arising from brokerage #4027 IiE WRIR
— cash and custodian clients B RAERP 9,911 64,814
- the Stock Exchange and other clearing — B A T K LA AE B R
houses 1,200,995 3,195,809
- brokers and dealers —RERZ 5 3,630,107 2,786,524
Accounts receivable arising from insurance 1R B 45 42 AR 75 1 W 30 IE
brokerage services
- cash and custodian clients —“BERAERP - 4
Accounts receivable arising from securities BHEEXEBEKGIE
borrowing and lending
— brokers and dealers —BERR 5 725,668 419,506
Accounts receivable arising from corporate hrERE BEETE -
finance, asset management, financial SRESR  MHRKRE
products, market making and investments EX Y A& O
— corporate clients, investment funds and —hERF KREESK
others Hh 107,461 117,538
5,674,142 6,584,195
Less: Impairment provision ORI E R (32,756) (24,514)
5,641,386 6,559,681
The movements in the impairment allowance on accounts receivable FEW R IERERIEES T
are as follows:
2022 2021
20224 20214
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FE T
At 1 January M1A1R8 24,514 7,052
Impairment charged to profit or loss during FRFTABZHRE
the year 9,932 17,816
Impairment reversed during the year F N 1 B /R (B (1,800) (354)
Exchange difference e N Z=5 110 =
At 31 December MW12A31H 32,756 24,514

There was no accounts receivable which have been written off but
were still subject to enforcement activity at 31 December 2022 and

2021.

R20224F K2021F12A318 » &
EMEEET EET R EITEA
EWHRBEREESH -



206 Guotai Junan International | Annual Report 2022

Notes to Financial Statements

Bt 5 ¥R 3R B &

31 December 2022
2022412 A31H

18. Accounts receivable (continued)

The carrying values of accounts receivable arising from the course
of business of the Group are as follows:

31 December 2022

18.

FE WX FRIE (42)

ARG B X BIR T T E £ M EIR
HREREEST

2022F12H31H

Accounts
receivable
Accounts Accounts from
receivable receivable corporate Accounts
from cash  from the Stock Accounts clients, receivable
and Exchange and receivable investment from
custodian  other clearing  from brokers funds and insurance
clients houses and dealers others brokerage Total
BT R BER rEEF RE
RERTE At E 258 REEER RREH
BREWHR W FHE EhEE EtEURE L ES At
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TRT TR TARL TR TRT TR
Gross carrying amount EREE 9,911 1,200,995 4,355,775 107,461 - 5,674,142
Less: impairment B A
- Stage 1 - 5K N/A
6) (650) (4,476) TEA - (5,132)
- Stage 2 - SR N/A
) - - TER - )
- Stage 3 - E=kE N/A
(568) - - TEA - (568)
- Simplified approach - B5% N/A N/A N/A N/A
TEA TEA TER (27,049) TEA (27,049)
9,330 1,200,345 4,351,299 80,412 - 5,641,386
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18. Accounts receivable (continued) 18. EUWFKIE (&)
31 December 2021 2021%F12H31H
Accounts
receivable
Accounts Accounts from
receivable receivable corporate Accounts
from cash  from the Stock Accounts clients, receivable
and  Exchange and receivable investment from
custodian  other clearing from brokers funds and insurance
clients houses and dealers others brokerage Total
BeR B R &ERk rEZP R
TERP Et&E RHEE REEER BREK
Y5 FTE IR WiE AR fElisE st
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TR TAT TR TBT THET T
Gross carrying amount BRmEE 64,814 3,195,809 3,206,030 117,538 4 6,584,195
Less: impairment o RE
- Stage 1 - E-KE N/A
(32) (1,499) (5,199) TR - (6,724)
- Stage 2 - R N/A
) = = TR = 3
- Stage 3 - KB N/A
(453) = = TR = (453)
- Simplified approach - B5% N/A N/A N/A N/A
TER TER TER (17,334) TER (17,334)
64,326 3,194,310 3,200,837 100,204 4 6,559,681

Accounts receivable from cash and custodian clients represent
unsettled client trades on various securities exchanges transacted
on the last two to three business days prior to the end of the
reporting year. When the cash and custodian clients fail to settle
on the settlement date, the Group has the rights to force-sell the
collateral underlying the securities transactions. The collateral
held against these receivables is publicly traded securities. The
impairment provision is made after taking into consideration the
recoverability from the collateral. No ageing analysis is disclosed
as, in the opinion of the directors, an ageing analysis does not give
additional value in view of the nature of these accounts receivable.

ReMAETFPNRUREEERE
BEFERZANKEME =ET
EEARETREFRXZAETHR
BEEPRSZ - —BERENFAETR
FPRERGEEBEMNFKE ~&HE
BRRABHEERRX HHEBNER
o T 5 52 5 R R IR 15 A K IR 4
MRARXSES HERBES
BHEMBHRKEERIEL - BF
R ARZERYGRENLE -
R M A emREIMEE  BUR
BEEAIRE DN -
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18. B FRIE ()
REBSRASEPHEKREY

18. Accounts receivable (continued)

The movement of the gross carrying amount of accounts receivable

arising from brokerage of cash and custodian clients are as follows: WEEMESBIT -
Lifetime ECL Lifetime
12-month not credit- ECL credit-
ECL impaired impaired Total
AEERE BEERE
12{8 A B8 MEEES i hER
EREX ERBEX EREX @
(Stage 1) (Stage 2) (Stage 3)
(B—FEE) (E-R&) (E=E&)
HK$'000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$'000
TERT TER TAR TAR
Gross carrying amount as at 120211 A1H &)
1 January 2021 BEREE 110,323 11 371 110,705
New assets originated, purchased EEXL EBENHEE
or assets transferred NEEEMEE 60,512 5 67 60,584
Assets derecognised or repaid ERIERRAEEEN
BE (106,467) - 8) (106,475)
Transfer of stages BBEE (20) (3) 23 -
Gross carrying amount as at 72021612 318 R
31 December 2021 and as at 20221 F1H A
1 January 2022 BEREE 64,348 13 453 64,814
New assets originated, purchased EEXL  EBEENHEE
or assets transferred FEEZNEE 7,892 14 72 7,978
Assets derecognised or repaid BERIERANBER
& (62,827) - (54) (62,881)
Transfer of stages BHLEE (104) 6 98 -
Gross carrying amount as at 1202212 A31 R )
31 December 2022 BREE 9,309 33 569 9,911
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18. Accounts receivable (continued) 18. EUWFKIE (&)
The movements in the ECL allowance of accounts receivable arising KA S NI ERE PR EWRIER
from brokerage of cash and custodian clients are as follows: TEBHERERBEEESHHIMT
Lifetime ECL Lifetime
12-month not credit- ECL credit-
ECL impaired impaired Total

AMEERE EEERE
128 A B e bt e bt

EREX ERBEX EREX wst
(Stage 1) (Stage 2) (Stage 3)
(F-KR) € p=-1:9) (E=E&)
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TET TET TET TR
ECL allowance as at 202141 B1H K FEH
1 January 2021 EREXRE (69) @) (371) (428)
New assets originated or purchased EE£HEBENFMEE (30) ©) (42) (75)
Assets derecognised or repaid ERIEBRAHZEEEN
BE 29 2 10 41
Changes to risk parameters Rk 8% 24 = (50) (26)
ECL allowance as at R2021F12A31B K
31 December 2021 and 2022%1 A1 R H) T8 5
1 January 2022 EREXERE (32) () (453) (488)
New assets originated or purchased EE4HEBEENHEE (4) - ) (13)
Assets derecognised or repaid ERIERRAKEEEN
BE 30 - 4 34
Changes to risk parameters et - (4) (110) (114)
ECL allowance as at R2022612 A31 A K TE Y

31 December 2022 EREXERE (6) 7 (568) (581)
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18. Accounts receivable (continued)

For accounts receivable from the Stock Exchange and other
clearing houses, brokers and dealers, and insurance brokerage,
no ageing analysis is disclosed as, in the opinion of the directors,
an ageing analysis does not give additional value in view of the
nature of these accounts receivable. There was no transfer of ECL
allowance to different stages during the year ended 31 December
2022 and 2021.

Accounts receivable from corporate clients and investment funds
arising from asset management, corporate finance, investment
holding and market making which have not yet been settled by
clients after the Group’s normal credit period. The credit rating and
reputation of the trade counterparties were considered as sound
for the past due accounts receivable from corporate clients and
investment funds.

Ageing analysis of the relevant trade receivables at the date of
consolidated statement of financial position based on past due date
is as follows:

18. EWWRIE ()

%”UJ‘AE% R EEMEER £ K
R 58 DA R AR B 48 40 /O B Uk 3R 08
BEERE EEBGEZSJEWMIEE’N;
EoRBROM NS EREIMEE
MABRBETMRNEREEZED T - REZE
20224F 202112 A1 B L& -
MEETEHERARABEEEE TR

EI R EX o

EPRAKE-—REEHER KRB
ENEEXEFRREESHRENR
H(ELXBEEEE OGE®RE -
REEBREMT) HREEREP
MEEES N B HE KGR

SHFHONEEFREBERER

RiFaHBMRREX B BRESER
HEARKE S RIENRER D TH
™

2022 2021

20224 20214

HK$’000 HK$’'000

THET T 7T

Not yet past due i 7 460 Hf 44,232 48,412
Past due less than 1 month #HI— & A AR 187 3,076
Past due between 1 to 3 months #E—2 =1 A 56 7,693
Past due over 3 months BEI=E AN E 62,986 58,357
Total BET 107,461 117,538

Accounts receivable from corporate clients and investment funds
arising from asset management, corporate finance, investment
holding and market making using a provision matrix under
simplified approach. The provision rates are based on days past
due for groupings of various customer segments with similar loss
patterns (i.e., by geographical region, product type, customer
type and rating, and coverage by letters of credit or other forms of
credit insurance). The calculation reflects the probability-weighted
outcome, the time value of money and reasonable and supportable
information that is available at the reporting date about past events,
current conditions and forecasts of future economic conditions.
Generally, trade receivables are written off if past due for more than
one year and are not subject to enforcement activity.

AP EERARBREFENTE
EPRREESWENRFE(EL
BEEEE bXERE REER
KAg) o B R THEN G A AL
BEEA (AR - EmEL -
BEPEMEFIH UEREREERE
HESIHBEANEERR) 2&
1I§)5"*BL'TT o B R
AHE LA ERRB R NESR
EECERBEAMREBBEES
- BRI R RREEMRRTA
AMHE BRI ESNAE R
HER - —RME - WEKE SR
HEM—FA L AIMEERES
BIE - WA REIRITIEE AR
PR °
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18. Accounts receivable (continued) 18. EUWFKIE (&)
Set out below is the information about the credit risk exposure on AT EFEREEEETENEGBAR
the Group’s trade receivables using a provision matrix: EFHEWREZESFTBEZ ZERRER :
2022 20224
Gross carrying
amount ECL Total
AEREE BEHEAEX et
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
FE T THET TET
Not pass due i A 80 HA 44,232 (14) 44,218
Past due less than 1 month & B — i A A A 187 (1) 186
Past due between 1 to 3 months #El— %= =1 A 56 (11) 45
Past due over 3 months BEA=E AN E 62,986 (27,023) 35,963
Total FEE 107,461 (27,049) 80,412
2021 20214
Gross carrying
amount ECL Total
MEEEE BHERAEX Bt
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
FE T T & T 78T
Not pass due fei 7 80 5 48,412 (22) 48,390
Past due less than 1 month 0 B — & A LA A 3,076 (18) 3,058
Past due between 1 to 3 months #El—Z= ={#& A 7,693 (1,536) 6,157
Past due over 3 months B HEI =& A LA & 58,357 (15,758) 42,599
Total e 117,538 (17,334) 100,204
19. Prepayments, deposits and other 19. BB ¥BERHEM
receivables FE Uk K18
2022 2021
20224 20214
HK$’000 HK$'000
THET FAET
Prepayments and deposits ERRE KRS 127,684 107,529
Interest receivables JE W ) 2, 85,300 10,782
212,984 118,311
None of the above assets is either past due or credit-impaired. The bt & L A e A T W 4 (= BORL
financial assets included in the above balances relate to receivables Bt A Lt &sbm S B ESE R

for which there was no recent history of default. i E AN EWRRIBESRE -
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20. Financial assets at fair value

20.ZAFEHIENEME

=3
2022 2021
2022%F 20214
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET T
Non-current FERED
Financial assets held for trading and REEERRENEREE
investments
— Unlisted fixed income securities — I ETEE W B S - 4,106,706
— Unlisted convertible securities — JEETARRES - 223,427
- Unlisted equity securities — FETRARS 1,769,013 1,823,797
Financial products (note (b)) T B E m (FisE(b)) 13,676,864 11,214,889
15,445,877 17,368,819
Current mE
Financial assets held for trading and BIEEBEREENSREE
investments
— Unlisted fixed income securities —3E ETHEE W E 2 4,037,833 5,238,267
— Unlisted convertible securities —JE LA AR B S 196,640 =
— Listed equity securities — F TR AR E S 649,885 1,166,283
— Listed debt securities — I EBES 1,938,626 8,218,544
— Unlisted debt securities —FLEMEBHESF 1,907,928 =
— Unlisted fund investments (note (a)) —JEEMESEKE (KizF@) 935,394 2,370,084
— Other financial instruments —HEhemIT A - 94,880
Financial products (note (b)) & EE m (K (o)) 32,261,814 20,384,420
41,928,120 37,472,478
Total financial assets at fair value through ERAFEFTAERZN
profit or loss TRIEERTE 57,373,997 54,841,297
Financial assets at fair value through other BAFEETAEAM
comprehensive income Z2EHKEMNSREEE
Current mE
Financial assets held for investments BERENSREE
— Listed equity securities —EFRAES 82,304 -
— Unlisted debt securities —3EETHERFES - 11,529
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20. Financial assets at fair value (continued)

Notes:

The Group invested in unconsolidated investment funds for capital appreciation
and investment income. The interests held by the Group are in the form of
participating shares which provide the Group with the share of returns from
the investment funds, but not any decision making power nor any voting right.
Given that the Group only held the beneficial interests without holding any voting
right or substantial decision making power as principal, these investments are
classified as financial assets at fair value through profit or loss.

The financial products invested by the Group included listed equity investments,
listed debt investments, unlisted fund investments, unlisted equity investments
and derivatives. As at 31 December 2022, cash collateral of HKS$nil million
(2021: HK$96.4 million) and securities collateral of HK$226.5 million (2021:
HK$198.2 million) were placed to the counterparties.

Financial assets are categorised as “financial products” when it is acquired by
the Group for the primary purpose of meeting customers’ investment needs
and used as hedging instruments for structured notes issued under the MTN
Programme (note 27), financial liabilities (note 28) or derivative instruments
acquired by customers (note 21). As a result, the variable return of these
financial products and the financial liabilities in relation to these financial
products is not significant.

20 BAFEHIFENEHME
=)

GEE

(a)

AEBERERARAHREES AR
BEXRZERRERA - AEE I
2RV AFERER REAKET
DEREESHMEEE  EXEME
MRRBAEMNERRE - ERAE
EEFAERERNTEEAKRE
BHXMEZABERNRERE %%
RESBEREBEATFTEAARENS
BEE °

AEERENSREREE ETWR
AEE  EHEBERE FLTHE
SERE FETRARERITET
A - ®R2022F12A318 * TR R
SHFHIE ST R RESF TR
DABEEEB T (20214F : 906.48
B87T) k226.58 BB T (20214 :
1982 BB ) ©

EREERHASREIZR mER
FPREGRKMBEBESBER[SR
Eml o XEARES BREG 8%
THAEBERRE (ffEe7) @A
& (M ae8) sk PMEBMITA T A
(M E21) MR T A - MUt ZEF S
RERIEABAEREEZAZD
BAK
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21. Derivative financial instruments

21.

The table below shows the fair values of derivative financial
instruments recorded as assets or liabilities together with their
notional amounts. The notional amount, recorded gross, is the
amount of a derivative’s underlying asset, reference rate or index
and is the basis upon which changes in the value of the derivative
are measured. The notional amounts indicate the volume of
transactions outstanding at the year end and are indicative of
neither the market risk nor the credit risk.

TEEMIA

TREJLHKASEERRENITTE
TRITANAFEEREEZES
BB EaxsBEER/TE
TEAMBEE 2EZEXRIIEHN
SE VYARITETIABENEE

MEE - ZRSBERANFRRE
KR ZE - BET =2 % AR IRk

FEERBRMNER -

Fair value
AFHE
Notional
amount Assets Liabilities
ZEHESHE EE =R
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FET FHET
As at 31 December 2022 7K2022%12A31H
Non-current e ED
Currency derivatives EETETR
Foreign exchange forward iR BRSNGE 6,207,427 86,653 (2,999)
Foreign exchange options SNDE HA 389,850 7,765 -
Interest rate derivatives FIESTET A
Interest rate swap I 2 4= HA 12,842,667 471,367 (212,001)
Equity derivatives BEETETAR
Stock options % 5= HA 1,093,984 11,270 (14,812)
Warrants = 24,043 - (1,874)
20,557,971 577,055 (231,686)
Current i
Commodity derivatives EmiTAE TR
Metal futures swap T EHEEH 1,997,847 22,100 (21,599)
Currency derivatives EETETR
Foreign exchange forward = B AN 16,813,690 105,436 (93,845)
Interest rate derivatives FESTET A
Interest rate swap F = 42 HA 4,961,579 30,356 (8,321)
Equity derivatives RASTET A
Stock options iz 2= HA 10,567,762 370,498 (229,231)
Warrants &= b 2,032,594 - (77,104)
Futures HE 438,468 4,844 (310)
Swaps = 5 180,146,368 994,224 (872,121)
216,958,308 1,527,458 (1,297,531)
237,516,279 2,104,513 (1,529,217)
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21. Derivative financial instruments (continued) 21. T4 €mI B
Fair value
NEE
Notional
amount Assets Liabilities
HESHE EE aE
HK$'000 HK$’000 HK$’000
T TT T T
As at 31 December 2021 K2021F12H31H
Non-current JE B
Currency derivatives EETET A
Foreign exchange forward = B HINE 440,530 - (41,004)
Interest rate derivatives MEFTET A
Interest rate swap 71| & 4 HA 7,205,586 12,325 (61,468)
Equity derivatives BASTET A
Warrants & b 90,966 = (3,937)
7,737,082 12,325 (106,409)
Current mE
Currency derivatives EBSTAET R
Foreign exchange forward = BRSNGE 9,913,566 232,968 (166,275)
Interest rate derivatives MEFTET A
Interest rate swap I & 4= HA 3,575,936 155 (43,542)
Equity derivatives BASTETE
Stock options fix 5= A4 2,124,806 70,298 (26,366)
Warrants & b 4,387,062 = (25,147)
Futures HE 338,195 756 (825)
Swaps 17 HA 3,492,603 103,052 (105,419)
Others Hib 1,027,641 120,752 (58,839)
Other derivatives EpsrET A
Credit derivatives ERMETIR 436,716 78,618 (25)
Other swaps H fib = A 38,211 306 (114)
25,334,736 606,905 (426,552)
33,071,818 619,230 (532,961)

The Group entered into International Swaps and Derivatives
Association, Inc. (“ISDA”) master netting agreements or similar
agreements with substantially all of its derivative counterparties.
Where legally enforceable, these master netting agreements give
the Group the right to offset cash collateral paid or received with
the same counterparty. As at 31 December 2022, amounts of cash
collateral of HK$1,611.0 million and HK$1,273.7 milion were paid
to and received from respective counterparties (2021: HK$545.0
million and HK$661.0 million), which are included in “accounts
receivable and accounts payable arising from brokerage — brokers
and dealers” in notes 18 and 24 to the financial statements
respectively.

REBEBRIBLITELTAER
2 7 R BB B RO A m
# € (International Swaps and
Derivatives Association,Inc.)
([ISDAL) & 58 4K 85 48 175 = S SR L
o EKEFARBIMTERLT » Z
LFHEEHAGEE TSR ERN
REEERR S A KB =E
& WA M - K2022412H31H -
ReEKFmeES H1,611.088
7T &1,273.78 &% 7T (20214 -
545.08 & & 7L %661.08 & /% L)
AR T RKEHEBER ST - 95l
B ¥ETE B 75 3R R Mt s 18 K248 [
40 ZE 7% FE W SR TR K FE AN SRIE — A 4
RZ 5] .
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22.

23.

Receivable from reverse repurchase
agreements

The receivable from reverse repurchase agreements arises
when the securities are bought by the Group with a concurrent
agreement to resell at a specified later date and price. These
securities are not recognised in the Group’s consolidated statement
of financial position as the counterparty retains substantially
all risks and returns of the securities. The amount paid by the
Group is recognised as receivable. In the event of default by
the counterparty, the Group has the right to sell the underlying
securities for settling the outstanding receivable.

As at 31 December 2022, the outstanding amount paid for the
reverse repurchase agreements was HK$586,845,000 (2021:
HK$4,443,729,000) and was recognised as receivable from reverse
repurchase agreements.

The fair value of securities received as collateral for the outstanding
receivable at the year-end was HK$654,083,000 (2021:
HK$4,426,919,000).

Cash and cash equivalents and client trust
bank balances

22.

23.

f= 12 (2] 55 165 3% M W 5K IR

[ 17) [2] A& 199 2 2 e W AR IR IR AR 5
BEBSREL EWRKEIML—
i AR E R R A B RER

BE ZEEFLERAEEES
MBMRRKRTHER RARXST
REZEEFNBRBD AR NE
o ARE N HHIAHER DRI
KRB -WMXBHEN AKEBERE
HERBEZAEERBBHEWR

TRIH °

R2022F12 8318 » 5t = A B 817
% X B R 455 FU0E A586,845,000
7B 7T (20214 @ 4,443,729,000/%
J0) - WHER A R A B B 1 a FE Uk

IR e

RERDWEIE AR KRGS E K
REEBEMNEFNAFTES
654,083,000 jt (20214 :
4,426,919,000/ 7T ) °

BeRkRATSEURE
FEFEIRITAER

2022 2021
20224 20214
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FE T
Cash and bank balances & RIRITAEER 7,478,709 5,080,107
Time deposits TE B3 1F 3K 277,871 197,767
— with original maturity of less than three —REBRLR=EH
months 58,607 74,641
— with original maturity of more than three —REEBARBB=@A
months 219,264 123,126
Total cash and cash equivalents HeMReEEWRRE 7,756,580 5,277,874




BEREZERE | 20223 217

Notes to Financial Statements

Bt 5 ¥R 3R B &

31 December 2022
2022412 A31H

23. Cash and cash equivalents and client trust W HRERATEEBYRE

bank balances (continued) FEEAE1TESR =
2022 2021
20224 20214
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FABIT
Cash and cash equivalents BUATEESENSE S X

denominated in: REFEEY
HK$ BT 5,161,215 1,483,748
Us$ eV 2,272,854 3,507,671
RMB AR 56,359 116,891
VND WA 126,335 85,304
Others Eih 139,817 84,260
7,756,580 5,277,874

Cash at banks earns interest at floating rates based on daily
bank deposit rates. Time deposits are made for varying periods
of between one month and 13 months depending on the cash
requirements of the Group, and earn interest at the respective time
deposit rates. The bank balances are deposited with creditworthy
banks with no history of default.

As at 31 December 2022, the ECL allowance of bank deposits,
cash and cash equivalents, and client trust bank balances
amounted to HK$5,773,000 (2021: HK$10,535,000) aggregately.
All of them are classified as Stage 1 under the ECL model and there
was no transfer to/from the other stages.

The Company maintains segregated accounts with authorized
institutions to hold client money in the normal course of business.

RITBEERFARTHERN KR
FBR R E - EHERNFERHA
BAEENREFRME N F—
BAZ+=M@A  YZHEETEHRTF
RMEGF B - RITERECFEAGE
RiF B EABRESLHRITH

R2022%4 128318 » SR1ITF & -
RekBeSEUWUAERERE
AR TESNTESREAEBREE
& 55,773,000/ 7T (20214 :
10,585,000/ 7t) * 1L T8 Hi (= B
BARAESEF—BE BX R
LN A=) )

ARARERBEBREBELIRS -
REEXBBRTRATFER -
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24. Accounts payable 24.

P&+ 3% 18
2022 2021
20225 20214
HK$’000 HK$’000
THET TABTT

Accounts payable arising from brokerage £ 40 25 75 E N IR
— clients - EP
— brokers and dealers — BERZRHE
- the Stock Exchange and other clearing — B AT P R Hofth A5 E AT
houses
Accounts payable arising from securities BHEEXEBKEN KA

borrowing and lending

Accounts payable arising from TtXERE BEERE -
corporate finance, asset management, CREM MM RER
financial products, market making, HL 3 75 JE A 518

investments and others

Accounts payable arising from insurance R Box 45 40 AR 75 FE 5P 3RIE
brokerage services

13,136,472 16,986,206

1,675,062 790,787
1,288,615 2,212,759
42,254 37,289
583,839 559,622
86 503

16,726,328 20,587,166

The majority of the accounts payable are repayable on demand
except for certain accounts payable to clients which represent
margin deposits received from clients for their trading activities in
the normal course of business. Only the excess amounts over the
required margin deposits stipulated are repayable on demand.

The Group has a practice to satisfy all the requests for payment
within one business day. No ageing analysis is disclosed as, in the
opinion of the directors, the ageing analysis does not give additional
value in view of the nature of these businesses.

Accounts payable to clients also include those payables in trust
accounts with authorised institutions of HK$13,352 million (2021:
HK$17,815 million), Hong Kong Futures Exchange Clearing
Corporation Limited and other futures dealers of HK$206 million
(2021: HK$215 million).

Accounts payable arising from insurance brokerage services
include those payables in trust accounts with authorised institutions
of HK$86,000 (2021: HK$503,000). Accounts payable are
non-interest-bearing, except for the accounts payable to clients.

REBOENRBAEREREEE
EETRENTEFPHNRBARREP
REFXEBBEFETEEITPK
MEFPHRBEZBI - AABHR
EREENEEARERKHREER

ﬁo

AEEBERE—BALXARNBEMR
BNRER - NEE I E R FEREK
i REAREEERIZEED
MIEE  BREROT TS RHEE
SMEME °

BN TEERFIEIREED BT
RRA #EETRFM13,3528 8
BT (20214F : 17,816 A& A T) »
EAPEREAER AR REMBEE
R 5 EK206H & B 7t (20214 :
2158 BB 70) M EMFIA °

1R B8 45 40 BR 75 FE 1~ 50 TE B 15 7R 1) 4
(= 5L AR B 19 B {5 51 1886,0007% JT
(20214 : 503,000 7T) ° & f&E
BRI A RBEH T L o
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25. Other payables and accrued liabilities 5. Hitt B RERETE
E
2022 2021
20224 20214
HK$’000 HK$'000
FBT T
Other payables H b & 3R I8 138,563 46,154
Accrued liabilities st B fE 464,395 586,163
602,958 632,317
Other payables and accrued liabilities are non-interest-bearing and HENZBELESTEGEHA T
have an average term of three months. B EHHBRA=@A -
26. Interest bearing borrowings 26. st EER
2022 2021
20224 20214
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET T
Non-current: FEMED -
Lease liabilities HEBE 15,387 40,542
Current: ME :
Lease liabilities HEAE 27,845 27,322
Unsecured bank borrowings ERE P IRITIER 9,305,775 5,307,339
I 9393620 6334061
Total interest bearing borrowings TR ERAREE 9,349,007 5,375,203
2022 2021
20224 20214
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET T
Denominated in: BT EERE :
HK$ BT 3,494,029 3,157,025
us$ ETT 5,262,975 2,167,983
Other currencies Hih & #& 592,003 50,195
9,349,007 5,375,203
The Group’s bank borrowings bear interest at the Interbank Offered RNEBFRITERERBITRERE
Rate plus an interest spread. INEZEETE °
The carrying amounts of the bank borrowings approximate to their HRMIRNEET NEBEK %
fair values as the impact on discounting is not significant. SRTEFNNEEEREE R FEME
% o
The Group’s lease liabilities bear weighted average interest rate at REEMHEEAENNE T F
3.26% per annum (2021: 3.35% per annum). & 53.26% (20214 : F F| &

3.35%) °
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27. Debt securities in issue

27.ERTEBES

2022 2021
20224 20214
HK$’000 HK$'000
THET T T
Non-current JER B
At amortised cost (note a (i)): R AR (B REa) -
Listed unsecured medium-term notes EiERRF IR 3,138,860 3,139,345
Designated at fair value through profit EERA T ET AE=
or loss (note (b)): GEIOE
Structured notes issued in relation to BEETHNESMEMRMER”Z
financial products EEUERE 9,629,871 8,198,613
12,768,731 11,337,958
Current V)
At amortised cost (note a (ii)): R SR A (B sEali)
Unlisted unsecured medium-term notes JE LA HEER 3,784,775 18,298,551
Designated at fair value through profit EERAFEF AER
or loss (note (b)): GEAE
Structured notes issued in relation to BEETHEMEMMERZ
financial products EEMERE 24,934,762 15,855,274
o.__...28719,537 34,153,825
41,488,268 45,491,783
Unsecured medium-term notes BT 5B 85 (E & &5 1
denominated in: RHIZE A
us$ ETT 5,536,342 11,903,280
HK$ BT 1,322,698 9,242,162
RMB AR 64,595 192,709
Other currencies Hih E - 99,745
o .......5,0923635 21,437,896
Structured notes issued in relation to financial & N3 S FIEN 2 ETH
products denominated in: CRIERAREBE
Zi
HKS$ T 613,341 3,077,692
uss$ ETT 32,009,325 19,437,596
RMB AR 1,446,865 974,462
NZD #HEaEE T 495,102 564,137
oo.....__...84564633 24,053,887
41,488,268 45,491,783
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27. Debt securities in issue (continued)

Notes:

(@)

On 3 March 2021, the Company issued listed unsecured notes under the
Company’s Medium Term Note Programme (the “MTN Programme”) in principal
amount of US$400 million at a discount of 99.981% which is listed on The
Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited. The notes carry a fixed interest rate of
2% with a maturity term of 5 years. The principal will be fully repayable on the
maturity date on 3 March 2026. Please refer to the Company’s announcement
on 4 March 2021 for details of the notes.

The outstanding balance of HK$3,785 million (2021: HK$18,299 million)
stated at amortised cost represents the amount of unsecured notes issued
by the Company under the MTN Programme and Guaranteed Structure Note
Programme (the “GSN Programme”) maintained by its subsidiary. As at 31
December 2022, the debt securities in issue bore fixed interest rates ranging
from 1.4% to 4.9% (2021: 0.4% to 3.5%). The unsecured notes issued are
either callable on demand or with original maturity less than one year. The
carrying amounts of the debt securities in issue approximate to their fair values.
On 14 January 2022, the Company has redeemed all of its outstanding 4.25%
notes due 2022 with an aggregate principal amount of US$200,000,000. The
redemption price equals to 100% of the principal amount plus accrued and
unpaid interest.

The outstanding balance of HK$34,565 million (2021: HK$24,054 million)
represented the amount of unlisted structured notes which arose from selling
structured products under the MTN Programme with underlying investments
related to listed equity investments, listed debt investments, unlisted debt
investments, unlisted fund investments and derivatives.

The Group has not had any defaults of principal, interest or other
breaches with respect to their liabilities during the year (2021: nil).

Part of debt securities in issue are repayable on demand and the
Group has a practice to satisfy the request for redemption on the
settlement date.

27. ERITEKRF )

GEE

@@) M2021F3A3H * AR ARIEARAD
AR IR E (R IR EETED)
1299.981 %M B E T AL R A4E
EM EMEKBERHEE S TR
EABARSHAERAR LMot
EEHIREE R 2%t & - A HS
F o A& E H BH20269F3A3H
BHEE - FL2HEARAIN2021F
SHAB R ZRE  UTHERZ

HAS -

(a(il)  FEHESH K AT BR B0 K (B 3B #R 583,785
A E#B T (20214 : 18,2997F &
T0) HE AR AR AR B R IR AT £ 34T
MERBZERERENB QA%
FRERGEEZE 2 [GSNaTE
BATH KR =R S 5 - R20224F
12A318 ' EETEHBHFEET
FIE1.4%%4.9% (20214F : 0.4% %2
3.5%) 5T B o B 1T H) £ 3K 1 = 4R ]
REKBELROHKEINHA LR —F -
BRTEHEEFNRAEEELATF
B - R202291 8148 * XA F]
§& [ /N & 42 %8 55200,000,0003% 7T A
20224 E| HAFT A 14 K (8 38 #94.25%
=R o B BB SR AN 5 AI100% 00
FEFT R AHFIE o

(b)  K{EE#%834,5658 & 6 T (2021
& 24,054E BB ) IKIRIEFHE
Brtdl s EARERELENIELD
HEEEZRIERE HEEEE T
BARZE EMEBKKRE LW
BEHEIRE FLEMESLERITE
TEFR-

REBRFALEHE R EMAE
MEKHEMABTEETNEBR
(20214 : &) o

BERTEBESPOARERE
B mAKENEMNSELEE BB
B E K o
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28. Financial liabilities at fair value through
profit or loss

=

£l
EI‘I_'
>
i
Bk
&
P

MY b
i -

2022 2021
20224 20214
HK$’000 HK$'000
FHET FAT
Financial liabilities held for trading: RIEEENSRAEE -
— Listed equity securities — ETBRARE 359,900 69,105
— Listed debt securities — LEBES 367,634 4,760,009
— Unlisted debt securities — I EMEBE 12 13,370
Financial liabilities designated at fair value EERAFEFABRRN
through profit or loss TRARE
— Financial products (note(a)) — EER(Wik@) 1,205,621 3,120,012
— Other financial instruments — HMemTA 1,423 36,601
— Third-party interests in consolidated — MAEGHREESN
investment funds (note (b)) F=rEE (b)) 173,796 773,708
2,108,386 8,772,805
Notes: Mz -
(@) As at 31 December 2022, cash collateral of HK$20 million (31 December 2021: (a) MN2022F12B31H st A& B E

HK$2 million) included in the fair value in financial products is received from
counterparty.

The amount of change in fair value of financial liabilities at fair value through
profit or loss, during the year and cumulatively, attributable to changes in own
credit risk was insignificant.

Third-party interests in consolidated investment funds consist of third-party
unitholders’ interests in consolidated investment funds which are reflected as
liabilities since they can be put back to the Group for cash. The realisation of
third-party interests in investment funds cannot be predicted with accuracy
since these represent the interests of third-party unitholders in consolidated
investment funds that are subject to market risk and the actions of third-party
investors.

29. Obligations under repurchase agreements

The obligations under repurchase agreements arise when the
securities are sold by the Group with a concurrent agreement to
repurchase at a specified later date and price. The amount received
by the Group is recognised as liabilities as the Group retains
substantially all risks and returns of the securities.

As at 31 December 2022, the outstanding amount received
from repurchase agreements was HK$7,695,073,000 (2021:
HK$9,255,723,000) which was recognised as obligations under
repurchase agreements.

29.

@mAFENESIERR0E ST
(2021512A318 2B & B T) I
W F 5 YR ©

RERN AAFEERRESHRE
MEBRAFEFABRENEHA
BERFELRNSBELIPIL TEK -

() WMAGHEREESNE=THRHZE
EMAGHREEESNE =TT EM
FAAED ARZSESEARE
AEBNUKDMES  BIRBEE-
REESHE=TRanE R EX
EHRA - DRBEEERKRAA
EHREESNE=TEMFAA
Mt W HIR WS ER &S =
HEREENTR

[=] % 175 3% B9 f& 15
AEEREEBHALETS

WRE RIS — A A A RIEEER
BHI R EREREES - AR E KR
MRRERRALSEE RESAEKHE
REEFH BRI EfR N @

R2022F12 8318 » B @B 7K
HY B oK 4% )8 3K 1A /&7,695,073,0000
7 7t (20214 : 9,255,723,000/8
J0) c WHER AL B REAEE -
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29. Obligations under repurchase agreements

20. EI B EE 2

(continued)

Fair value of financial assets under the repurchase agreements: EEWGEZEE TSR EENATE
2022 2021
20224 20214
HK$’000 HK$'000
THET TABIT

Financial assets held for trading FIEEENESREE
— Listed debt securities — EFMEBES 919,267 2,724,914
— Unlisted debt securities — ELETMEBES 58,081 91,772
Financial products SRLE M 8,536,580 9,067,314

9,513,928 11,884,000

30. Share capital

30. &

Number of
issued and
fully paid Share
shares capital
ERITRAR
g 4| IR 2
HK$’000
FHET
At 1 January 2021 R2021F1 /18 9,617,228,644 10,908,749
Shares issued upon exercise of R EITE T 1T AR A
share options under the share MmEITHRR G (FFFE31)
option scheme (note 31) 1,766,063 2,414
At 31 December 2021 and 7K2021F12A381H &
1 January 2022 20221 A1H 9,618,994,707 10,911,163
Shares repurchased (note (a)) Fir & B 3% 1 (BT 7% (a)) (65,000,000) =
At 31 December 2022 2022412 A31A 9,553,994,707 10,911,163

(@)

During the year ended 31 December 2022, the Company bought back and
cancelled a total of 65,000,000 shares at an aggregate consideration (before
expenses) of HK$56.7 million on the Hong Kong Stock Exchange at share
prices ranging from HK$0.80 to HK$0.97. The share repurchase consideration
and the related expenses were charged against retained profits pursuant to
section 257 of Companies Ordinance.

H E2022%12A31B FFE » K
A Al R & A B 2 BT A = 3%0.807% T
F0.97B THIERBER RFHE X
65,000,0000% f% 1 + 42 X {8 A56.7
BEBT (NBRFEAZA) - RHER
KB XA X B RIE R A& HI 5
2571 B IR B & FIFBR ©
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1. BRERE

31. Share option reserve

The Company adopted the Share Option Scheme on 19 June 2010
(the “Share Option Scheme”). The Share Option Scheme was valid
for a period of 10 years from the date of adoption and has expired
on 19 June 2020. No further share options shall be granted after
it expired, but all granted and outstanding share options remain
exercisable for a period of 10 years after the respective dates of
grant, the provisions of the Share Option Scheme thereof remain in
full force and effect.

The total number of shares which may be issued upon exercise of
all share options to be granted under the Share Option Scheme
must not in aggregate exceed 10% of the shares of the Company
in issue at the date of approval of the Share Option Scheme (i.e.
164,000,000 shares). The maximum number of shares issuable
under share options to each eligible participant in the Share Option
Scheme within any 12-month period is limited to 1% of the shares
of the Company in issue at any time (i.e. 16,400,000 shares). Any
further grant of share options in excess of this limit is subject to
shareholders’ approval in a general meeting.

Share options granted to a director or chief executive of the
Company, or to any of their associates, are subject to approval in
advance by the independent non-executive directors. In addition,
any share options granted to a substantial shareholder or an
independent non-executive director of the Company, or to any of
their associates, in excess of 0.1% of the shares of the Company
in issue at any time or with an aggregate value (based on the price
of the Company’s shares at the date of grant) in excess of HK$5
million, within any 12-month period, are subject to shareholders’
approval in advance in a general meeting.

The offer of a grant of share options may be accepted within
28 days from the date of offer, upon payment of a nominal
consideration of HK$1 in total by the grantee. The exercise period
of the share options granted is determinable by the directors, and
ends on a date which is not later than ten years from the date of
offer of the share options.

The exercise price of share options is determinable by the directors,
but may not be less than the higher of (i) the Stock Exchange
closing price of the Company’s shares on the date of offer of the
share options; and (i) the average Stock Exchange closing price
of the Company’s shares for the five trading days immediately
preceding the date of offer.

KN B FR2010%6 A19H8 £ 44 B i%
HEETE| ([FERRERTE]) - AR
SR B B BARRFH0F B B &K
ZHAIR B 12020566 A 198 F & -
RERETSBRLERE - MR
BEREREARTEERERS B
B B EE10F BRI 174E - B8
BT EMBEXMEE TR R
ER °

BB IR HE T 2118 T IR WO BT /5 BB AR
BETEMBITHRGD RHETESS
MRIBTERERESAER AR RFE
B 1T B% 19 B910% (BN164,000,000/%
) > REM+ =@ B # A Al
BEEREDERESISTHNESR
ARERSHEERITHERRMHEE
TiBR A AN R B AR fa] B fE B 32 17 IR
% #91% (B116,400,0000% % 17 ) °
B L MR & — PR B
AR RAR R RS EHE -

RYARBAIEEREZESTHRAE -
HREEMBHEANBRE 55
EREGEUGFNITESNAE -
ESN - PMEAAT A+ —fE B R AR T
ARAETERRIBILFERTE
FARFEMBREANTAER
B LBBERARRNEMERDE
TR M0 1% EAE (REAR
AREE ARz RENE) BiB5A
BET HARKRRAKE LEEE
BRECRE B ©

REBRENEORHARABR
WAMES TN NAARINEE
REAKIBTREEM AR L
BRENTENHESEE  &E
EEBREZEHERETRTFZ
BALE-

BRENTEERESET  HED
AERRATRSE (A2 ABN
TR RB RS HE 40 B HAFE BeE X P RO U T
B Ri)ERBRONRERENA
Hi AT ALE R 5 B B R AT e T 15 M
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1. ERERE

31. Share option reserve (continued)

The fair values of share options at the date of grant of the options
are calculated using a Binomial Option Pricing Model. The fair value
of the share option is based on the terms and conditions of the
share options upon which the options were granted, share price
at the date of the grant, the historical volatility of the Company’s
shares, the historical dividend vyield and the risk-free interest rate
is referenced to the prevailing interest rate of the Hong Kong
Government Bonds.

Upon completion of the bonus issue on 9 July 2015, the exercise
price and the number of shares to be issued and allotted under the
outstanding share options had been adjusted pursuant to the terms
of the Share Option Scheme in the manner set out below:

Immediately before the completion

of the bonus issue

BRERLBEHNAFEIR =R
AHEEERLUFE -BRENRD
YA R IRIB R T RE I B RSN
- BETEHNKRE ARBEMN
BB ERIE - B ER B WS BN E
REBEME(2ZHEEBNESFNR
IMER)FFESFH -

MR2015F7 A9H ERR AL AR 317 1% -
8 AR 1T RS AR A A 1T (6 (B IR I
FEITREERGHE EREER
REETEIMER AT ¢

Immediately after the completion
of the bonus issue

ZRARBITTARA ZRARBITTAE

Exercise price Number of Adjusted exercise  Adjusted number of

Date of share options granted per share  outstanding options price per share  outstanding options

RTER BRBRTHE

BinERENE S BRITEE RERNHE KRAEGRITHEE BRENSE

24/4/2012 HK$2.48 4,856,448 HK$0.827 14,569,344
20124 R24R 2.48% T 0.827/% T

10/1/2014 HK$3.79 36,959,910 HK$1.264 110,879,730
2014%1A10A 3798 1.2647% 7T

11/6/2015 HK$14.56 4,500,000 HK$4.854 13,500,000
2015E6A11H 14.56/8 7T 4,854} 7T

Share options do not confer rights on the holders to dividends or to
vote at shareholders’ meetings.

No share option was exercised during the year ended 31 December
2022.

1,766,063 share options were exercised during the year ended
31 December 2021, resulting in the issue of 1,766,063 shares for
a total cash consideration of HK$1,681,000. HK$733,000 was
transferred from the share option reserve to the share capital
account upon the exercise of the share options. The weighted
average closing share price immediately before the dates on which
the share options were exercised during the year was HK$1.23 per
share.

BAEYEE TR ABIREE X
RIRRAREG EIREZER -

H E2022F12A31HIEFE » &
1TIE BB AR -

BHE2021F12A31H IEFE -
1,766,063 5 I HEE 1T - B
1,766,063 XD E1T  HERER
¥4 /&1,681,000/% JT ° 733,000/ 7T
A e i & 17 (50 i Pl B A 4 8 1
BERAERE - TR BREREE
TEBHZAMMETEAHNmER
12378 7T ©
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31. Share option reserve (continued)

For the year ended 31 December 2022, GJIHL has recognised an
equity-settled share-based compensation expense of HK$417,000
for the share options under the Share Option Scheme in profit or
loss (2021: HK$1,462,000).

For the year ended 31 December 2022, 316,668 and 3,249,164
share options were lapsed or forfeited (2021: 1,783,337 and
9,981,186 share options were lapsed and forfeited, respectively)
prior to the vesting date as a result of staff resignation.

1. ERERE

HE2022F12HA31HIEFE » B3R
ELHBRIERERBRETEET
MR ENBEEERAESEE
IR 0 72 2L 7 E) %7 B 7 S2417,0000%
7€ (20214F : 1,462,000/ 7T ) °

BH E2022F12A31B IEFE '
RE LB 5 5lHE316,6680 &
3,249,164t ERE R H B B H
AT e A 38 Uk (20214F « H Bl A
1,783,33717 }9,981,1861) i A% #&
KB ERW) o

2022 2021
2022 20216

Weighted Weighted

average average
exercise price Number of  exercise price Number of
HKS$ per share options  HKS$ per share options

MEFHTEE MEFHITEE
FRET BREZE SRBT EREZE
At 1 January M1A1H 1.557 49,762,131 1.544 63,292,717
Forfeited during the year FRRUK 1.492 (3,249,164) 1.593 (9,981,186)
Lapsed during the year FREH 1.450 (316,668) 1.506 (1,783,337)
Exercised during the year FRNTE - - 0.952 (1,766,063)
At 31 December ®12H318 1.562 46,196,299 1.557 49,762,131

At 31 December 2022, the Company had 46,196,299 (2021:
49,762,131) share options outstanding under the Share Option
Scheme, which represents approximately 0.48% (2021: 0.52%)
of the Company’s shares in issue as at 31 December 2022. The
exercise in full of the remaining share options would, under the
present capital structure of the Company, result in the issue
of 46,196,299 additional ordinary shares of the Company and
additional share capital of HK$72,157,000 (before issuance
expenses). The option periods of the share options are from 10
January 2014 to 9 January 2024, from 13 July 2017 to 12 July
2027, from 4 July 2018 to 3 July 2028 and from 11 September
2019 to 10 September 2029.

R2022F12A831H AR AAH
46,196,29917 (20214 : 49,762,131
) B EGEIE THARITHERNE
A& #E - H AR AIR20226F12 5318
B 179 M) £70.48% (20214 :
0.52%) ° RIFEAR QA B ATHE R
B AESBEREZEOE &
B8 I B 1746,196,2990% A8 /A &)
LBAR - LA R EEINRAT72,157,000
B (RIBRETRE) - BRESN
HARE 17 HAF A20144F1 A10H &
20241 H9H « 20177130 &
202747 H12H 201857 H4B &
202847 A3H K2019F9A11H &
202949 H10H -
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32. Share award reserve

32. R RBE R

On 27 October 2011, the Company adopted the share award
scheme (the “Share Award Scheme”) under which shares of the
Company (the “Awarded Shares”) may be awarded to selected
employees (including directors) of any members of the Group
(the “Selected Employees”) pursuant to the terms of the scheme
rules and trust deed of the Share Award Scheme. The share
award scheme became effective on the adoption date and, unless
otherwise terminated or amended, will remain in force for 10 years
from that date, i.e., 26 October 2021.

The aggregate number of the Awarded Shares permitted to be
awarded under the Share Award Scheme throughout the duration
of the Share Award Scheme is limited to 10% of the issued share
capital of the Company as at the adoption date (i.e. 164,000,000
shares). The maximum number of the Awarded Shares which may
be awarded to a Selected Employee in any 12-month period up to
and including the date of award shall not in aggregate exceed 1%
of the issued share capital of the Company as at the adoption date
(i.e. 16,400,000 shares).

When a Selected Employee has satisfied all vesting conditions,
which might include service and/or performance conditions,
specified by the board of directors of the Company at the time
of making the award and become entitled to the shares of the
Company forming the subject of the award, the trustee shall
transfer the relevant Awarded Shares to that employee at no cost.

The voting rights and powers of any shares held under the Share
Award Scheme shall be exercised by the independent trustee who
shall abstain from voting.

The Share Award Scheme ceased to be in force on 26 October
2021. As a result, there has been no Awarded Shares, share held
under the Share Award Scheme and share-based compensation
expense since that date.

R2011F10H27H » KA A &K 4
B 1n SE BT & (AR 1D 22 B AT &) -
Bk AQERRD (BB 1) 7]
BRIty B2 B 5T 8 AV 5T B R A R A5
AELBHRABETEAEBEEANKE R
AMEEREE (BRES) ([EEE
8]) - Rty SRENFT S AR B B AE
W BRIESITRIESNIERT - TS
B A8 e+F (A E2021410H
268B) B °

P& An S Eh =t 21 B R A B (D 22 B &t
218 TR ER HEE RGBT
BHRBAARNREMBEBHEEHTR
ZRE)10% (BN164,000,0000% A (7 ) °
MEREERINEERRGZSH
BREEEZRERMZB (B251EH)
IEEE+ =@ B 84 X 5B
AARRERA B BB BTRAR1%
(EN16,400,0008% 8% 15 ) -

MEEREENEARAESTSINE
A B 22 B B DI B B 2 BE 5 B AR A
(P e ERBFHRHXK
B M) - B EERAREER A
ARARD  ZEABEBERAZS
EEEZEHERKD -

B X FEABRITER D RE) A S
TE MR A W EA B ) IR R e A
h EBIXFTABRERE -

A1 22 B 5T 21 702021410 A 26 H &
IEAER - AL - B B RIEZER
& - RIEAR (D B ET B35 8 M AR
H R AERO MRS -



228 Guotai Junan International | Annual Report 2022

Notes to Financial Statements

Bt 5 ¥R 3R B &

31 December 2022
2022412 A31H

32. Share award reserve (continued)

Movements of shares held under the Share Award Scheme during
the year ended 31 December 2021 are as follows:

2. R ERHE

HE2021F12A31B ILEE - KD
BEIETEIE TH A /R DA EE)
™

Number
HK$’000 of shares
F%B T BREZHE

At 1 January ®1A1H 30,672 18,487,400
Vested and transferred out during the year REANFBREL (16,879) (9,856,000)
Disposed during the year REALE (13,793) (8,631,400)
At 31 December M®12H31H = -

33. Reserve

The amounts of the Group’s reserves and the movements therein
are presented in the consolidated statement of changes in equity.

Other reserve of the Group as at 31 December 2022 and 2021
represents a merger reserve, being the difference between the
issued share capital of HK$31,980,000 of Guotai Junan (Hong
Kong) Limited and the amount of share capital and share premium
of HK$1,268,440,000 of the Company transferred and issued to
GJHL in exchange for the entire issued share capital of Guotai
Junan (Hong Kong) Limited on 14 June 2010.

As at 31 December 2022, investment revaluation reserve comprises
the cumulative net change in the fair value of equity investments
(2021: debt investments) designated at FVOCI under HKFRS 9.

34. Capital commitments and other commitments

Capital commitments

The Group had capital commitments for system upgrade and
renovation of premises of approximately HK$9,798,000 which were
contracted but not provided for as at 31 December 2022 (2021:
HK$16,034,000).

Other commitments

The Group undertakes underwriting obligations on placing, IPO,
takeover and merger activities and financial obligations to loan
facilities granted to customers. As at 31 December 2022, the
underwriting obligation was approximately HK$1,755 million (2021:
HK$145 million).

33.

34.

it

AEENFEEBEMEZINES
BEEHRANER -

o>

20224 K2021F12A31H » A&
EEMHEE RS FHEE BIR2010
F6R14H - BEHREL (EH) R
A A HY B 3 17 BL 231,980,000/% 7T
EAARMERE LIENREE R
TR A K B 15 m (B /9 (LA BU B 2=
B (BB)ARARMNEIE 2T
BE 7R) 4 %81,268,440,0005 7T 2 &
HyZ=%8 o

R2022F12A8318 » B E B HEE
BIERES SIS HRE ER Fo5%
EEBERAFEFAREMEA RS
B A% A% & (20214F - BERHRE) A
FERNRTEEFE-

BEXEERHEMAR

EAREE

AEBRARRZGRWEREES
B AR AHE 499,798,000/ 7T * 7% 7K B
B AB I R KR20226F12 A318 F
VAR5 (20214F : 16,034,000/ 7T) °

H & i

AEEARE BAAAEE WK
ERAMESIRMAEASEN AR
FTEFHNERBERBERE A -
A2022F12 8318 » A AL A
1,7558 & 8 7T (20214 : 1458 &
WBIT) ©
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35. Directors’, chairman’s and chief executive’s
emoluments

(a) Directors’, chairman’s and chief executive’s

B.EE - ETERITHER

current emoluments
The current emoluments of every director of the Company
paid/payable by the Group for the years ended 31 December
2022 and 2021 are set out below:

Year ended 31 December 2022

[

(@ EE TFERITHREAR
RS
N & B A £20224F K20214F
12A31B L FEEN B
AARBSEZRENHEH
SR CNE

HZE2022512831HLLFE

Employer’s
contribution
Directors’ Salaries and Discretionary  to pension
fees  allowances bonuses* scheme Total
Ex
mERE
ESHe HeRER A A AR @zt
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
Name of director - TER TR TR TER TR
Executive directors: HiTEZE:
Yim Fung (note (i) & (Fi3E() - 4,320 3,732 141 8,193
Wong Tung Ching (note (ii) F L5 (FitzE(i) - - - - -
Qi Haiying (note (v)) B (P () - 4,027 3,342 141 7,510
Li Guangjie (note (i) 878 (Bt aE(i) - - - - -
Non-executive directors: HHGTEE
Liu Yiyong (note (i) 2% B (Pt (i) - - - - -
Xie Lebin (note (i) EESGEAT) - - - - -
Yu Jian (note (i) T f2 (P (v) - - - - -
Hu Xupeng (note (iv)) tAB e (FizE(v) - - - - -
Yu Xuping (note (iv)) B (FizE(v) - - - - -
Independent non-executive BUHHTEE :
directors:
Fu Tingmei BEX 550 - - - 550
Song Ming (note (vii) R B (Pt (vii)) 228 - - - 228
Tsang Yiu Keung TR 550 - - - 550
Chan Ka Keung Ceajer Bx %R 550 - - - 550
1,878 8,347 7,074 282 17,581
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35. Directors’, chairman’s and chief executive’s
emoluments (continued)

(a) Directors’, chairman’s and chief executive’s
current emoluments (continued)
Year ended 31 December 2021

B.EE - ETERITHER

< =)

(a) S TERTHAR
RiEME 2
BZ2021F12A31BLEE

Employer’s
contribution
Directors’  Salaries and  Discretionary to pension
fees allowances bonuses* scheme Total
Bx
RRKE
BEEHE  HelEl B s HE o
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
Name of director EEHL TET TR FAT TR FAT
Executive directors: HITEE
Yim Fung (note (i) A& () = 3,755 7,324 14 11,093
Wong Tung Ching (note (i) ~ E&& (FizE(i) - 3,528 2,732 18 6,278
Qi Haiying (note (v)) B (P () - 3,482 5,956 14 9,452
Li Guangjie (note (i) 7 (Bt 2 Gi)) - 3,420 2,788 18 6,226
Non-executive directors: HHTEE
Liu Yiyong (note (ii)) EEEIGR) - - - - -
Xie Lebin (note (ii) EESeACIR) - - - - -
Yu Jian (note (v)) i 2 (B 3 (v)) - - - - -
Hu Xupeng (note (i) B (B 7 (v) - - - - -
Yu Xuping (note (iv)) BB F (Kt E(v) - - - - -
Independent non-executive BUFHITEE:
directors:
Fu Tingmei EEE 550 - - = 550
Song Ming (note (vii) 7 8 (B3 (vii) 550 - - - 550
Tsang Yiu Keung 1B 550 - - - 550
Chan Ka Keung Ceajer e 550 - - - 550
2,200 14,185 18,800 64 35,249

There was no arrangement under which a director or the chief
executive waived or agreed to waive any remuneration during
the year.

This amount is the discretionary bonus for immediate distribution of
directors’ service in the corresponding year, and the deferred bonus will
be disclosed in the annual report corresponding to the year in which the
payment is made (after the Company’s established conditions are met).

FRAYBESERETETHA
B W %R B RE T A
B2 B

HeBEANRBEREEEF
RGO EBIEL  RLETEA
BN Gh B AN A R BEE &
&) MFEEE B FHRPE
= o
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35. Directors’, chairman’s and chief executive’s
emoluments (continued)

(b) Directors’, chairman’s and chief executive’s
deferred emoluments

In prior years, certain directors were granted share options,
in respect of their services to the Group, under the share
option scheme of the Company, further details of which are
set out in note 31 to the financial statements. The fair value
of such options, which has been recognised in the statement
of profit or loss and other comprehensive income over the
vesting period, was determined as at the date of grant
and the amount included in the financial statements for the
current year is included in the following directors’ and chief
executive’s remuneration disclosures.

Certain directors were granted share awards under the share
award scheme of the Company, further details of which are
set out in note 32 to the financial statements. The amount of
share-based compensation expense illustrated in the below
table represents amortisation to profit or loss of the fair value
of these share options and awarded shares granted to the
directors measured at the respective grant dates.

B.EE FTFERTHEAR
[ EAC D)

(b) EF - EERTHRAR

RBEFE ETEENAR
AREREFEBETHRERR
£ B R 4 A0 AR 55 T 2B X B R
B E—THBERTBRE
731 - BRAB IR EN A F
EEREBHFENERD ME
fezEEmRPER) TRE
B HEE - Mt ARFEER
BREANEBEIATXE
EREBITRABHMBES

ETEERARARD EE
AHER T ERBR D A
—THBERMBRENE
82 FTRATMLAMR D R
MFEMRXcBARTES
MERELEZERRODZEHW
REOBHFENQFERE
HPNEHEHE -
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35. Directors’, chairman’s and chief executive’s 35. B%E - T ERTHAR

emoluments (continued) £ )
(b) Directors’, chairman’s and chief executive’s b) EEZ EFERITHAR
deferred emoluments (continued) EEME =)
Year ended 31 December 2022 B Z2022F12A31HILFE
Share-based compensation reserve Cash-based compensation
MR A BT 5 MR UREAEBEHRER
Share option scheme Share award scheme Deferred cash bonuses
BRETE IR 4 % Bt & BEEREEA

Deferred

Share option Share award cash bonus

Date of expense Date of expense Date of Vesting expense

grant (note 31) grant (note 32) grant dates (note (vi))

BERE

RREM X R ZBHEX HABX

RHAH (MzE31) RHAH (HzE32) BHAH HERH (CE)

HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000

Name of director BSpg TEL TET TAT

Executive directors: HIiTEE

Yim Fung (note () & (F3E() 11/9/2019 40 - 3/4/2020  30/11/2021 1,339
71412021 30/11/2021 1,741

Wong Tung Ching (note i) E£7 (FE(i) - - -
Qi Halying (note (v)) BGR (HV) 11/9/2019 40 - 3/4/2020  30/11/2021 1,008
7/4/2021 30/11/2021 1,209

Li Guangjie (note (i) A (=) - - -

Non-executive directors: HFHTEE -

Liu Yiyong (note (i) 2= 8 (W ki) - - -
Xie Lebin (note (ii)) A, (B = i) - - -
Yu Jian (note (iv) T (B =E(v) - - -
Hu Xupeng (note (iv) AR 1E (R (v) - - -
Yu Xuping (note (i) BT (i wE() - - -
Independent non-executive BV HHTEE -
directors:

Fu Tingmei BEX - - -
Song Ming (note (vi) RE (FzE (i) - - -
Tsang Yiu Keung LEn - - -
Chan Ka Keung Ceajer L - - -
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35. Directors’, chairman’s and chief executive’s 35. B%E - T ERTHAR

emoluments (continued) B =)
(b) Directors’, chairman’s and chief executive’s b) EE EFERITHAR
deferred emoluments (continued) EEME 2
Year ended 31 December 2021 BZ2021F12A31HILFE
Share-based compensation reserve Cash-based compensation
SRR RE RS MG e REREMER
Share option scheme Share award scheme Deferred cash bonuses
BkiEatal BB E BER A
Share option Share award Deferred
Date of expense Date of expense Date of Vesting cash bonus
grant (note 31) grant (note 32) grant dates expense
BRERX TR 13 B BIERE
il =p (MzE31) il =k (M7E32) REAH GERS TR
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
Name of director RS FAT TFisT THT
Executive directors: HITEE:
Yim Fung (note (i) i (fisk() 4/7/2018 19 -
11/9/2019 17 16/4/2019 -
Wong Tung Ching (note i) E& % (HE(i) 4/7/2018 19 -
11/9/2019 17 16/4/2019 152
Qi Halying (note(v)) B (M) 4/7/2018 19 -
11/9/2019 17 16/4/2019 267
Li Guangjie (note (i) ZHA (K 2Ei) 4/7/2018 19 -
11/9/2019 17 16/4/2019 173
Non-executive directors: FHTEE
Liu Yiyong (note (i) B3 (&) - - -
Xie Lebin (note (i) EiESEAC (1) = = =
Yu Jian (note (iv)) T2 (B (v) - = =
Hu Xupeng (note (iv) EAGE) - - -
Yu Xuping (note (iv) B () - - =
Independent non-executive B HHTEE -
directors:
Fu Tingmei BEX - - =
Song Ming (note (vii) R (B = (vi) = = -
Tsang Yiu Keung LiEn - - -
Chan Ka Keung Ceajer RR# - - =
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35. Directors’, chairman’s and chief executive’s
emoluments (continued)

(b) Directors’, chairman’s and chief executive’s
deferred emoluments (continued)
Year ended 31 December 2021 (continued)

Note (i):

Note (ii):

Note (iii):

Note (iv):

Note (v):

Note (vi):

Note (vii):

Dr. Yim Fung is the executive director and chairman of the
Company.

Mr. Wong Tung Ching and Mr. Li Guangjie resigned as executive

director with effective from 14 December 2021.

Mr. Xie Lebin and Mr. Liu Yiyong resigned as non-executive director
with effective from 14 December 2021.

Mr. Yu Jian, Dr. Hu Xupeng and Ms. Yu Xuping was appointed as
non-executive director with effective from 14 December 2021.

Ms QI Haiying is the executive director and chief executive officer of
the Company.

The deferred cash bonus was paid after the completion of

evaluation of the 2019 and 2020 performance of the executive
directors in year 2022.

Dr. Song Ming retired as a director on 31 May 2022.

The directors remunerations included share-based
compensation and share award expenses of approximately
HK$80,000 (2021: HK$544,000) attributable to share options
granted and of HK$nil (2021: HK$592,000) attributable to
share awards granted by Company, part of which was in
respect of their services to the Company.

B.EE FERTHEAR
[ EAC D)

b) EE EFERITHAR
ELEME @)
H £2021F12A31B L EE
(%)

M) MBELARATHG
EEREE -

Waki): ELBFBEERTHEN
EEBERTES B
202112 514 B AR ©

MigEGi): HEEBERBRNBE
ABTERTES A
2021512 514 B AR -

MizE(v) : MifE e 4 - dHB IS &
FEBFEFZLEZT A
FEBMITES - 520215
12A14B#BEM -

MiFE(v) : MBREZL /AR FH
TESFRTBAEH -

MEaE(vi) 52 AK20194F 20204 #
TESRENTHE
R2022F ZHIE TR &
TE4T -

B FE(vil) © R 818 = 720225 A
S1HREES -

ERFMEEAR R A ERE
FEAE LA BR D 5 E 1 6 3 B & AR 1D
#% @ B % #980,0007% 7T (20214 :
544,000/ 70) &% 0 AR (D 12 B fE
HZHE T (20214 : 592,000/ 7T) °
Hp o hpEEm AR RERN
BR 75 i 2 A5 o



BREZERE | 202263 235

Notes to Financial Statements

Bt 5 ¥R 3R B &

31 December 2022
2022412 A31H

36. Notes to the consolidated statement of 36. 2B HKRE XK

cash flows
(a) Cash flows from operating activities (a) REZBHEENRER
%
2022 2021
20224 20214
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FE T
Cash flows from operating activities RETHEENEERE
Profit before tax B 75 Al g A 26,657 1,287,646
Adjustments for: KRR
Depreciation e 78,077 78,639
Share-based compensation expense LARR 15 7 E5 1 19 357 B 5 =2 417 7,776
Vesting of shares for the share award i fn L2 BT 21 55 B AR 0
scheme - (6,004)
Unrealised loss on financial instruments & A FEFF A BRI 2K
measured at fair value through profit TRMITAERERERE
and loss 56,174 2,893,978
Unrealised gain on debt securities in ERTEBESAE
issue g &= (1,370,616) (1,844,523)
Unrealised loss/(gain) on derivative TESRT ARESEERE
financial instruments /(U zs) 411,121 (110,595)
Finance cost A& A 676,664 774,863
Interest income B U A (1,118,097) (1,372,054)
Dividend income iz B A (43,775) (75,730)
Effect of impairment provision on loans % T EFER R & K E1E
and advances to customers, net BB & )55 162,692 198,296
Effect of impairment provision on EURIEBERESE
accounts receivable, net A 8,132 17,462
Effect of impairment provision on client B FE{E:LR{TABIME
trust bank balance, net BT EFH (4,877) (2,744)
Effect of impairment provision on other L 4th & U 7% 18 il {8 B
receivables, net 2R (18) 326
Effect of impairment provision on F= 10 [B] B8 143 5% B W 50 18
receivable from reverse repurchase REREEER
agreements, net (120) (3,144)
Effect of impairment provision on bank RITFERBERETE
deposits, net R 135 191
Effect of impairment provision on BAFEGFAEMEE
financial assets at fair value through W& B & ERE
other comprehensive income BiEvE (11,975) 10,210

(1,129,409) 1,854,593
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36. Notes to the consolidated statement of
cash flows (continued)

36. mEBRERERMT @

(a) Cash flows from operating activities

() REEFHELANEER

(continued) B &)
2022 2021
202245 20214
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FE T
Decrease/(increase) in other assets Hip&ERD / (E) 14,279 (16,346)
(Increase)/decrease in financial assets at & A FEF AEZHN S R
fair value through profit or loss BEGEMm R (3,641,325) 13,551,271
(Increase)/decrease in derivative financial #T4 4 & T B (340) k4
instruments (900,148) 423,251
Decrease/(increase) in loans and BTEPHERKREK
advances to customers A (3 n) 9,808,721 (256,765)
Decrease/(increase) in accounts FE W R IBR A (38 n)
receivable 910,163 (938,345)
Decrease/(increase) in receivable from [ 17 [B1 & 177 =2 & W R 0E
reverse repurchase agreements B (B An) 3,857,004 (1,417,785)
Decrease in obligations under 5] B 17 i MO B TR R
repurchase agreements (1,560,650) (8,140,440)
(Increase)/decrease in prepayments, TENFIE -~ e MEME
deposits and other receivables Weskg () R (94,655) 24,710
(Decrease)/increase in financial liabilities at &2 A FEF AEZH £ &l
fair value through profit or loss aECmd) HEm (6,103,295) 2,342,064
Decrease in client trust bank balances B PR iR 1T R1E 4,462,697 904,929
(Increase)/decrease in time deposits ERFEROEM) R (96,138) 127,565
Decrease in accounts payable & A5 BR TR DR (3,860,838) (2,196,066)
Decrease in other payables and accrued = fth & {5 7008 & B 51 & (&
liabilities 7 (118,162) (203,309)
(Increase)/decrease in financial assets at &2 A F{ET A H 2wk
fair value through other comprehensive  Fy& gl & &= (3 H0) /4
income (64,851) 92,143
Cash generated from operations REXBHFREE 1,483,393 6,151,470
Hong Kong profits tax paid BEREEFEM (378,774) (51,378)
Interest received 21 F B 1,101,329 571,580
Interest paid B E (586,502) (868,746)
Dividend received 2R S 43,775 76,126
Net cash flows from operating activiies  &Z EEISHESTEF5HE 1,663,221 5,879,052
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36. Notes to the consolidated statement of
cash flows (continued)

36. %Aiﬁﬁumiﬁﬁﬂ‘%}(@

(b) Changes in liabilities arising from financing (b) MEETHEELENERERSE
activities B
Debt
Bank Lease securities
borrowings liabilities in issue
RITER HEEE BSRTEERS
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
FHET FET TERT
At 1 January 2021 R2021%F1 818 9,715,836 23,561 47,919,872
Changes from financing cash B&ER & REE
flows (4,414,153) (31,656) (811,322)
Foreign exchange movement, 4 E & 8% 58
net 5,656 2,259 227,756
Interest expense FMEREZ 109,649 1,292 355,507
Additions NE - 72,408 -
Interest paid classified as NERKERSREN
operating cash flows B F B (113,754) - (475,647)
Decrease in interest payable &~ Fl| 28 2> 4,105 - 120,140
Unrealised gain on debt BETEREF
securities in issue R EBIE W s - - (1,844,523)
5,307,339 67,864 45,491,783
At 1 January 2022 202241 A1H 5,307,339 67,864 45,491,783
Changes from financing cash BEREREEH)
flows 4,042,548 (28,661)  (2,430,023)
Foreign exchange movement, 4 FE & 8% 58
net (44,113) (153) (202,876)
Interest expense FMERXZ 135,086 1,359 242,376
Additions NE - 2,823 -
Interest paid classified as PEREEREREN
operating cash flows B 7 B (110,482) - (218,124)
Increase in interest payable &1 F 83 0 (24,603) - (24,252)
Unrealised gain on debt BEEITEBRZES
securities in issue RER W - - (1,370,616)
9,305,775 43,232 41,488,268
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36. Notes to the consolidated statement of
cash flows (continued)

(c) Major non-cash transactions
During the year, the Group had non-cash additions to right
of-use assets and lease liabilities of HK$2,699,000 (2021:
HK$74,599,000) and HK$2,823,000 (2021: HK$72,408,000),
respectively, in respect of lease arrangements for property,
plant and equipment.

37. Unconsolidated structured entity

A structured entity is an entity in which voting rights are not the
dominant factor in deciding control. Structured entity is generally
created to achieve a narrow and well defined objective with
restrictions around their ongoing activities.

Depending on the Group’s power over the activities of the entity
and its exposure to and the ability to influence its own returns, it
may consolidate the entity. In other cases, it may sponsor or have
an interest in such an entity but does not consolidate it. The Group
sponsors an entity when:

(i) It is the majority user of the entity;

(i) Its name appears in the name of the entity or on the products
issued by the entity;

(i) It provides implicit or explicit guarantees of the entity’s
performance; and

(iv) It led the formation of the entity.

The unconsolidated structured entities invest in a range of asset
classes. The Group receives income from these unconsolidated
structured entities through the receipt of arrangement fees and
interest income from interest bearing notes issued by these entities.
As of 31 December 2022, the Group held notes of HK$2,359 million
(2021: HK$2,519 million), under financial assets held for trading and
investments (note 20), issued by these entities.

36.

37.

GERERERMT @

(c) XEFREXRS

RERN - AEBRYE - HE
HEHEHERHED B AR

CAEFRAEEERTEESR

F2,699,000/% T (20214 :

74,599,0007% 7t) }2,823,000

7 7T (20214 : 72,408,000/

JL) °©

AR BHER

HRREEEBARERL IFREEH
BONTERZNER -EHBEER
BESERERMAENERM

% HBECEEDTIRY -

BIEAEEHERESHNEN M
XEBOHNTEREEREATE
B EREBE NN E - B A BEH
HAaAk -EHEMBERT  H
EPERIANERTHAREZ B
THEBEE AR TIBREAR
SEEYN-—HERE:

/)

T e i

3| mi O

(i) EEWMEREZERNEE
KR EBEITHEML :

iy HAZEEWMEGERHRES

(iv) EZETEKIZER -

RZEREBEERRENRSZBEE
Al - AEEBBEZRSERELT
et B R BT S A KA B
AMBZERGEE GEE T BUE
WA o & E£2022F 128318 + A&
EERFEEEREESMEE (F
H20) B TR AEZREERBITNE
#%2,3598 &8 7t (20214 : 2,519
BEBIT) °



BEREZERE | 202263 239

i
Notes to Financial Statements
B 7% 3R 3= MY =%
31 December 2022
2022412 A31H
37. Unconsolidated structured entity (continueq) 7. KA ZEHEBUHEE »
Income from the sponsored structured entities and assets REXEPHNEBEETENKRA KR
transferred to the structured entities are as follow: EETLEBUEEREMNEENOT ¢
2022 2021
20225 20215
Interest Commission Assets Interest Commission Assets
Income and fees transferred Income and fees transferred
FISHA HERER BEEEE LN RekER BEREE
HKS$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TEL FET FET FBIL TBL TATL
Assets securitisations BEFHEL 29,248 14,695 - 290,768 42,439 =
38. Five highest paid individuals 3. Afu =S HF M A L
Excluding amounts paid or payable by way of commission of sales BRLUABAATEENEERESHN A
generated by the individuals, the five highest paid employees ANY K EMNBIRIBIN  ERNFAAL
during the year included two (2021: two) directors, details of S5 EE BEMAB (20214F -
whose remuneration are set out in note 35 above. Details of the MB)ES HEMAFBEIH N L
remuneration of the remaining three (2021: three) non-director and MizX35 c ERNH =% (20214
highest paid employees for the year are as follows: SR EEENE S TNEENH
BB -
2022 2021
20224 20214
HK$’000 HK$’000
THET FAIT
Salaries and allowances e KOEB 9,960 7,893
Discretionary bonuses [SEERCEAN 12,020 12,249
Employer’s contribution to pension scheme & & AR K & 51 21t 3% 54 44
Sub-total NEF 22,034 20,186
Share-based compensation reserve VAR 19 7 EE 1t 55 Bl =6 4
— Share option expense —ElRERX 38 181
— Share award expense — B REFAX - 927

Total BEt 22,072 21,294
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38. AlVBEESHFMA L 2
FEE MALXEEESTHIES

38. Five highest paid individuals (continuea)

The number of non-director and highest paid employees of the

Group whose emoluments fell within the following bands is as WABRAMSEELAT :
follows:
2022 2021
2022 20214
Number of Number of
employees employees
BEAHY B8 A
Emolument bands i & &5 &
- HK$6,000,001 to HK$6,500,000 - 6,000,001 7T £6,500,000/% 7T 1 1
- HK$6,500,001 to HK$7,000,000 - 6,500,001 7T 27,000,000/ 7T 1 1
- HK$7,000,001 to HK$7,500,000 - 7,000,001 7T 7,500,000/ 7T - 1
- HK$7,500,001 to HK$8,000,000 - 7,500,001/ 7T 28,000,000/ 7T 1 -
3 3
39. Related party transactions 30. @B ARG
(@ In addition to the transactions and balances set out elsewhere (a BRFBEREXRBITEHINOR

in the financial statements, the Group had the following
material transactions with related parties during the year.

5 RAERIN  AEERFRE
BB T EITATERR S -

2022 2021
20224 20214
Notes HK$’000 HK$'000
B 5 FHET T4
Commission expenses to the ST &AEER AR
ultimate holding company ikl () (844) (1,570)
Professional and consultancy fees 5 F [F Z [ B A &1 #)
paid to fellow subsidiaries EEXLFBRE (ii) (47,700) (64,599)
Information technology logistic
consultancy fees paid to ultimate S F&&IZER A AH
holding company EERMYRZANE (iif) (1,100) -
Consultancy services income
received from ultimate holding B & 442 KA =) UELHY
company AR R AU (iv) 389 =
Commission income of a public
fund managed by a fellow BEMNBAAEEN
subsidiary REESHAS KA (v) - 25
Commission & handling income
from an immediate holding B HEERA U EAY
company BehFEEKRA (vi) 10 5
Commission and handling income
from the ultimate holding B s &R A m WA AY
company e RkFEERA (vii) 67 143
Underwriting fee and sponsor fee
income from the ultimate B AR A 7 WA Y
holding company BHEBREHERA (viii) - 793
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39. Related party transactions (continued) 3. @A RS )
(@) (continued) (a (&)
2022 2021
2022 20214
Notes HK$’000 HK$'000
B 5 THET THET
Commission and handling income from & [7] Z [ B 2 7] Y EX AY
fellow subsidiaries HERFEERA (ix) 4,435 1,661
Commission income and handling income B 3 — & Z 4B 2 7 4 ELHY
from another fellow subsidiary HeRFEBWA (x) 66 570
Consultancy service fee and corporate S fi F &R A 7 K 7] &
finance service fee paid to the ultimate M B R R B ARG E &
holding company and fellow subsidiary 1> % gt & IR 75 & (i) (18,708) (44,678)
Commission income of private funds REMBARAEELEES
managed by a fellow subsidiary A (xii) 707 721
Management fee income from a public ~BHAR A Z2EMHMB A F &R
fund managed by a wholly-owned MEBERARIRER
subsidiary of the Company and AEESRBNERE
invested by an immediate holding WA
company (xiii) - 2,540
Financial services income from a B — R R E A A Y ER
fellow subsidiary B AR YA (xiv) 2,185 =

Notes: B -

(i) The commission expenses to the ultimate holding company were (i) YT FREAERATH
calculated based on the percentage of the transaction value stated in the HEE S BiRBEARD T
Cooperation Agreement signed with a wholly-owned subsidiary of the H—FRE2EMBARZ
Company. 3B & E & 5 B Y A2

SEBDLFE -

(ii) The professional and consultancy fees paid to the fellow subsidiaries (ii) B £2022%12H31H
for the provision of capital market information were charged at ILEE iR EART
HK$47,700,000 for the year ended 31 December 2022 (2021: EEREmMEERZNE A
bt AXNBERBNE

47,700,0007% 7T (2021
F : 64,599,000/ TT) °

(iif) The information technology logistic consultancy fees paid to ultimate
holding company for the provision of information technology logistic (iif) B E2022%12H318 1E
services were charged at HK$1,100,000 for the year ended 31 December FE iR E BRI
2022 (2021: HK$nil). Y 7 BR 75 T [A] B 4% % AR

A A X 8 BT R
7 0 #1,100,0007% 7T
(2021 : BF ) -

(iv) The consultancy services income received from ultimate holding company (iv) B £2022%12831H 1
for the provision of consultancy services was received at HK$389,000 for FE MEEBZHRSE
the year ended 31 December 2022 (2021: HK$nil). B & &R A 7 WER

= AR 75 Uz A.389,0007% 7T
(20214 : THIT) o
(v) The commission income received from the public fund managed by (v) EREE NN =EEE )

the fellow subsidiary was based on the pricing stated in the signed
brokerage agreement with the wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company.

AEESWIHAE I
ARBARNA —RE2E
B B8 2 B 28 LB A8 42 1
AIAMTEEKRE -
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39. Related party transactions (continued)

(@  (continued)

Notes: (continued)

(vi)

(i

(i)

(ix)

(xi)

(xil)

(il

(xiv)

(xv)

The commission and handling income received from the immediate
holding company was based on the pricing stated in the signed
brokerage agreement with wholly-owned subsidiaries of the Company.

The commission and handling income received from the ultimate holding
company was based on the pricing stated in the signed brokerage
agreement with a wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company.

The underwriting and sponsor fee income received from the ultimate
holding company was based on the underwriting and sponsor agreement
with the ultimate holding company.

The commission and handling income received from fellow subsidiaries
were based on the pricing stated in the signed brokerage agreement
with wholly-owned subsidiaries of the Company.

The commission income and handling income received from another
fellow subsidiary were based on the pricing stated in the signed
brokerage agreement with a wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company.

The consultancy service fee and corporate finance service fee paid
to the ultimate holding company were based on the pricing stated in
consultancy services and corporate finance services agreements with
wholly-owned subsidiaries of the Company.

The commission income received from private funds was based on the
pricing stated in the signed brokerage agreement with wholly-owned
subsidiaries of the Company.

The management fee income received from a public fund managed by
a wholly-owned subsidiary of the Group and invested by the immediate
holding company were charged at percentage stated under respective
management fee agreement.

The financial services income received from a fellow subsidiary were
based on the pricing stated in the signed financial service agreement
with wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company.

Included in the Group’s accounts receivable was a broker receivable
due from the ultimate holding company of HK$88,297,000 (2021:
HK$94,463,000) arising from dealing in securities as at 31 December
2022. The credit terms provided to the ultimate holding company were
consistent with the practice of the securities dealing industry. The
balance was unsecured, interest-free and receivable on the settlement
day under the relevant market practices.
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39. Related party transactions (continued)

(a)

(continued)

Notes: (continued)

(xvi)

(xvii)

(xviii)

(xix)

(xx)

(xxi)

Included in the Group’s accounts payable was a broker payable due
to the ultimate holding company of HK$924,000 (2021: HK$8,013,000)
arising from dealing in securities as at 31 December 2022. The balance
was unsecured, interest-free and payable on the settlement day under
the relevant market practices.

Included in the Group’s prepayments, deposits and other receivables of
HK$59,012,000 (31 December 2021: HK$27,599,000) was an advance
prepayment to the fellow subsidiary for the professional and consultancy
fee mentioned in note (ii) above.

Included in the Group’s accounts payable was an accrual payable due
to the ultimate holding company of HK$1,125,000 (31 December 2021:
HKS$nil) arising from information technology logistic consultancy service
received as at 31 December 2022 mentioned in note (iii) above.

Included in the Group’s accounts receivable were amounts due from
ultimate holding company of HK$397,000 (2021:HK$nil) was accounts
receivable from ultimate holding company for consultancy services
income provided mentioned in the note (iv) above.

Included in the Group’s payables was the accounts payables to clients
in note (vi) above arising from dealing in securities of HK$11,000 (31
December 2021: HKS$ nil). The balances were unsecured, interest-bearing
and payable on demand.

Included in the Group’s accounts payable were amounts due to the
ultimate holding company of HK$96,000 (2021: HK$169,000) mentioned
in note (vii) and the fellow subsidiaries of HK$152,414,000 (2021:
HK$201,853,000) mentioned in note (ix) and another fellow subsidiary
of HK$1,806,000 (2021: HK$145,226,000) mentioned in note (x)
arising from dealing in securities, futures and foreign exchange as at 31
December 2022. The balances were unsecured, interest-bearing and
payable on demand.

0.BEERZ
(@ (&
WisE : (4)

(xvi) AEEZ EMNEREIE
R2022F12A31HE &
Fé) #FEZFEH?W*
“/‘TZ%«%EFEH
924,000/ 7T <2021¢ :
8,013,000/ 7T) ° ﬁﬁ
TS EN  Z4 ﬁ%
BERA - 2B RAR
HERAL -

(xvii) AEBHBENKRE
e Rk HMEKRNKE
59,012,000%75(2021@
12318 : 27,599,000
VS TT) BLIE Bh  STR R (i)
BT it 5 3 K 7% u’@%ﬁﬂ
RWBARBENMNZ KA

(xvii) M2022412H318 » &
SENEMNERSER
b SCH s BT At B W s
E&%ﬁﬂ@iﬁé‘é%@ﬁ&%&
EE’J&‘H?W* & A
JE 5t 381,125, ooo/%yz
(2021%12)%315 =%
JT) °©

(xix) $’§IE’]F5W9§?¢Z B
FE UM B 4R NEIEQE|
397, oooﬁém (2021@-
THEIT) - B XX
(iv) BT 2t 32 1 54 3 R 75 Uk
N R G S NG N )
BR3K ©

(xx) AEBZEMNEREIE
BHEBEELAZREN
XM ENV)R P R R
11,0007 7t (20214F12
B31H : % 1) dig@
AEEA STERA
TREE -

(xxi) MN2022612A31H -
AEEZ ENRERE
REAEEZRSH HER
SN BB EE A 2 Bk M R (vil)
B il FE < S SR IE IR R &)
96,0007 7t (20214 :
169,000/ 7t) ~ Bt Mf &
(ix) By 2 J& 1+ B R K B
A Al152,414,000/%8 T
(20214 : 201,853,000
7 70) K gk MY SE(x) BT
ERNE—ERRKEQ
7]1,806,00078 7T (2021
£ 1 145,226,000/ 7T) ©
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39. Related party transactions (continued)

(a)

(continued)
Notes: (continued)

(xxii) Included in the Group’s accounts payable were the accounts payable to
the ultimate holding company mentioned in note (xi) for the consulting
service fee and corporate finance service fee of HK$7,750,000 (2021:
HK$28,646,000) as at 31 December 2022.

(xxiii) Included in the Group’s accounts payable was accounts payable to
private funds of HK$10,025,000 (2021: HK$489,000) arising from
dealing in securities mentioned in note (xii) as at 31 December 2022. The
balance was unsecured, interest-bearing and payable on the settlement
day under the relevant market practices.

(xxiv) Included in the Group’s accounts receivable were accounts receivable
from fellow subsidiary of HK$2,319,000 (2021:HK$nil) arising from the
financial services provided mentioned in the note (xiv) above.

The Group’s ultimate holding company, Guotai Junan, is
subject to the control of the PRC Government which also
controls a significant portion of assets and entities in the
PRC (collectively referred to as “state-owned enterprises”).
Therefore, transactions with state-owned enterprises are
regarded as related party transactions.

Majority of the bank borrowings and deposits of the Group
were entered into with state-owned banks. In addition, the
Group enters into transactions with state-owned enterprises
that relate to the Group’s normal business activities, including
but not limited to brokerage services, corporate finance
business, asset management business, loan and financing
business and investment holding and market making business.
These transactions are entered into in the ordinary course of
business at an arm’s length and under the normal commercial
terms and conditions as to those that would have been
entered into with non-state-owned enterprises, which were
not considered as individually significant in accordance with
HKAS 24.

The related party transactions in respect of items (i) to (ix) and
(xi) to(xii) also constitute continuing connected transactions to
be disclosed in the annual report as defined in Chapter 14A of
the Listing Rules.

Details of the remuneration of the key management personnel
of the Group are disclosed in note 35 to the financial
statements.
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7,750,000/ 7T (2021
£ : 28,646,000/ 7T) °

(xxiii) R2022%12H31H8 * &K
SENEMNKRIBBER
B ﬁ(xn)ﬁﬁkl%ﬁ?‘j’“”
EEXENMALAZESRE
10,025,000 7T (2021
& 489,000/ 7T) ° &
MRAEEKR FERR
1% 6 B8 T 45 1B B R 4 1
Ao

7N &= B &9 FE UK AR 3K

B _E ST FE(xiv) BT
&
NI
(2

(xxiv) &
b
W
18
21

HemikHE
LGN
2,319,000/ 7T
F L) °

oi#gf%@

REBRRKERERRQ AR
BRSBTS - A
BRAT 75 4258 ) AR B B A A K D
DEELNEERE (HGEAEIEA
] - Bt EEAEER
RGAHERBBEE XS o

REBAIEDRTEREE
KIPE B G IRITEIL © B
REFEEEFAEETHRASE
BEHEEHEBEENRS -
BIEETRRELRT ﬁ%
BEXE BEEEER B
RNEMEER  KEE Hx&ﬁﬁl
ME®R - ZERHIIRBEE
BBREPAFHIZEIEFEAF
TEETHRZEUNESR
7 SR M AR 1T - IR AR
BB ERIF245% 8 B
HRAEEREARNR

E SCE () E (ix) B (xi) Z (xii) 1B #Y
BA B 5 R 5 TN K A IR R
BRI BEAERS (EER
EWHAFEFHAE) o

AEBETEEEABFHMF
B 5 ¥R R M T35 EE -



BEREZERE | 20223 245

Notes to Financial Statements

Bt 5 ¥R 3R B &

31 December 2022
2022412 A31H

40. < @ ba B

40. Financial risk management

The Group’s activities mainly expose to financial risks such as
credit risk, market risk and liquidity risk. The Group’s overall risk
management framework focuses on the analysis, evaluation,
acceptance and monitoring of these risks which are inevitable
consequences of being in business. The Group’s aim is therefore
to achieve an appropriate balance between risk and return and
minimise any potential adverse effect on the Group’s financial
performance.

The Group’s risk management policies are approved by the board
of directors and are designed to identify and analyse these risks, to
set appropriate risk limits and controls and to monitor the risks and
adherence to limits by means of reliable and up-to-date information.
The board of directors provides written principles for overall risk
management. The Group regularly reviews its risk management
policies to reflect any change in the market and clients.

The main financial risks arising from the Group’s financial
instruments are credit risk, market risk and liquidity risk. The
policies for managing each of these risks are summarised below:

Credit risk

Credit exposures arise principally from loans and advances to
customers, accounts receivable, debt securities, bank balances and
client trust bank balances which are included in the Group’s asset
portfolio.

Credit risk limit control and mitigation policies

The board of directors delegates to the management committees
the duties to monitor the credit risk of the Group. Members
of the management committees include, inter alia, the chief
executive officer, the chief financial officer, the chief risk officer,
responsible officers and the head of related control departments.
The management committees are mainly responsible for the
development of financing business and approval of major credit
exposure and the risk management committee to provide
independent supervision of all credit risk metrics and limits.

The risk management department and business department are
responsible for approval, monitoring and review of the Group’s
credit risk of financing clients. They are also responsible for making
settlement calls when the trades of financing clients exceed
their respective limits. Failure to meet margin calls may result
in liquidation of the client’s position. The credit limit and margin
limit for each client and the lending ratio of securities acceptable
as collateral prepared by business department and approved by
risk management department, the significant transaction will be
approved by the management committees.
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40. EFRE R EE 2

40. Financial risk management (continued)

Credit risk (continued)
Credit risk limit control and mitigation policies (continued)

Loans and advances to customers including IPO loans for
subscription of new shares are normally settled within 1 week from
the drawdown date. Forced liquidation action would be taken if
the customers fail to settle their shortfall within a specific period of
tolerance after the IPO allotment result is announced.

For debt securities, external rating such as Standard & Poor’s
and Moody’s ratings or their equivalents are used by the risk
management department for managing credit risk exposures as
supplemented by the Group’s own credit assessment.

The Group’s bank balances are deposited in respectable and
large commercial banks. For the client trust bank balances which
are held in segregated accounts, they are deposited in authorised
financial institutions in Hong Kong. The credit risk of bank balances
and client trust bank balances is considered insignificant.

Accounts receivable from clients represent receivables from clients
arising from dealing in securities, which normally had a delivery-
against payment settlement term of 1 to 3 days. The Group allows
credit up to the settlement dates of the respective securities
transactions (normally from T+1 to T+3 days). All applications for
credit limits must be reviewed by the credit manager and approved
by risk management department or the management committees.
The risk management department and business department
determines whether a forced liquidation action is to be taken
against clients with overdue balances on a case-by-case basis. The
management committees regularly reviews the overdue balances.

The Group only accepts margin deposits in the form of cash for
futures, options and leveraged foreign exchange dealing and
broking. No unauthorised transaction is allowed to be executed
if the current position of the customer exceeds its trading limit.
The margin deposit placed and the aggregate of the required
margin deposits of each futures, options and leveraged foreign
exchange contract are timely monitored by both the dealers and
the risk management department. Margin calls will be executed
by the on-site duty staff for futures, options and leveraged foreign
exchange brokerage business if there is a deficit with the margin
deposit. Forced liquidation of the customer’s position will be
executed if the customer fails to meet the margin calls.
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40. EFRE R EE 2

40. Financial risk management (continued)

Credit risk (continued)
Credit risk limit control and mitigation policies (continued)

Management considers that the credit risk of the Group resulting
from securities, futures, options and leveraged foreign exchange
brokerage business as well as margin and other loan financing is
properly managed within the defined internal control framework.

Accounts receivable from brokers and dealers are placed with large
financial institutions which are governed by regulators. The credit
risk of accounts receivable from brokers and dealers is considered
insignificant.

Ageing of accounts receivable from corporate clients and
investment funds arising from corporate finance, asset management
and investment holding and market making businesses is closely
monitored. There were no significant defaults in the past.

The credit risk of accounts receivable from the Stock Exchange and
other clearing houses is considered to be minimal.

ECL allowance and provisioning policies

The Group’s policy requires the review of individual outstanding
amounts at least monthly or more regularly depending on individual
circumstances or market condition.

The Group has adopted HKFRS 9, where the ECL allowance
requirements under HKFRS 9 are based on an expected credit loss
model. The Group applies simplified approach to measure expected
credit losses (“ECL”) on accounts receivable from corporate
clients, investment funds and others; and general approach to
measure ECL on loans and advances to customers, time deposits
and other financial assets accounted for at amortised cost and
fair value through other comprehensive income as well as loan
commitments. Under the simplified approach, the Group measures
the ECL allowance at an amount equal to lifetime ECL. Under the
general approach, financial assets migrate through the following
three stages based on the change in credit risk since initial
recognition: Stage 1: 12-months ECL, Stage 2: Lifetime ECL — not
credit-impaired and Stage 3: Lifetime ECL — credit-impaired.
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40. Financial risk management (continued)

Credit risk (continued)

Assessment of significant increase in credit risk

When determining whether the risk of default has increased
significantly since initial recognition, the Group considers both
quantitative and qualitative information and analysis based on the
Group’s historical experience and expert credit risk assessment,
including forward-looking information. The loan and advances
use the number of days past due (“DPD”) and loan-to-collateral
value (“LTV”) to determine significant increase in credit risk. For
non-standard financing, internally derived credit ratings have been
identified as representing the best available determinant of credit
risk. Credit risk is deemed to have increased significantly if the
credit rating has significantly deteriorated at the reporting date
relative to the credit rating at the date of initial recognition.

Calculation of expected credit losses

The ECL are assessed by the Group on semi-annual basis. Based
on DPD, LTV and internally derived credit ratings, loans and
advances to customers are classified into 3 stages.

Under stage 1 is calculated on collective basis. The probabilities
of price changes of various scenarios are calculated based on the
observed historical price movements of the underlying collateral
stocks. The ECL of each scenario is then calculated in accordance
with the respective loan exposure. When the loans are classified
under stage 2 and stage 3, the lifetime ECL is calculated.

As at 31 December 2022, the average loss rate for 12-month ECL
and lifetime ECL credit-impaired was 0.05% (2021: 0.01%) and
92.19% (2021: 94.04%) respectively

If there is material decrease in collateral value and the full recovery
of the loan is in doubt, the retail and non-standard loan will be
classified into stage 3. For the loans classified as stage 3, the
Group may further calculate the ECL based on probability-weighted
scenarios to measure the expected credit loss. Each scenario is
associated with different exposure at default and probability.

Incorporation of forward-looking information

When estimating the ECL on loan and advances to customers,
the Group has incorporated forward-looking economic information
through the use of industry trend and experienced credit judgement
to reflect the qualitative factors, and through the use of multiple
probability-weighted scenarios by the stock market analysis.
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40. Financial risk management (continued)

Credit risk (continued)
Maximum exposure to credit risk before collateral held or
other credit enhancements

The Group’s maximum exposure to credit risk in the event that the
counterparties fail to perform their obligations as at the end of the
reporting period, in relation to each class of financial assets, is the
carrying amount of those assets as indicated in the statement of

financial position.

These amounts represent the worst case scenario of credit risk
exposure to the Group at 31 December 2022 and 2021, without
taking account of any collateral held or other credit enhancements

attached.

Concentration of risks of financial assets with credit risk
exposure
(a) Bank balances and client trust bank balances

The counterparties of all client trust bank balances and the
majority of cash and bank balances are located in Hong Kong.
As the Group’s bank balances and client trust bank balances
are deposited with a number of financially sound financial
institutions, in the opinion of the directors, the concentration
risk of the Group’s bank balances and client trust bank

balances is insignificant.

(b) Loans and advances to customers and accounts
receivable from clients

The counterparties of the majority of loans and advances to
customers (including margin loans, IPO loans and other loan
financing) and accounts receivable from clients are individuals
who are mainly located in China. The business department
and risk management department daily prepares an analysis
of key financing client and futures, options and leveraged
foreign exchange client exposure for review to avoid excessive
concentration of risk. The Group manages its concentration
risk by diversified clients and collateral portfolio and various

concentration limit.

(c) Accounts receivable from brokers, dealers as well as
clearing houses and others

The Group also has accounts receivable from clearing houses,
brokers and dealers from its securities, futures, options and
leveraged foreign exchange brokerage business as well as
other receivables from asset management, corporate finance
and investment holding and market making businesses.
Responsible officers manage the concentration of risk by

monitoring their respective exposures on a timely basis.
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40. Financial risk management (continued) 40. EFRE R EE 2

Credit risk (continued)

Securities borrowing and lending

In the normal course of brokerage business, the Group may enter
into securities borrowing and lending arrangements with customers
and financial institutions. The Group is not subject to significant
price risks under the securities borrowing and lending arrangement.
The cash collateral received and cash collateral placed are included
in the accounts payable and accounts receivable from brokers and
dealers, respectively. The Group is principally liable for repaying the
borrowed securities in case of any default by the customers.

As at 31 December 2022, the Group outstanding securities
borrowed/lent to customers and financial institutions and their
corresponding cash collateral paid/received are as follows:
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2022 2021
20224 20214
HK$'000 HK$'000
FBT FE T
Equity securities borrowed from financial B & Bl # & 5 A BB AEE F
institutions 722,245 407,779
Equity securities pledged by margin REFECEFP AEDRER
customers for stock lending EIRBIREE FH 3,374 6,481
725,619 414,260
Cash collateral placed with financial FRESREENR ERG
institutions 725,668 419,506
Equity securities lent to customers BESEEET ol 35,562 31,885
Cash collateral received from customers B & F UE ) IE € #3857 42,254 37,289
Market risk ™ 5 & B3

The Group takes on exposure to market risk, which is the risk
that the fair value or future cash flows of a financial instrument will
fluctuate because of changes in market prices. Market risks mainly
arise from open positions in interest rate, currency and equity
products, all of which are exposed to general and specific market
movements and changes in the level of volatility of market rates or
prices such as interest rates, foreign exchange rates and equity
prices.

The financial instruments held by the Group mainly exposed
it to interest rate risk and price risk. The market risk mainly
includes cash flow interest rate risk and price risk. The Group has
established policies and procedures for monitoring and controlling
the market risk arising from these financial instruments.
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40. Financial risk management (continued)

Market risk (continued)

Interest rate risk

The Group’s exposure to the risk of changes in market interest
rates relates primarily to the Group’s loans and advances to
customers, accounts receivable, financial assets and liabilities
at fair value through profit or loss, financial assets at fair value
through other comprehensive income, accounts payable to clients,
bank borrowings, debt securities in issue, receivable from reverse
repurchase agreements, obligations under repurchase agreements,
client trust bank balances and cash and bank balances. Debt
investments usually bear a fixed rate interest and they are managed
through the strategy of trading them within a short period of time.

Interest on cash at banks will fluctuate at floating rates based
on daily bank deposit rates. Bank borrowings and margin loans
receivable at variable rates exposed the Group to cash flow interest
rate risk. Other financial assets and liabilities which are mainly
carried at amortised cost are either non-interest-bearing or fixed
interest-bearing with short term maturities within one year, of which
the interest rate risk is also considered to be minimal. The Group
mitigates its interest rate risk by monitoring market interest rate
movements and revising the interest rates offered to its customers
on an ongoing basis in order to limit potential adverse effects of
interest rate movements on net interest income. The Group regularly
calculates the impact on profit or loss of a possible interest rate
shift on its portfolio of bank borrowings, margin loans receivable,
debt securities investment and interest-bearing bank deposits.

The following table illustrates the potential impact, of a parallel
upward or downward shift of 100 basis points in interest rate
curves with all other variables held constant on the Group’s net
profit for the next twelve months from the reporting date, based on
the Group’s positions of interest-earning assets, interest-bearing
liabilities and listed debt securities investments at year end.
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40. Financial risk management (continued)

Market risk (continued)
Interest rate sensitivity analysis

40. EFRE R EE 2

EERRE®)
Increase/(decrease)
in profit before tax

BRBLATERIE M, OB 4)

2022 2021

2022%F 20214

HK$’000 HK$’000

Interest rate increase 100 basis points  F/2%& F #100& 2 FHET FAIT
Interest-earning assets and interest-bearing 4 BB E Nt BB &

liabilities 41,141 73,123

Debt securities investment BERBLFEE (15,506) (62,978)

Net Amount ookl 25,635 10,145

The estimated 1% increase in interest rate represents
management’s assessment of a reasonably possible change in
interest rates over the period until the next annual reporting period.
The sensitivity analysis is unrepresentative because the year-end
exposure does not reflect the exposure during the year.

For the financial products and derivative financial instruments held
by the Group are structured as debt securities in issue for sales to
customers. They are not subject to significant risk as the risk has
been transferred to customers accordingly.

For the value of private bonds and private equities held by the
Group are not sensitive to the movement of interest rate or equity
index, they are not subject to the sensitivity analysis.
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40. Financial risk management (continued)

Market risk (continued)

Price risk

The Group is exposed to equity securities price risk from equity
derivative instruments and fund investments held by the Group
which are classified in the statement of financial position as
financial assets and liabilities at fair value through profit or loss.
Price risk is the risk of changes in fair value of financial instruments
from fluctuations, whether such a change in price is caused by
factors specific to the individual instrument or factors affecting all
instruments traded in the markets. The Group mitigates its price
risk by performing detailed due diligence analysis of investments
and dedicated professionals are assigned to oversee and monitor
the performance of investments.

The sensitivity analysis below has been determined based on the
assumption that the price of all the investment of equity instruments
and funds move according to the historical correlation with the
Hong Kong Hang Seng Index and other relevant equity indices.
The analysis is based on the assumption that the equity index had
changed by 10% with all other variable held constant, it represents
management’s assessment of the reasonably possible change in
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equity index.
2022 2021
20224 20214
HK$’000 HK$'000
Changes in relevant index HBEHES THET T 7T
Increase 10% EF10% 42,177 187,748
Decrease 10% TFE10% (42,177) (187,748)
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40. Financial risk management (continued)

Market risk (continued)

Price risk (continued)

The sensitivity analysis is unrepresentative because the year-end
exposure does not reflect the exposure during the year.

For the financial products and derivative financial instruments held
by the Group are structured as equity derivative products in issue
for sales to customers and for hedging purpose. They are not
subject to significant risk as the risk has been either transferred to
customers or properly hedged and mitigated accordingly.

For the value of private bonds and private equities held by the
Group are not sensitive to the movement of interest rate or equity
index, they are not subject to the sensitivity analysis.

Besides, the asset quality of the margin clients’ margin collateral
will deteriorate when the market comes down drastically, scenario
analysis and stress testing are regularly performed on an individual
client basis.

Foreign currency risk

Foreign currency risk refers to the risk that movements in foreign
currency exchange rates will affect the Group’s financial results and
its cash flows.

The Group’s foreign exchange risk principally arises from its
leveraged foreign exchange dealing and broking business as well as
the Group’s transactions which are denominated in currencies other
than the Hong Kong dollars.

For the leveraged foreign exchange brokerage business, the Group
hedges the majority of the client positions through back-to-back
transactions with external counterparties. The Group adopts
stringent control over its positions to minimize its exposure to
foreign exchange risk.

The Group’s principal operations are transacted and recorded in
Hong Kong dollars, United States dollars (“US$”) and Renminbi
(“RMB”). The Group is not exposed to material foreign exchange
risk because HK$ is pegged with US$. The Group also conducts
appropriate hedging activities when it is exposed to material
exchange risk in RMB. Other foreign currency exposure is relatively
minimal to its total assets and liabilities. The foreign exchange
risk is daily managed and monitored by the treasury and finance
department.
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BRI AMEPHEND HTRER
TTEEMNMBRE B - A&
ARERER RASEREERE A
REREPHETTEE EIPHEM -

HRAEERFENLAGS LA
BREMEES N RHBEEHNE
B AT EETHEE
DT ©

AN FREPHAREMMNE
EERERMERETNBRERL -
BRI RENAATIZENEP
EBEF T -

S EE JEL R
SNERBEZFEASENHEER
HBSREMINEEXEFHNRER

AEERINERR ERBRE HEER
MINEBEERELEBARAEH
REBETAIINEE RBEUNR S -

RERIINELLEFMS  AKH
BEENIHFTNEHERXZH
HREHREFPMAEN - AEBHHE
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PE R -

AEENETEXBUBET XL
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40. EFRE R EE 2

40. Financial risk management (continued)

Liquidity risk

Prudent liquidity risk management includes maintaining sufficient
cash, the availability of funding from an adequate amount of
committed credit facilities and the ability to close out market
positions. Due to the dynamic nature of the underlying business, the
treasury department maintains flexibility in funding by maintaining
available committed credit facilities from the banks.

Sources of liquidity are daily reviewed by treasury department
to ensure the availability of sufficient liquid funds to meet all
obligations.

Management monitors rolling forecasts of the Group’s liquidity
reserve (comprising undrawn borrowing facilities) and cash and cash
equivalents on the basis of expected cash flows in strict compliance
with statutory requirements. This is achieved by monitoring the
liquidity position of the individual companies within the Group on a
daily basis to ensure the availability of sufficient liquid funds to meet
all obligations and compliance with the statutory requirements such
as the Hong Kong Securities and Futures (Financial Resources)
Rules.

REBESRER

BENRDESAREE BRI
AENRE BEEEAHEERE
MERBEREES  RBENR
LPMERKE AREBEETNZE
HE - ERBB N BBEAENA
RIRTEERERFESNIAEN -

EXBERBRFRDE S IR - K
BRAESRERBDES  BITMH
BRfE-

EEERBEEPRCAEEEAS
BrReE e (BREARIERE
RRE) LEERESFEYHER
FIEA NEBBETEEER R
ZIWARN  AEBEFEBRER
BT RAHREE SR - AR
EHNBRRNRDESEITAA
BEE YNEEBEEER (WA
BREFAHE (MRER) KA -
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Liquidity risk (continued)

40. Financial risk management (continued)

40. EFRE R EE 2

The following tables summarise the maturity profile of the Group’s
financial liabilities, based on the contractual and undiscounted cash

flows:

As at 31 December 2022

RBELEKE2)
BEAHNRAUERSRE  T&
B AEES A EHRHER

20225128318

Up to 1to 3to 1to
1 month 3 months 12 months 5 years Total
—-BAR —-Z=@A =E+=fEA —-ELf @5t
HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$’000
THER TR TART THER TRR
Liabilities af
Accounts payable & A 16,726,328 - - - 16,726,328
Bank borrowings BITER 9,348,509 - - - 9,348,509
Lease liabilities MEAE 2,544 5,089 22,912 17,042 47,587
Debt securities in issue BETEKES 28,194,697 31,188 570,055 12,904,613 41,700,553
Financial liabilities at fair value BATEEFABRN
through profit or loss TRERE 2,108,386 - - - 2,108,386
Obligations under repurchase [l 15 2 M R IR
agreements 3,593,576 1,668,924 206,379 2,440,092 7,908,971
59,974,040 1,705,201 799,346 15,361,747 77,840,334
Off-balance sheet items EEEEXRIMEB
Underwriting obligations G 1,755,020 - - - 1,755,020
Capital commitments BARAE 9,798 - - - 9,798
1,764,818 - - - 1,764,818
Derivative cash flows TERERE
Derivative financial instruments RABEENITE
settled on a gross basis SRTA
Total inflows FEN TN (7,926,637) (6,629,834) (2,522,329) (6,726,676) (23,805,476)
Total outflows et 7,936,407 6,533,584 2,484,067 6,714,671 23,668,729
9,770 (96,250) (38,262) (12,005) (136,747
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40. Financial risk management (continued) 40. SR AR EE )
Liquidity risk (continued) RBELER 2
As at 31 December 2021 M2021F12H31H
Up to 110 3to 1to
1 month 3 months 12 months 5 years Total
—@AR —Z=@F =ZZ+={8A —ZEHF acr

HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000 HK$'000
T TAT TR TR TAT

Liabilities &
Accounts payable AN 20,587,166 - - - 20,587,166
Bank borrowings RITEK 3,530,516 - 1,785,416 - 5315932
Lease liabilities MERR 1,455 2,911 13,111 23,455 40,932
Debt securities in issue BETEBES 25,132,155 1,616,571 7,405,099 11,337,957 45,491,782
Financial liabilities at fair value BRAFEFAERR
through profit or loss cHEE 8,772,805 - - - 8,772,805
Obligations under repurchase |15 i 0 228
agreements 3,775,095 4,101,885 1,378,743 - 9,255,723
61,799,192 5,721,367 10,582,369 11,361,412 89,464,340
Off-balance sheet items EEBBERINER
Underwriting obligations T A 144,900 - - - 144,900
Capital commitments BARALE 16,034 - - - 16,034
160,934 - - - 160,934
Derivative cash flows TERERE
Derivative financial instruments RBBEEENTE
settled on a gross basis SRTA
Total inflows B A (996,330)  (675,478)  (8,459,008)  (589,905) (10,720,721)
Total outflows FeYioen 978,025 676,131 8,416,829 631,845 10,702,830

(18,305) 653 (42,179) 41,940 (17,891)
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40. EFRE R EE 2

40. Financial risk management (continued)

Fair values of financial assets and liabilities
Financial instruments not measured at fair value

At the end of the reporting period, the fair values of the Group’s
financial assets and liabilities not measured at fair value were not
materially different from their carrying amount due to their short
term nature.

Financial instruments measured at fair value

Group’s valuation process

The fair values of financial assets in Level 1 and Level 2 are
measured by reference to quoted market prices and brokers’
quotes, respectively. The Group engaged independent professional
valuers to perform the valuation of financial instruments in Level 3
for financial reporting purposes. These valuation reports are sent to
the finance department and the Audit Committee for discussion at
least twice per annum, which is in line with the Group’s reporting
dates.

At each financial year end, the finance department reviews all
significant unobservable inputs and valuation adjustments used to
measure the fair values of financial instruments in Level 3. Changes
in fair values of financial assets in Levels 2 and 3 are analysed at
each reporting date.

TRHEERERNATE
WHERFETENEH TR
PR 2 B R 4 R I - R R B IR
AFEFENSBREAERABOA
TEEZSEERRBENEHEE
MEARAEEEALR

BAFEFEN 2@ A
AEEMBERRE
F1RLEE2REMEEN R FET
DHBZ2ENHERELKLRET
B-AKEC BB EXMGERD
HWEMRE T AETHEE  NAIE
MHEHRBEN - ZFEERSHEE
FEIMR(BAEENRS BB
—B)EXTHBHREZZES
PASEET o

REVFRFER  HBKALBRMMAE
AR EFIMER T AR FER
ERBEBRZ2HNMGERAE B
RN FINEMEENRFEE
REREBRETOMN -
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40. Financial risk management (continued)

Fair values of financial assets and liabilities
(continued)

Financial instruments measured at fair value (continued)

Fair value hierarchy

The following tables illustrate the fair value measurement hierarchy
of the Group’s financial instruments:

Assets measured at fair value:

As at 31 December 2022

40. EFRE R EE 2

TRMEEREENAFE
(%)

BAFEFENT TR (&)
NFHEFR
AFPEERTAMAAEES BT
AMATHEAEEMR

BRAFEFENEE

M2022F12H31H

Fair value measurement using

RAATRENATENE

Quoted
prices in Significant Significant
active observable unobservable
markets inputs inputs
(Level 1) (Level 2) (Level 3) Total
s BERT BREHL
mEHRE BE2y BE2y
(E14R) (5E24R) (%3) @t
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
THERT THET TRT TAT
Non-current ERE
Financial assets held for trading and #{EEE RIX B LR EE
investments
- Unlisted equity securities —JE E MR AEE - - 1,769,013 1,769,013
Financial products SREM 97,575 8,097,726 5,481,563 13,676,864
Derivative financial instruments fTESMIA - 577,055 - 577,055
97,575 8,674,781 7,250,576 16,022,932
Current B
Financial assets held for trading and #{£E & RiZ &M £ &
investments BE
- Unlisted fixed income securities ~ — 3 £ BT W& - 4,037,833 - 4,037,833
— Unlisted convertible securities — I LA E A - - 196,640 196,640
- Listed equity securities - ETRAES 649,885 - - 649,885
- Listed fixed income securities - EEEREER - 1,938,626 - 1,938,626
- Unlisted fixed income securities ~ — 3 £ B E W EFH - 603,389 1,304,539 1,907,928
~ Unlisted fund investments —EEMESEE - 535,257 400,137 935,394
- Other financial instruments —-Hih T A - - - -
Financial products SREM 1,779,440 28,564,964 1,917,410 32,261,814
Financial assets at fair value through & A FEzt AR M2 E
other comprehensive income hEneRBEE
- Listed equity securities —EEMELES 82,304 - - 82,304
Derivative financial instruments TESmIA - 1,527,458 - 1,527,458
2,511,629 37,207,527 3,818,726 43,537,882

2,609,204

45,882,308 11,069,302 59,560,814
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40. Financial risk management (continued) 40. SR AR EE )
Fair values of financial assets and liabilities EMEEREENAFE
(continued) (%)
Financial instruments measured at fair value (continued) BAFHEGTEMLHTAE)
Fair value hierarchy (continued) NYEBEEL &)
Assets measured at fair value: (continued) BAFEAENEE : (&)
As at 31 December 2021 M2021F12H31H

Fair value measurement using

RAATSEMATENE

Quoted
prices in Significant Significant
active observable unobservable
markets inputs inputs
(Level 1) (Level 2) (Level 3) Total
B BAH BEAEE
MiZHRE BR2Y BR2Y
(B1#) (F28) (534) B
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
T FAEL FABL FABT
Non-current ERE
Financial assets held for trading and #{EEERREALREE
investments
- Unlisted fixed income securities ~ —3F 1 B & Ye 2k & = 4,106,706 = 4,106,706
- Unlisted convertible securities ~ —3E LM AT R EH - - 223,427 223,427
- Unlisted equity securities —EEMRARES - - 1,823,797 1,823,797
Financial products SREM 728,229 6,111,341 4,375,319 11,214,889
Derivative financial instruments TEEBMITA - 12,325 - 12,325
728,229 10,230,372 6,422,543 17,381,144
Current e
Financial assets held for trading and #{EE & kR4 K4 &b
investments BE
- Listed equity securities — FIRAE S 1,166,283 - - 1,166,283
- Listed fixed income securities — AN EEF = 8,218,544 - 8,218,544
- Unlisted fixed income securities ~ — 3k F & TE W 75 5 — 3,651,761 1,586,506 5,238,267
- Unlisted fund investments —FEMEEKRE - 1,979,986 390,098 2,370,084
- Other financial instruments —Hthe@TH - 94,880 = 94,880
Financial products STRER 1,786,320 16,906,167 1,691,933 20,384,420
Financial assets at fair value through & A F{EFT A E 2
other comprehensive income BEmeBEE
- Unlisted fixed income securities ~ — 3 E M EKZE 5 - 11,529 - 11,529
Derivative financial instruments fTESBMIA - 606,905 - 606,905
2,952,603 31,469,772 3,668,537 38,090,912

3,680,832 41,700,144 10,091,080 55,472,056
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40. EFRE R EE 2

Fair values of financial assets and liabilities EMEEREENAFE
(continued) (%)

Financial instruments measured at fair value (continued) B FEFFENHTAE)
Fair value hierarchy (continued) NEEEZER (E)

Liabilities measured at fair value: HAFEFENERE:

40. Financial risk management (continued)

As at 31 December 2022 20225612831 H

Fair value measurement using

FAATEENAFETE

Quoted
prices in Significant Significant
active observable  unobservable
markets inputs inputs
(Level 1) (Level 2) (Level 3) Total
E B EXA EREE
i HE Bx2Y BE2Y
(5E14) (%E2%%) (5834%) @t
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$'000
TER TR TR TR
Non-current ER
Debt securities in issue designated  #E E A FE qu)\T?!ﬁT’i o)
at fair value through BETE
profit and loss - (4,147,684) (5,482,187) (9,629,871)
Derivative financial instruments EeBTA - (231,686) - (231,686)
- (4,379,370) (5,482,187) (9,861,557)
Current mE
Debt securities in issue designated 8 R AFE ABEMN
at fair value through BETERES
profit and loss - (22,766,659) (2,168,103) (24,934,762)
Financial liabilities held for trading ~ #{FEBSBEE
- Listed equity securities — R AES (359,900) - - (359,900
- Listed debt securities - tmEEE - (367,634) - (367,634)
— Unlisted debt securities - FEMEREF - (12) - (12)
Financial liabilities designated at 8 R AT EF AB#&H
fair value through cHMEE
profit or loss
- Financial products - SRER - (1,205,621) - (1,205,621)
- Other financial instruments - HittemIT A - (1,423) - (1,423)
— Third-party interest in - BERERESH
consolidated investment funds E=-FER - (173,796) - (173,796)
Derivative financial instruments MTEERIE - (1,297,531) - (1,297,531)
____________________________ (359,900)  (25,812,676)  (2,168,103)  (28,340,679)
(359,900) (30,192,046) (7,650,290) (38,202,236)
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40. Financial risk management (continued) 40. SR AR EE )
Fair values of financial assets and liabilities tMEERAEENAFE
(continued) (%)
Financial instruments measured at fair value (continued) BAFHEGTEMLHTAE)
Fair value hierarchy (continued) NYEBEEL &)
Liabilities measured at fair value: (continued) BAFEAENEE : (&)
As at 31 December 2021 M2021F12H31H

Fair value measurement using

FRANTREN A FEFE

Quoted
prices in Significant Significant
active observable unobservable
markets inputs inputs
(Level 1) (Level 2) (Level 3) Total
B EpNG| BAEL
misHRE BR2Y BR2Y
(F1#) (F28) (534) B
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FTAEL FTAEL FHBL FTHBT
Non-current ER
Debt securities in issue designated 18 &k A FE ABEH
at fair value through BETE
profit and loss - (3,823,294) (4,375,319) (8,198,613)
Derivative financial instruments fTESBMIA - (106,409) - (106,409)
- (3,929,703) (4,375,319) (8,305,022)
Current mE
Debt securities in issue designated 8 AFE ABEM
at fair value through BETEEES
profit and loss - (13,882,070) (1973,204)  (15,855,274)
Financial liabilities held for trading ~ F{EEE&BEE
- Listed equity securities = tﬁﬁw‘:ﬁ” (69,105) - - (69,105)
- Listed debt securities - tmEEE = (4,760,009) = (4,760,009)
- Unlisted debt securities - FLTEEESR - (13,370) = (13,370)
Financial liabllities designated at TR AT EF ABEMN
fair value through profit or loss cHEE
- Financial products - $HEMm - (3,120,012) - (3,120,012)
- Other financial instruments - HiemIA - (36,601) - (36,601)
— Third-party interest in - BERERESH
consolidated investment funds E=-FEm = (778,708 = (773,708
Derivative financial instruments MTESBMIA - (426,552 - (426,552

) )
) )
(69,109) (23,012,322) (1,973,204) (25,064,631)
) )

(69,105 (26,942,025 (6,348,523 (33,359,653
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40. Financial risk management (continued)

40. EFRE R EE 2

Fair values of financial assets and liabilities
(continued)

Financial instruments measured at fair value (continued)
Fair value hierarchy (continued)

THEERRENAFTE
)

BRFEGENS B TA(E)
RFESE )

(@)

Financial instruments in Level 1

The fair values of financial instruments traded in active
markets are based on quoted market prices at the end of
the reporting period. A market is regarded as active if quoted
prices are readily and regularly available from an exchange,
dealer, or broker and those prices represent actual and
regularly occurring market transactions on an arm’s length
basis. The quoted market prices used for financial assets and
financial liabilities held by the Group are the current bid price
and the current ask price.

Financial instruments in Level 2

The fair values of financial instruments that are not traded
in an active market (for example, over-the-counter) are
determined by using valuation techniques. These valuation
techniques maximise the use of observable market data where
it is available and rely as little as possible on entity specific
estimates. If all significant inputs used in the valuation for
financial instruments are observable, the financial instruments
are included in Level 2.

If one or more of the significant inputs are not based on
observable market data, the financial instrument is included in
Level 3.

(@)

F1hemTE

REBMSEEMNERTA
RFERERE RO TS
WEE - EREHHSEAR
FREBRXZH K58
HELBGRENTS - %
EHRERRIL A FEEET
MERRERBLENTIH R
S AEEMBEREERS
MABEMANTSRERE
ROWERERERE-

Fof e T A

W IERE R ™5 (Fl a5 s m
L)EBEMNERMITARAFED
FERAFEERNEE - ZSHE
BITRAERATBETS
BE(hE) BETKEE
B THT e T AR
BEFEANBER2EY A
AER2Y  ZeMIAIA
FOH ©

WA —ExkZEEAX2HYL
U BREMGHEIBEREE
ZEBITAIAEIR -
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40. Financial risk management (continued)

Fair values of financial assets and liabilities

(continued)

Financial instruments measured at fair value (continued)

Fair value hierarchy (continued)

(c) Financial instruments in Level 3
The following table presents the changes in Level 3 financial
instruments for the years ended 31 December 2022 and
2021.

40. EFRE R EE 2

ctRHEEREEBNAFE
(%)
BAFHEGTEMLHTAE)
NYEBEEL &)
(c) ZE3FemIT A

TK 25 #H £20224F %2021

F12A31B It FE  F3 &
BMIAME -

Level 3 financial assets FIMEMEE
For the year ended 31 December 2022 B FE2022%F12831 AL EE
Unlisted
Unlisted fixed Unlisted Unlisted
equity income fund convertible Financial
securities securities  investments securities product
(note 20) (note 20) (note 20) (note 20) (note 20) Total
¥Em FERER kL E
BAES WAES HeRE  WARES ERER
(H7£20) (H7£20) (H7£20) (H7£20) (H7£20) @zt
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TR TER TR TR TR TR
At 1 January 2022 120221 A1H 1,823,797 1,586,506 390,098 223,427 6,067,252 10,091,080
Disposal HE - (365,531) - - - (365,531)
Transfer from level 2 (note 1) feEomeE A (H&1) - 608,166 116,955 - - 725,121
Net gain recognised in profit or loss 118 2 i 78 £ i & 3 28 (54,784) (524,602) (106,916) (26,787) 1,331,721 618,632
At 31 December 2022 1202246124318 1,769,013 1,304,539 400,137 196,640 7,398,973 11,069,302
Note 1: The valuations of unlisted fixed income securities and unlisted MEzEt - FEETRERTERAZTES R

fund investments were previously determined by observable
broker quotes or market price of the reference securities. As of 31
December 2022, the valuations were determined by unobservable
inputs such as the credit assessment of the issuer and value of
collateral held.

FEMESREMNHE
2 A1 38 38 A B 2R LS 42 3R
ERL2EFFNMEE
E o & 22021412 A 31
B EENRETANE
EFRRAFHEARD
BESTAEHREAH
BEE -
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40. Financial risk management (continued) 40. cRiERR EE @)
Fair values of financial assets and liabilities TRHEENEENAFEE
(continued) (%)
Financial instruments measured at fair value (continued) BN FEEAEN DT A E)
Fair value hierarchy (continued) NFEEERE)
(c) Financial instruments in Level 3 (continued) (c) ZFE3hemIT HE (&)
Level 3 financial assets FIMEMEE
For the year ended 31 December 2021 BZE2021F12831 8L EE
Unlisted
Unlisted fixed Unlisted Unlisted
equity income fund convertible Financial
securities securities investments securities product
(note 20) (note 20) (note 20) (note 20) (note 20) Total
¥EW  FEETWER ¥t E ]
BAES WAEH EeRE  MERESR SRER
GEZ)) (HizE20) (HizE20) iRZ0)) iRZ)) Euh)

HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TAT TAT TAT TAT TAT TAT

At 1 January 2021 M2021F1A18 730,985 = = 195,758 7,565,850 8,492,593
Purchases BE 966,918 - - - - 966,918
Disposal HeE = = - - (1,749,666)  (1,749,666)
Transfer to level 1 (note) #AE1R (1) (193,820) - - - = (193,820)
Transfer from level 2 (note 2) GEYEEINGESY - 1558530 389,790 - - 1948320
Net gain recognised in profit or loss 1 8z R RI M & 5 58 319,714 27,976 308 27,669 251,068 626,735
At 31 December 2021 7202145124318 1,828,797 1,586,506 390,098 223,427 6,067,252 10,091,080

Note 1: The unlisted equity securities investment was related to an MizEq : EFTRABEEEH

investment in a pre-IPO company. The shares of the investee W — R kAR R E R

company were linked to American Depositary Shares listed on the NAMEEEBE - W%

New York Stock Exchange during the year, thus the fair value of the BTG Ty B E RN IE

investment was based on quoted market price. MAOFEFR S ETE

EEGREZAMN B
ERANATEDE
RFTRTE -

Note 2: The valuations of unlisted fixed income securities and unlisted Migro : ELrTEEKAZER
fund investments were previously determined by observable EIFETHEHSBENGE
broker quotes or market price of the reference securities. As of 31 2 B 3B B A B 5 AR 40 3R
December 2021, the valuations were determined by unobservable BRI EBANTEE
inputs such as the credit assessment of the issuer and value of TF o A E2021%F12 A 31
collateral held. B A ENETANRE

B ¥ AR R P H 4K 9 Y

BEETTEREAR
BT -
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40. Financial risk management (continued)

Fair values of financial assets and liabilities
(continued)

Financial instruments measured at fair value (continued)
Fair value hierarchy (continued)

40. EFRE R EE 2

Financial instruments in Level 3 (continued)

Level 3 financial liabilities

For the year ended 31 December 2022

TRMEEREENAFE

(#)

BAFEFENT TR (&)

NFEEH &)

() HIMESEMTA (&)
HIREME K

B E2022F12A31BLFE

Debt
securities
in issue
(note 27)
2817
BBES
(B E27)
HK$’000
T8

At 1 January 2022
Issuance
Redemption on maturity

Net gain recognised in profit or loss

R2022%F1 818

1T

7 EI HA b5 fE 1]
RiB= R A FEE

6,348,523
926,775

(956,685)
1,331,677

At 31 December 2022

72022412 A31H

7,650,290

Level 3 financial liabilities

For the year ended 31 December 2021

ERE A =R
B ZE2021F12A31BLEE
Debt
securities
in issue
(note 27)
BT
B 5
(fF3E27)
HK$'000
T4 7T

At 1 January 2021
Redemption on maturity

Net loss recognised in profit or loss

R2021F1 /818
R B Bf B BB B
RERERNEIEFE

7,836,332
(1,749,666)
261,857

At 31 December 2021

72021412 A31H

6,348,523

Note: The structured note issued was related to an investment in a pre-

IPO company. The shares of the investee company were linked
to American Depositary Receipts listed in the New York Stock

Exchange during the year, thus the fair value of the investment was

based on quoted market price.

B &L ERTHEBEREREH
N—RERAREER
RAMKE - HKEER
Al B fp Ty B N AR K
EHRZMEMHEE
FREREAR EMZ
BRENRFEDERR
HE
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40. Financial risk management (continued)

Fair values of financial assets and liabilities

(continued)

Financial instruments measured at fair value (continued)

Fair value hierarchy (continued)

(c) Financial instruments in Level 3 (continued)
Below is a summary of significant unobservable inputs to the
valuation of financial instruments as at 31 December 2022
and 2021:

31 December 2022

40. EFRE R EE 2
tRHEEREBNATE

(%)

HRFEGFENTEH A (K)
RFEER &)
(c) EIMEEMTA A

TXAcE T AER2022F &
2021F12A31HHENE X
ELBR28HME

2022%12H31H

Sensitivity of the

Valuation technique Significant unobservable input Average fair value to the input
ATLEHZEMN
R i EXELERZY ¥ BRE
Unlisted convertible Market Approach Pricing multiples of market 10.85 10% increase or decrease in
securities comparable companies used the underlying stock price,
to determine the estimated the fair value would be
equity value of the Project increased by HK$20 million
Company: or decreased by HK$20
— Price to earnings multiple million, respectively.
I L AIAREH M5 ARETER RAMRER TR R RR B £ F s & E10% -
ENTIHA A LR A RNE RHER S RIE 2086 &
BE: BILERP20EEET
~ A%
Unlisted fixed income  Income approach Collateral value N/A N/A
securities
EAERR N A% BERmEE TER  MER
Unlisted fund Net asset value N/A N/A N/A
investments
FIrmEERE BERE TEA TER  TEA
Unlisted equity Market approach Pricing multiples, discount N/A The higher the pricing multiples,
securities rate for lack of marketability, the higher the fair value.
volatility The higher the discount rate,
the lower the fair value.
The higher the volatility, the
higher the fair value.
I EIRAE mimA EEEY - BB TEA TEREYEE ATEERS -
BRE - KIE BEEER A TFEBE-
REMS  ATESS -
Financial products Net asset value N/A N/A N/A
THEM BERE TR ~ER  TER
Debt securities in issue  Net asset value N/A N/A N/A
BRITEHES BERE TR TER  TER
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40. Financial risk management (continued)

40. EFRE R EE 2

Fair values of financial assets and liabilities tRHEEREBNATE
(continued) (%)

Financial instruments measured at fair value (continued) B FEFFENHTAE)
Fair value hierarchy (continued) NEEEZER (E)

(c) Financial instruments in Level 3 (continued)
31 December 2021

() FIETHMTE R
20214%125831H

Sensitivity of the
Valuation technique  Significant unobservable input Average fair value to the input
AFEH2EHN
AR EAEEBEZY T BRE
Unlisted convertible Market Approach Pricing multiples of market 10.33 10% increase or decrease in
securities comparable companies used the underlying stock price,
to determine the estimated the fair value would be
equity value of the Project increased by HK$22 million
Company: or decreased by HK$22
— Price to earnings multiple million, respectively.
I T AR EE 5 RN FREEER AR b RER 1HBRE L AHERI0% D F
EHTS A AL RA AN E B2 AL 228 AT
BE: WA22RERTT
~TRE
Unlisted fixed income  Income approach Collateral value N/A N/A
securities
FEMEERAES WA BERREE rER  TER
Unlisted fund Net asset value N/A N/A N/A
investments
FEMESKRE BERAE NEA NER  ATEA
Unlisted equity Recent transaction N/A N/A N/A
securities
I FTIRARE % RAR S N iE R ~ER  TER
Financial products Net asset value N/A N/A N/A
SRESD BESAE TEA rER  TEA
Debt securities in issue  Net asset value N/A N/A N/A
BEETEBES BERFE N iE R ~ER  MER
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40. Financial risk management (continued)

Capital management

The Group’s objectives for managing capital, which represent a
broader concept than the “equity” on the face of the statement of
financial position, are:

° to comply with the capital requirements under the Hong Kong
Securities and Futures (Financial Resources) Rules for its
subsidiaries which are licensed corporations;

° to safeguard the Group’s ability to continue as a going
concern so that it can continue to provide returns for
shareholders and benefits for other stakeholders;

° to support the Group’s stability and growth; and

° to maintain a strong capital base to support the development
of its business.

The liquid capital is monitored daily by each individual licensed
subsidiary’s management based on the Securities and Futures
(Financial Resources) Rules. The required information is filed
with the SFC on a timely basis. The SFC requires each licensed
corporation to maintain a level of required liquid capital which is
the higher of the floor requirement ranging from HK$0.1 million to
HK$15 million and 5% of the aggregate of its adjusted liabilities
and clients’ margin. All licensed corporations within the Group
complied with their required liquid capital during the years ended
31 December 2022 and 2021.

A subsidiary of the Company is a member of the Hong Kong
Confederation of Insurance Brokers and is required to maintain
a minimum net asset value of HK$0.1 million at all times. Two
subsidiaries of the Company are registered with the Monetary
Authority of Singapore and are required to maintain a minimum
base capital requirement of SG$250,000 and SG$1,000,000 at all
times, respectively.

The capital of the Group mainly comprises its total equity.

40. EFRE R EE 2

EXEHE
AEBEAEEN R BRI B
MRz (M) EREM - 8D :

s HRAFRBEEABNKERQ
BAmME  HedEEF PR
(MBER) RANERNRE

s REAKEFELENES
NE R RERD &R RS
H 5510 F IR M

s KRAKENRERER: R

s WFEREMEAER  UXF
HEBHER -

ERENBARNEEERERE S
FHE (MBEIR) A & RKEER
PFES TEHEONEESRZNS
BE -FEeRTE  SHEEEE
REMERBDEAKEAEN T018
EAETEISEEBTHREERK
EEARBEBEREFRBCENE
5% & R & =& o N E £2022
FN2021F12A31HILFE » K&
EETHEREEZEHFTEMETR
BESKFEHRTE -

RAR—ZKK B R A RE SRR E
MBS B RATEMA KRGS &
EEEFEOAEBEES T - AR F
MEAMBARETMESHERED
BRNRAEMBRRD A FRE
H K E K F8 F250,000%7 M1 # T K
1,000,000%7 I3 It ©

AEBNEARNTERREEREHE -
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41. Offsetting financial assets and financial
liabilities
The Group currently has a legally enforceable right to set off the
Continuous Net Settlement (CNS) money obligations receivable and
trade payables with HKSCC and it intends to settle on a net basis
as accounts receivable from or accounts payable to the Stock
Exchange. The net amount of CNS money obligations receivable or
payable with HKSCC and the guarantee fund placed in HKSCC do
not meet the criteria for offsetting in the financial statements and
the Group does not intend to settle the balances on a net basis.

41.

KETRMEERETHME
&

AEEBRHEB AR RITENE
HEFEEENFEFAIR K
BRI EUER R 5 RN R
B URIRFREE(ELRKSE
NEMXMEREE EEBEEDN
548 3 RR ST A A B o R A+t B O R
BEERRBERENRERESY
TRHERPHRERANBHFE
AEETHIZFREEGERER

Gross
amount of
recognised Net
Gross financial amounts Related
amount of (assets)/ of financial  amounts not
recognised liabilities liabilities  set off in the
financial  offset in the reflected in statement
assets/ financial  the financial of financial
(liabilities) statements statements position Net
REE &R
ERZAER  HEHEERER  RUERR EENIES
BE/(BE) <R(EE)/ ZiNem MRIRESEH
e aELE 8EFE AHSHE BE
HK$’'000 HK$’'000 HK$'000 HK$’000 HK$’000
TR TR TER TER TR
As at 31 December 2022 12022412318
Financial assets SREE
Accounts receivable arising from brokerage 442 5 1 fE Wi 3008
— the Stock Exchange and other clearing ~ — BB B Efth & B Fy
houses 2,797,898 (1,597,553) 1,200,345 - 1,200,345
Loans and advances to Customers BTEFMETRER 6,391,369 - 6,391,369 (6,378,810) 12,559
Financial liabilities SRERE
Accounts payable arising from brokerage & 42 ¥ e FE
— the Stock Exchange and other clearing  —Bt X Fi R A& EFr
houses (2,886,168) 1,597,553 (1,288,615) - (1,288,615)
As at 31 December 2021 2021124318
Financial assets tREE
Accounts receivable arising from brokerage £ 42 7% e 5118
— the Stock Exchange and other clearing  — B P Rk E b & E Fy
houses 6,730,363 (3,636,053) 3,194,310 - 3,194,310
Loans and advances to Customers BYEFPNERRBR 15,854,687 - 15854687  (15,788,103) 66,584
Financial liabilities SRER
Accounts payable arising from brokerage &4 £ BT
— the Stock Exchange and other clearing  — B P Rk E b & E Fy
houses (5748812  3536,083  (2,212,759) - (2.212,759)
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41. Offsetting financial assets and financial 41. KSR EEHELRE

liabilities (continued) &
The tables below reconcile the “net amount of financial assets/ TRE EXFTE R [R5 ER
(liabilities) presented in the statement of financial position”, as set SRV ERMEE(AE) FE|H
out above, to the amounts presented in the statement of financial BIEIANARERNCREETHERR -
position.
2022 2021
20224 20214
HK$’000 HK$'000
FHET FAT
Net amount of accounts receivable arising | X Ffift K $5 18 &L 40 £ 15 8
from brokerage after offsetting as stated WK IE 5 8
above
— the Stock Exchange and other clearing  — B2 i K2 E fth 45 & Ay
houses 1,200,345 3,194,310
Accounts receivable other than the Stock B 33 Ffr K2 E 4t 45 & Bf LA SMNEY
Exchange and other clearing houses JE WK IE 4,473,147 3,388,386
Less: Impairment B ORE (32,106) (23,015)
Accounts receivables in the statement of  BA A S 2% I i Uk 70 0B
financial position 5,641,386 6,559,681
Net amount of accounts payable arising from = 3 i it £ 1% 48 42 2 7% Jie 1~
brokerage after offsetting as stated above  FKIEHEE
— the Stock Exchange and other clearing  — B 32 BT & £ 4th 45 & By
houses 1,288,615 2,212,759
Accounts payables other than the Stock Bk 22 P Je EL 0 45 & BT A SN AY
Exchange and other clearing houses AN 15,437,713 18,374,407
Accounts payables in the statement of B 75 AR L 2% 9 JE S 3B
financial position 16,726,328 20,587,166
The “net amounts of financial assets/(liabilities) reflected in the FYFEN T REBRERIEDN S
financial statements”, as set out above, is included in “accounts mEE/ (AR FHEISBERE
receivable and accounts payable arising from brokerage — the B 7% 3} 3% Bif sE18 2241 [ 4R 42 % 75
Stock Exchange and other clearing houses” in notes 18 and 24 to FEWHRELEMNTRB-BTEREE

the financial statements, respectively. &S E T o

A
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42. Statement of financial position of the 42. XA TMBEMRRE
Company
Information about the statement of financial position of the BRAARRA R ImE BRI BN
Company at the end of the reporting period is as follows: KHERAT -
2022 2021
20225 20214
HK$’000 HK$’000
TET FE T
Non-current assets ERBEE
Investments in subsidiaries A B A A 21,619,552 21,619,135
Fixed assets EBE 3,360 5,731
Deferred tax assets BEHAEE 1,086 1,290
21,623,968 21,626,156
Current assets REEE
Prepayments, deposits and FENFRIE - Ze Xk
other receivables H b fE U FR I8 5,804 5,956
Amounts due from subsidiaries JE U BfY /B A R ZRIB 12,791,554 17,767,582
Cash and cash equivalents BehBREEEY 42,646 36,204
_Total currentassets RBREMA® 12,840,004 17,809,742
Current liabilities REBEE
Lease Liabilities HEBE (3,454) (5,982)
Accrued liabilities EEtBE (25,664) (1,412)
Debt securities in issue BERTEBES (1,647,175)  (15,609,267)
— At amortised cost — IR SR AR (524,840)  (13,667,909)
- Designated at fair value through profit —BEERAFEFARR
or loss (1,122,335) (1,941,358)
Bank loans RITER (8,221,725) (4,078,058)
Amount due to a subsidiary B — KK B~ | A (4,766,290) (99,009)
Tax payable FEAS IR (7,426) (264)
_Total current liabilites nEBREesE (14,671,734)  (19,793,992)
_Net current liabilites RBEEFE (1,831,730) (1,984,250)
Non-current liabilities kFRBEMB
Debt securities in issue BERITEREH (3,295,759) (3,318,121)
— At amortised cost — FR 8 SR AR (3,138,860) (3,139,345)
- Designated at fair value through profit —EBEEAFEFAEBR
or loss (156,899) (178,776)
,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,, (3,295,759) (3,318,121)
Net assets BEEFE 16,496,479 16,323,785
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42. Statement of financial position of the

Company (continued)

42, KA B BB R T 2

2022 2021
20224 20214
HK$’000 HK$'000
FE T BT
Equity Rz
Share capital fig 4 10,902,195 10,902,195
Currency translation reserve BEmE S 187 187
Share-based compensation reserve VA B9 75 B8t 357 B 1o £ 26,132 27,429
— Share option reserve — R 26,132 27,429
— Share award reserve — &1 2B - -
Retained profits R 88 Al 5,567,965 5,393,974
Total equity EmEm 16,496,479 16,323,785
Dr. YIM Fung Ms. QI Haiying
BigE L MR
Director Director
EZE EF
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42. Statement of financial position of the 42 XA TMBERRRK @)
Com pany (continued)
A summary of the Company’s reserves is as follows: RAGHFEEBRZRNT :
Share held
under
Currency Share Share the share
translation option award award Retained
reserve reserve reserve scheme profits Total
15 =B
BgBRg iR R IR 15 2 B FHEIET
s #iE #E BENRE REBEF Foby
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
FTHET FET FET FET FTHET THET
At 1 January 2021 M2021F1 A1H 187 32,521 9,085 (30,672) 86,021 97,142
Total comprehensive income FRE2ENELSE
for the year - - - - 6,279,355 6,279,355
Recognition of equity-settled TR AR 2 45 E AR (D A AL
share-based payments )1 3% (Pt 3781 }2.32)
(notes 31 and 32) - 1,462 6,314 - - 7,776
Vesting of shares for the share award B {7 S8 @)t 2155 B AR (D
scheme (note 32) (F&E32) - - (15,399) 16,879 (7,484) (6,004)
Shares issued upon exercise of share Bt 8118 T B R EE T
options under the share option 040
scheme (notes 30 and 31) (M #£30%31) - (733) - - - (733)
Transfer of share option reserve upon 2 % 4 5k 2% I 55 2 B8 S 4 (6 5
the forfeiture of share options - (5,821) - - 5,821 -
Disposal of shares held in share & B AR T BIET R AR 1
award scheme - - - 13,793 - 13,793
Final dividend paid for 2020 (note 10) X {20204 K # % & (F§7E10) - - - - (489,670)  (489,670)
Interim dividend paid for 2021 (note 10) 3 {20214 7 H3f% & (Hfi#£10) - - - - (480,069)  (480,069)
At 31 December 2021 and M2021F12A318 K&
1 January 2022 2022F1A1H 187 27,429 - - 5,393,974 5,421,590
Total comprehensive income FRE2ENELE
for the year - - - - 707,424 707,424
Recognition of equity-settled TR AR 2 5 E AR (D A A
share-based payments )15 3% (Pt 331 12.32)
(notes 31 and 32) - 417 - - - 417
Transfer of share option reserve upon B U0 A 2 ok T 8 2 B O 1 4
the forfeiture of share options - (1,714) - - 1,714 -
Share repurchase (note 30) B2 [ & (B 5£30) - - - - (57,109) (57,109)
Final dividend paid for 2021 (note 10) X {20214 R H % & (FifE10) - - - - (95,878) (95,878)
Interim and special dividend for 2022 37 {20227 £ K 4 Rl A% 8.
(note 10) (H=E10) - - - - (382,160)  (382,160)
At 31 December 2022 2022412 A31H 187 26,132 - - 5,567,965 5,594,284
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43. Possible impact of amendments, new
standards and interpretations issued but
not yet effective for the year ended 31
December 2022

Up to the date of issue of these financial statements, the HKICPA
has issued a number of amendments, and a new standard, HKFRS
17, Insurance contracts, which are not yet effective for the year
ended 31 December 2022 and which have not been adopted
in these financial statements. These developments include the
following which may be relevant to the group.

Effective for
accounting periods
beginning on or after
Amendments to HKAS 1, Presentation of financial 1 January 2023
statements: Classification of liabilities as current or
non-current

Amendments to HKAS 1, Presentation of financial 1 January 2023
statements and HKFRS Practice Statement 2, Making
materiality judgements: Disclosure of accounting policies

Amendments to HKAS 8, Accounting policies, changes 1 January 2023
in accounting estimates and errors: Definition of
accounting estimates

Amendments to HKAS 12, Income taxes: Deferred tax 1 January 2023
related to assets and liabilities arising from a single
transaction

The group is in the process of making an assessment of what the
impact of these developments is expected to be in the period of
initial application. So far it has concluded that the adoption of them
is unlikely to have a significant impact on the consolidated financial
statements.

43.
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AFMBERE

A summary of the published results and assets and liabilities of the

Group for the last five financial years is set out below:

RESULTS

REBBERDFTE
EHEHIWT :

- 4=

MRENREER

=]
For the year ended 31 December
BE12B31ALEE

2022 2021 2020 2019 2018
20228 20216 2020F 2019 20185
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TEL AL THL T T
Revenue and other income WAREA K& 2,319,251 3,971,694 4878400 4,250,171 3,029,822
Profit before tax BRHALER 26,657 1,287,646 1,814,679 1,005,443 983,272
Profit for the year FERRA 83,042  1,108273 1,567,772 902,559 849,174

Profit attributable to ordinary equity ARAERRER
holders of the Company ity 80,381 1094743 1,562,587 895,303 796,835

ASSETS AND LIABILITIES EEHEE
As at 31 December
M2A318

2022 2021 2020 2019 2018
20225 20214 2020 20196 20184
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TR TBT THT THT THT
Loans and advances to customers BTEFPRERRER 6,391,369 15,854,687 15,604,244 11715002 12,275,375
Financial assets at fair value RATEFENEREE 11,517,623 23253517 31,507,060 20,881,154 15,019,421
Financial products HER 45,938,678 31,599,309 39,512,080 38,110,044 32,842,048
Receivable from reverse repurchase agreements [ [i] 1B 138 JE W58 586,845 4443729 3022800 2247913 3,109,006
Derivative financial instruments fTEsBIA 2,104,513 619230 1,261,354 155,652 76,832
Cash and cash equivalents ReLBReEEY 7,756,580  5277,874 5508779 7,150,847 4,105,672
Client trust bank balances REEZRIEH 13,347,021 17,804,841 18,707,026 11,181,982 14,319,985
Other current assets ARgEE 6,053,134 6,711,577 5093609 4,421,056 5675775
Other non-current assets EtERESEE 759,323 723,329 661,303 873,607 610,177
Total assets BERE 94,455,086 106,288,003 121,720,741 96,738,157 88,034,291
Interest bearing borrowing SRR (9,349,007) (5,375,203  (9,739,397)  (11,249,881)  (9,441,089)
Debt securities in issue BETESES (41,488,268)  (45,491,783)  (47,919,872)  (33,499,582)  (25,999,272)
Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss AT E:F ABRHMEHAR  (2,108,386) (8,772,805  (6,666,260)  (6,810,580)  (8,731,117)
Obligations under repurchase agreements B HZREE (7,695,073)  (9,255,723)  (17,396,163)  (18,199,226)  (13,156,517)
Derivative financial instruments fTEemIA (1,529,217) (532,961) (862,429) (149,851) (23,620)
Other liabilities A EE (17,348,939)  (21,422,679) (23,897,453)  (15,417,250)  (19,488,400)
Non-controlling interests FEfR R (129,497) (129,578) (121,048) (115,869) (11,567)
Shareholders’ fund &S 14,806,699  15307,361 15,118,119 11205924 11,182,715
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